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Our vision is to democratize
fashion and design in footwear
and accessories to the world.

Matthew E. Rubel

Chief Executive Officer and President

Dear Stockholders:

The year 2006 was an amazing year for Payless in so many ways. As an organization, we refo-
cused ourselves around the marketplace and the customer. We crafted a strategy that lever-
aged our strengths and clarified our opportunities. Then, together as a team and individually
as team members, we went about bringing that strategy to life with great passion and careful
thought. We executed. The results were solid 3.5% comparable store sales growth, record sales
for the Payless store brand, gross margin expansion to a historically high level, operating profit
from continuing operations up 41%, and realizing a value creating ROIC. Importantly, we have
built a foundation for success in the years to come. All of these accomplishments contributed
to a 47% increase in our share price.

Our vision at Payless is to democratize 2004 2005 2006
fashion and design in footwear and acces- o
sories to the world. It is simple, focused : 3
and inclusive. In an elevated manner, our 2
mission is to become the first choice for ° R~
style and value in footwear and acces- Sl 3 &
sories. Consistent with this vision and b a8 5
mission, we have developed a set of per- - g o m
formance objectives that will guide our Yoz g |8 M2
strategy for the years to come. pul - |=
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The path for our team is focused on a strat-
egy centered around creating an emo-
tional connection with our customers. | ]
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Closing stock price for Payless ShoeSource Inc. on last day of the fiscal quarter.




In 2006, we did this so well that our brand differ-
entiation scores went up 59 points. This was so
startling, we sent the results back to see if they
were correct. They were. The customer sees
the difference at Payless and is buying more
from us because of it. Over time, this will lead
to higher conversion rates and increased traffic
in our stores.

The most important and sustainable elements
of our strategy are to build a customer-focused
organization and infrastructure. We are commit-
ted to building an organization of great people.
We have revitalized our talent identification and
development process. We have strengthened
our people development initiatives by level,
function, and individual. We have injected over
30 new senior executives into the organization
from the world's best retailers and footwear
companies. These individuals, paired with our
strong, talented and experienced long-time
associates, have created a dynamic yet well-
grounded organization.

Our mission is to become
the first choice for style
and value in footwear and
accessories.

A recent internal survey indicates that over 95%
of our leadership understands and has con-
fidence in our strategy and over 90% under-
stands their role in executing the strategy. This
is a credit to the team and shows how aligned
we are throughout our company.

The four pillars of our core strategy all showed
progress, contributed to our results and re-
vealed even more opportunities for the future.




On-Trend Targeted Product

On-trend targeted product worked well across
our entire family of businesses, with the most
progress occurring in children’s, women's and
athletics. We created product development
centers in Asia and are staffing up our New York
Design Center. We have placed more emphasis
on identifying fashion trends from international
market trips, trend services and outside part-
ners, and then integrating these insights into a
line-planning process that incorporates speed,
quality, flexibility and testing. In addition, we
have a well-structured pricing methodology of-
fering good, better, and best pricing across all
lifestyles and end users.
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Effective Brand Marketing

We touched and elevated every aspect of what we do in the marketing
area in 2006. We launched a new logo, which enhanced and accelerated

achieving our new brand position “Inspiring fun fashion possibilities for
the family ....Payless.”™

In order to speak with clarity and emotional relevance across our broad
customer base, we started to build our House of Brands strategy. We
acquired American Eagle™, and built affiliations with Disney, American
Ballet Theatre and the Exeter Brands Group, LLC of Nike USA, INC. In
addition, we have an alliance with two of the best emerging design tal-
ents, Laura Poretzky for Abaeté and Lela Rose, who have created their
own signature collections exclusively for Payless.

R o

We added dimensions through style and innovation to our existing
brands -- Champion®, Airwalk®, Spalding® and Dunkman® by Shaquille
O'Neal. In doing so, we enabled a more diversified approach to media
and built brand credibility while driving traffic and conversion. We are
building customer relationships through a customer relationship manage-
ment program, which will drive sales growth in the years to come.
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Great Shopping Experience

The point of sale is where it all comes together.
Over 27,000 associates engaging with one cus-
tomer at a time in nearly 4,600 stores.

Our goal is to offer and provide friendly, help-
ful service in an easy-to-shop and enticing store
experience.

Running a Payless store has to be one of the
most demanding jobs in retail. The respect and
admiration | have for our retail operations team
and store managers is enormous. The team
has embraced our challenge to deliver a great
shopping experience. From improvements in
customer service scores, to increases in con-
version, to direct feedback from customers
through letters and calls to our customer sup-
port center, we see tremendous progress. Our
customer engagement methodology, known as
Brighten SMILES, has helped to focus our pas-
sionate and skilled store teams on elevating the
shopping experience for our customers,

We are innovating with new store formats with
the introduction of the Payless Fashion Lab™,
and the rollout of the Hot Zone. We have put
significant capital investment behind these ini-
tiatives. Over 250 stores were created in these
formats in 2006. Last year we invested much
more in our overall store base. In fact, in 2006
we spent over $30 million to renovate, paint,
and revamp over 500 stores. That investment,
in dollars, was greater than the previous two
years combined.
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— Over 27,000 associates engaging with one
' customer at a time in nearly 4,600 stores.




Efficient Operations

Qur operations, distribution, information
technology, finance and supply chain teams
have readdressed our infrastructure and pro-
cesses from a customer-focused perspective.
Qur distribution teams have refined assort-
ment planning and optimized our markdown
management, contributing to our margmn
improvements. QOur sourcing organization
increased the percentage of direct sourced
product to approximately 50% of our total
purchases.

One of the greatest examples of innovation
and teamwork to refocus our infrastructure
on our customers is the announcement of our
dual distribution center model. It will enable
us to get closer to our customers and with
faster execution, ensure that we are exceeding
their expectations.

We are also driving store productivity through
a new point-of-sale platform and system. In
2006, over half our stores, based on sales vol-
ume, received the new point-of-sale system.
The remainder of the North American stores are
scheduled to receive the new system in 2007.

When you sum it all up, it was a great year.
We have worked together as a team and in-
dividually as team members to platform and
reinvest in our exciting retail concept that was
created so brilliantly over 50 years ago.




Just the Beginning

The opportunities for growth and other improvements resonate throughout all of Payless. These
opportunities will take time to realize, whether they be by customer type, end use or geographi-
cally. The marketplace loves to be inspired, and our platforms for growth are just emerging. For
example, our Latin America team continues to be a leader in our company, giving us the confi-
dence to look to expand into new countries. The success of our brand strategy has given us the
confidence to invest in the best youth lifestyle company by acquiring Collective International, a

brand development and licensing company.

As a shareholder, | am thankful to have a team
that is willing to embrace change, think strate-
gically, and execute with excellence. | want to
thank all of our associates, worldwide, for an
outstanding effort and terrific results in 2006.
All of our accomplishments and future are built
on the platform of a great team. On behalf of
the board of directors and management team, |

The marketplace loves
to be inspired, and our
platforms for growth are
Just emerging.

want to reiterate our commitment to building a
great company focused on achieving superior
levels of performance that build shareholder
value. We recognize the trust you place in us
and will continue to move forward together
as a team and individually as team members
to passionately do the right thing, and build a
company of which we can all be proud.

Sincerely,

NPT

Matthew E. Rubel
Chief b xecut ve Offcer and Prechont
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the transition period from to
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(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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Forward Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements relating to such matters as anticipated financial performance, business
prospects, technological developments, products, future store openings and closings, international expansion opportunities,
possible strategic initiatives, new business concepts, capital expenditure plans, fashion trends, consumer spending patterns and
similar matters. Statements including the words *“expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” or variations
of such words and similar expressions are forward-looking statements. We note that a variety of factors could cause our actual
results and experience to differ materially from the anticipated results or expectations expressed in our forward-looking
statements. The risks and uncertainties that may affect the operations, performance, development and results of our business
include, but are not limited to, the following: changes in consumer spending patterns; changes in consumer preferences and
overall economic conditions; the impact of competition and pricing; changes in weather patterns; the financial condition of the
suppliers and; changes in existing or potential duties, tariffs or quotas and the application thereof; changes in relationships
between the United States and foreign countries; changes in relationships between Canada and foreign countries; economic
and political instability in foreign countries, or restrictive actions by the governments of foreign countries in which suppliers
and manufacturers from whom we source are located or in which we operate stores or otherwise do business; changes in trade,
intellectual property, customs and/or tax laws; fluctuations in currency exchange rates; litigation including intellectual property
and employment litigation; availability of suitable store locations on acceptable terms; the ability to terminate leases on
acceptable terms; the ability to hire, train and retain associates; performance of other parties in strategic alliances; general
economic, business and social conditions in the countries from which we source products, supplies or have or intend to open
stores; performance of partners in joint ventures; the ability to comply with local laws in foreign countries; threats or acts of
terrorism or war; strikes, work stoppages and/or slowdowns by unions that play a significant role in the manufacture,
distribution or sale of product; congestion at major ocean ports; changes in commodity prices such as oil; and changes in the
vatue of the dollar relative to the Chinese Yuan and other currencies. See also “Risk Factors.” All subsequent written and oral
forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behaif are expressly qualified in their entirety by these
cautionary statements. We do not undertake any obligation to release publicly any revisions to such forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are the largest footwear specialty retailer based upon number of locations in the Western Hemisphere, with 4,572 retail
stores in 15 countries and territories as of the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 (“2006”). Our Payless ShoeSource retail
stores in the United States, Canada, the Caribbean, Central America, and South America sold over 177 million pairs of
footwear during fiscal 2006. Payless ShocSource® stores sell a broad assortment of quality footwear, including athletic, casual
and dress shoes, sandals, work and fashion boots, slippers, and accessories such as handbags and hosiery. All references to
years are to our fiscal year unless otherwise stated.

Payless ShoeSource stores offer fashionable, quality, private and branded label footwear and accessories for women, men and
children at affordable prices in a self-selection shopping format. Qur stores feature several designer and mainstream footwear
brands including Abaete for Payless, Airwalk®, American Eagle™, Champion® and Spalding®. We seek to compete
effectively by getting to market with differentiated, trend-right merchandise before mass-market discounters and at the same
time as department and specialty retailers but at a more compelling value. As of fiscal year-end 2006, each Payless
ShoeSource store stocked on average approximately 7,200 pairs of footwear,

Our mission is to become the first choice for style and value in footwear and accessories for our target customers. We focus
our marketing efforts on women consumers between the ages of 18 and 49 with household incomes of less than $75,000, We
believe this group of consumers makes a disproportionately large share of household footwear purchasing decisions. We
believe that approximately one-third of these target consumers purchased at least one pair of footwear from our stores last
year.,

In 2006, we generated net sales from continuing operations of $2.80 billion, as compared with $2.67 billion in 2005.
History

We were founded in Topeka, Kansas in 1956 with a strategy of selling tow-cost, high-quality family footwear on a self-service
basis. In 1962, we became a public company. In 1979, we were acquired by The May Department Stores Company of St.
Louis, Missouri. On May 4, 1996, we became an independent public company as a result of a spin-off from The May
Department Stores Company. Qur common stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under
the symbol “P3S.” Our principal executive offices are located at 3231 Southeast Sixth Avenue, Topeka, Kansas 66607-2207,
and our telephone number is (785) 233-5171.

Segments and Geographic Areas

We operate our business in two segments, Payless Domestic and Payless International. The Payless Domestic segment
includes retail operations in the United States, Guam and Saipan. The Payless International segment includes retail operations
in Canada; Puerto Rico; the U.S, Virgin Islands; the South American Region which includes Ecuador; and the Centrai
American Region which includes Costa Rica, Guatemala, El Salvador, the Dominican Republic, Honduras, Nicaragua, Panama
and Trinidad and Tobago. Our operations in the Central and South American Regions are operated as joint ventures in which
we maintain a 60-percent ownership interest.

For a more detailed discussion of our segments and geographic areas please see the discussion contained in Note 17 “Segment
Reporting” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,

Mission

Our mission is to become the first choice for style and value in footwear and accessories for our target customers. We plan to
realize this by focusing on growing our core footwear and accessories businesses, while growing our earnings per share in the
mid-teen percentage range over time. To achieve this goal, we must consistently execute tactics embodied in our strategic
plan.




Positioning Payless ShoeSource® as the leading Mass Specialty Footwear and Accessories Retailer

Through our customer focused organization and infrastructure, Payless ShoeSource is positioning itself as the leading mass
speciaity footwear and accessories retailer by consistently delivering on our customer promise and executing against our four
strategic themes required to deliver our customer promise.

Our Customer Promise

Establish an emotional connection with target customers by providing on-trend and distinctive product, maintaining key items
in-stock, and providing exceptional value. In addition, we strive to deliver a great shopping experience for our customers
through delivering compelling brands and product across categories and price-points that are communicated through
aspirational messaging and imaging.

Strategic Themes

¢ Provide product that is on-trend, differentiated, distinctive and inspired by select popular fashion trends and pop culture
for all of our target customers, but with a primary focus on expressive women and expressive moms.

e Improve brand marketing effectiveness by implementing a “house of brands™ architecture that covers all of our major
customer segments and builds distinctiveness and focus in our product assortment.

» Provide a great shopping experience through improved customer engagement, and leveraging our real estate to support
new store formats consistent with the repositioning of our brand.

s  Maintain efficient operations by building greater speed and flexibility into the supply chain to deliver the right product to
the right store at the right time in the appropriate proportions across the approximately 4,600 store network.

On-Trend Targeted Product

We identify fashion trends timely and integrate these insights into on-trend product in our stores. For a more detailed
discussion please see the Overview in Item 7,

Brand Marketing

With approximately 4,600 stores, we have strong brand recognition. In 2006, we sold over 177 million pairs of footwear in
our Payless ShoeSource stores, making Payless one of the largest family footwear specialty retailers in the Western
Hemisphere by unit sales. We average nearly 600 million customer visits per year.

We have three primary marketing objectives which are 1o (i) effectively position the Payless brand, (ii) increase awareness and
drive traffic and transactions into our stores through a planned promational cadence; and (iii) create market excitement for our
brand through select public relations events. This is achieved by our multi-dimensional marketing efforts that include
nationally broadcast television, radio, on-line and magazine advertising to strengthen our established brand name, reinforce our
broad consumer recognition and support our promotional events. We regularly advertise on television, reaching households
across the nation, as well as through free-standing inserts delivered to approximately 25 million homes periodically during the
year, in order to support key promotional events. In addition to media support, we utilize in-store promotional materials,
including posters, signs and point of sale items, as well as our store associates to convey our message to the customer.

Our new brand essence, “Inspiring fun fashion possibilities for the family ... Payless,” is helping define Payless as the fun
fashion source for footwear and accessories for the family. In addition to our in-house marketing team, we collaborate with
outside creative and media services.

In June 2006, we officially launched the new Payless logo — the first redesign of the Payless logo in about 20 years — which
incorporates key design elements that leverage our rich heritage and communicates a “new and improved” Payless, a brand
that is contemporary, fun, friendly, and above all, stylish. The logo amplifies the Payless brand essence.




Shopping Experience
In 2006, Payless tested and launched two key new store design formats. These formats are called Hot Zones and Fashion Labs.

Hot Zones are a redesign of the front of our store that have experienced mid-to-high single digit percentage lift in same store
sales. In Hot Zones, new merchandise is grouped by style on new display tables and low gondolas in the front of the store.
This new store design format opens up the front of the store, provides better visibility, and allows for better display of new
fashion trends,

The Fashion Lab is a completely new store design that elevates the shopping experience and our status as a specialty store
destination. This new store design is more vibrant, engaging, and easier to navigate. Men and women’s footwear is organized
by style with easy-to-find sizes nearby. The children’s footwear section is still organized by size since this is how our
customers prefer to shop for children’s footwear.

We believe that our real estate strategy provides us with the ability to optimally locate our stores in places that are convenient
for large numbers of consumers, as well as the flexibility to react to shifts in consumer demographics. We strategically locate
our stores in a variety of retail formats to maximize convenience and accessibility for our broad consumer base, including
central business districts, shopping malls, free-standing buildings, strip centers, and leased departments within other retailers.
To maintain flexibility, we generally enter into leases with initial terms of five to ten years and either one or two renewal
options,

In 2006, it cost us approximately $270,000 in capital expenditures to open a new store. During 2007, we expect the average
capital costs for a new store to increase to approximately $330,000. During 2006, we opened 63 new stores. During the same
period, we closed 96 stores. In addition, we relocated 106 stores.

Efficient Operations

We review all of the significant operational elements of our business model to maximize financial returns. Recently, we
announced a plan to invest approximately $70 million over the next two years in a dual-distribution center model. Investing in
our business will remain a top priority. For a more detailed discussion please see the Overview in Item 7.

Experienced Management Team

Our management team is composed of seasoned retail executives. Qur 12 most senior executives have an average of 24 years
of retail experience. The five executive officers of Payless have been with the Company for an average of more than 15 years.

Our International Business

Since opening our first store in Canada in 1997, our international presence has grown substantially. As of year-end, we had
586 stores in 10 countries, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. In September 2000, we entered into a joint venture to
operate Payless ShoeSource stores in the Central American Region. In November 2001, we entered into a joint venture to
operate Payless ShoeSource stores in South America. In 2003, we entered into a joint venture with Nichimen Corporation
(which has since become Sojitz Corporation) to try the Payless concept in Japan. Under this arrangement, we opened our first
store in Japan in November 20{4. However, we ceased retail operations in Japan in 2006. We also wholesale footwear
internationally.




Stores

As of February 3, 2007, we operated a total of 4,572 stores in a single retail format, Payless ShoeSource. The domestic and
international segments are represented in the tables below.

Domestic Segment

Alaska 8 Louisiana 62 QOklahoma 46
Alabama 35 Massachusetts 97 Oregon 50
Arkansas 4] Maryland 72  Pennsylvania 162
Arizona 85 Maine 12 Rhode Island 14
California 543 Michigan 134 South Carolina 38
Colorado 55 Minnesota 49 South Dakota 16
Connecticut 47 Missouri 77 Tennessee 49
District of Columbia 8 Mississippi 48 Texas 393
Delaware 9 Montana 14 Utah 52
Florida 284 North Carolina 65 Virginia 81
Georgia 97 North Dakota 7 Vermont 7
Hawaii 17 Nebraska 34 Washington 87
Towa 34 New Hampshire 18 Wisconsin 78
Idaho 30 New Jersey 128 West Virginia 14
Illinois 192 New Mexico 28 Wyoming 5
Indiana 61 Nevada 34

Kansas 35 New York 257 Guam* 2
Kentucky 33 Ohio 141 Saipan* 1

Total Domestic Segment Store Count

*Guam and Saipan reflected as U.S. Territories

3,986




International Segment

Canada
Ontario 140
All Other 175
Total Canada 315
Central America
Costa Rica 22
Dominican Republic 16
El Salvador 22
Guatemala 35
Honduras 16
Nicaragua 12
Panama 18
Trinidad/Tobago 11
Total Central America 152

South America

Ecuador 31
Puerto Rico 83
U.S. Virgin Islands 5

Total International Segment Store Count 386

Payless ShoeSource® Stores

The average size of our Payless ShoeSource stores in the United States and Canada is approximately 3,200 square feet. The
average Payless ShoeSource store in the United States and Canada has between four and six associates, including a store
manager. During 2006, each Payless store in the United States and Canada carried on average approximately 7,200 pairs of
shoes. Payless ShoeSource stores operate in a variety of real estate formats, including shopping malls, central business
districts, free-standing buildings, strip centers, and leased departments in ShopKo stores. At year-end, 465 locations
incorporated a “Payless Kids” area which has approximately 974 additional square feet of selling space devoted to an
expanded assortment of children's shoes.

In 1999, we entered into a 10-year strategic alliance with ShopKo Stores, Inc., a discount retailer with stores primarily in the
Midwest, Western Mountain, and Pacific Northwest regions, through which we operate Payless ShoeSource shoe departments
within ShopKo® stores. This alliance provides an additional distribution channel for our products. As of year-end, there were
132 of these locations.

Our Central American and South American Regions operate in a variety of real estate formats, including shopping malls,
central business districts, free-standing buildings and strip centers. The average size of our Payless ShoeSource stores in the
Central American Region is approximately 2,500 square feet. The average size of our Payless ShoeSource stores in the South
American Region is approximately 2,900 square feet. At year-end, the average Payless ShoeSource store in the Central
American Region and South American Region typically has between five and six associates, including a store manager,
respectively.

Dyelights®™
We also operate a shoe dyeing facility through our Dyelights®™ business. Currently, Dyelights shoes are exclusively offered

through our Payless ShoeSource stores. Customers select the color they would like their shoes to be dyed from a color book.
The shoes are dyed to the Customer’s specifications and are available for pickup in approximately ten days at the Payless




ShoeSource store where ordered. Customers may also elect to pay a shipping cost and have the shoes delivered to their home
address.

Employees

As of February 3, 2007, we had approximately 27,100 employees, including approximately 11,350 U.S. and 1,100 Canadian
fuli-time associates and 12,900 U.S. and 1,000 Canadian part-time associates, as well as approximately 540 primarily full-time
associates in the Central American and South Armerican Regions and approximately 200 in Asia. Approximatety 475 of our
distribution center general warehouse associates and 140 of our other associates are covered by collective bargaining
agreements.

Store Management and Systems

All of our stores are equipped with electronic point of sale registers and a back office computer except the ShopKo locations
which are equipped only with a back office computer. The store computer can provide price look-up, daily communications
with our corporate headquarters and other functions. Store associates receive frequent communications through the back
office computer from our corporate headquarters describing promotional events, price changes, and time-sensitive operational
updates.

In general, each retail location is managed by a Store Manager and is assigned to a district. Store Managers report to District
Managers who, in turn, report to Directors of Retail Operations who have full responsibility for the stores in their region,
Human Resources, loss prevention, inventory control functions, accounting, logistics support, information technology, and
other more general support services are generally coordinated from our Topeka, Kansas corporate headquarters, In addition,
we have accounting offices in Costa Rica, Guatemala, El Salvador, Honduras, Nicaragua, Ecuador, Panama, and the
Dominican Republic that support the Central and South American Regions.

Competition

The retail footwear and accessories market is highly competitive. The retail footwear and accessories industry can be divided
into three segments: high, moderate and value-priced. The high-priced segment is comprised principally of department and
specialty stores. The moderate-priced segment, which includes specialty shoe chains, mass-merchandisers and mid-tier
department stores, has no single dominant competitor. The value-priced segment includes Payless and other large national
discount merchandisers.

With our breadth of assortment, we face a variety of competitive challenges from domestic and international footwear retailers,
including traditional shoe stores, department stores, branded discount stores, sporting goods retailers, direct retailers, and
mass-market discount retailers. In addition, many retailers who have not traditionally carried footwear have added various
footwear and accessories including seasonal, specialty and general footwear in their merchandise assortment.

The primary competitive levers to establish a point of differentiation in our industry are merchandise selection, flow and
timing, pricing, fashion, product quality and aesthetics, convenience and in-store experience. We seek to compete effectively
by getting to market with differentiated, trend-right merchandise before mass-market discounters such as Wal-Mart and Target
and at the same time as department and specialty retailers such as Sears, Kohl’s, J.C. Penney, Nine West and Foot Locker, but
at a more compelling value.

Seasonality

The domestic retail footwear market is characterized by four high volume seasons: Easter, early summer, back-to-schoel, and
winter. During each of these periods, we increase our inventory levels to support the increased demand for our products, as
well as offer styles particularly suited for the relevant season, such as sandals in the early summer season and boots during the
fall season. The retail footwear market in Central and South America is also seasonal and is characterized by stronger sales in
December and the back-to-school season.




Customer Service

Qur stores offer customers a broad assortment of quality footwear in a convenient self-selection format. Our self-selection
shopping format allows customers to select their own shoes or to seek help from one of our trained associates. Sales associates
are trained to use a device to measure feet, and to check key areas, such as the toe box, for proper fit. Our stores also offer on¢
of the broadest customer satisfaction guarantees in the industry: if a customer is not completely satisfied with a purchase, he or
she can return it, generally even if the item is worn. We believe our sales associates provide a level of customer service that is
generally not available in mass-market discount stores. Sales associates are trained to sell footwear and complementary
accessories, and to provide customers with the assistance needed to guide the purchase decision, support customer satisfaction
and to encourage return visits to our stores,

We continue to train all of our store associates on engaging customers in order to drive higher conversion rates. In 2006, we
converted more of our customer traffic into sales versus in the previous year. Our customer satisfaction metrics also trended
more favorably in 2006 than the previous year. Data on these metrics are gathered through company and third party survey
techniques.

Purchasing and Distribution
Purchasing

We procure products in two different ways. First, about half of our product is sourced through our direct distribution network.
And secondly, we engage third party agents to procure products which we cannot or do not want to procure ourselves.

Our direct distribution network is made up of development, sourcing, and transitional centers. These centers perform many
functions including: executing product direction from Topeka; generating samples; quality control; production management
and follow-up; and more. Our centers are closely aligned with large factories, which we rely on heavily, which serve as our
vendors. We typically give these factories specifications and performance standards and bid jobs out to multiple factories.
Approximately 15 core factories account for 70% of our footwear purchases. If any one of them were to be unable to supply
our needs consistent with prior performance, we might experience disruptions in shoe deliveries. However, we have about 100
factories with whom we do run-over and special approval business, and we believe these factories can fill production voids if
necessary. We believe our relationships with our factory base are good. Factories in the People’s Republic of China are a
direct source of approximately 96% of our footwear based on cost.

Products are manufactured to meet our specifications and standards. We do not purchase “seconds” or “overruns.” Our direct
distribution network is made up of facilities in the United States, Brazil, China, Hong Kong, Taiwan, and Vietnam.

Production Management and Quality Assurance

The production management organization manages an ongoing process to qualify and approve new factories, while continually
assessing existing factory service and quality of performance. New factories must meet specified quality and safety standards
for shoe production and minimum capacity requirements. They must also agree to our production control processes and certify
that neither they nor their suppliers use forced or child labor. Factory performance is regularly monitored. If a factory does
not continue to meet or exceed our requirements, the factory risks being removed from our list of approved factories. The
production management organization utilizes a unique, internally developed production control process by which we are
electronically linked to the factories and agents. This process is designed to ensure on-time deliveries of merchandise with
minimum lead time and at reduced costs.

Our quality assurance organization also provides technical design support for our direct purchasing function. It is responsible
for review and approval of agent and factory technical design, for worldwide laboratory testing of materials and components,
and for performing in-factory product inspections to ensure that materials and factory production techniques are consistent
with our specifications. We locate our field inspection personnel close to the factories and freight consolidation facilities we
use throughout the world.




Merchandise Distribution

We base our decisions on how to stock our stores using several criteria. We consider the customer profile of our store
locations based on demographics, shopping behavior and appetite for fashion. Also, we consider seasonality and climate by
geography which impacts the timing of our flow. In addition, we consider our stores’ sales volume, selling history, and the
categories of products they tend to sell when deciding how to stock our stores.

Our merchandise distribution system allows us to track shoes by pair from order placement through sale to the customer by the
use of perpetual inventory, product planning and sourcing systems. These systems are maintained by experienced information
systems personnel and are enhanced regularly to improve the product distribution process. Stores generally receive new
merchandise on average twice a week in an effort to maintain a constant flow of fresh and replenished merchandise.

We currently operate a single distribution center (including office space) and dyeing facility in Topeka, Kansas totaling
approximately 850,000 square feet. The distribution center sources our stores in the United States, Canada, Puerto Rico,
Guam and Saipan. It is capable of replenishing domestic in-store product levels by style, color and size. Qur Topeka
distribution center handles substantially all of our replenishments and operates seven days a week, 12 to 24 hours per day. Qur
remaining domestic distribution needs are handled by a third-party facility in Los Angeles, California. We utilize third-party
carriers to ship all products to and from our distribution centers. We also use a third-party distribution facility in Panama to
service our stores in the Central and South American Regions.

We are currently building a new distribution center model to better service our stores and customers which tend to cluster on
the borders and coasts of the U.S. We plan to operate one new distribution center in Redlands, California beginning in the
summer of 2007. In addition, we plan to operate a new distribution center east of the Mississippi river (in a location to be
determined} which will begin operation around June 2008. In 2008, when both new facilities are open and running to our
satisfaction, we will close the Topeka distribution center.

Inteltectual Property

TFhrough our wholly-owned subsidiaries, we own certain copyrights, trademarks, patents and domain names which we use in
our business and regard as valuable assets. The trademarks and service marks used in our business include Payless®, Payless
ShoeSource®, Payless Kids®, Dyelights®™, and various logos used on our Payless ShoeSource store signs and in advertising,
including our traditional yellow and orange signage and our new orange and blue circle “P” logos. The domain names include
Payless.com®, as well as derivatives of Payless ShoeSource. On May 18, 2006, we acquired from Jimlar Corporation the
rights to the trademarks American Eagle™ and AE™ for use on footwear and certain accessories, and related domain names.

In March, 2007, Payless ShoeSource announced its acquisition of privately held Collective International, LP (*Collective™), a
brand development, management and licensing company with a strong youth lifestyle and board sport-inspired brand portfolio
including Airwalk®, Vision Street Wear®, Lamar®, Sims®, LTD®, genetic™, Dukes®, Rage®, Ultra-Wheels®, and Skate
Attack®.

Collective’s focus is on the growing active sport lifestyle market driven predominantly by the skate- and snowboard-inspired
trends. The company is strongly positioned with its authentic brand portfolio that has consistently proven its ability to reach
both the younger consumer with strong ties to board sports, as well as appeal to the broad range of consumers drawn to this
established lifestyle and fashion.

The acquisition provides immediate brand leverage for Payless’ core footwear and accessories product lines in the youth
lifestyle, athletics and outdoor categories. It also facilitates building broad corporate intellectual property management and
brand development capabilities to create a diversified portfolio of brands serving discrete consumer segments across a range of
price points, categories, and sales channels. As well, with this acquisition, Payless is establishing a licensing business that will
provide growth cpportunities across multiple product categories in domestic and international markets to create new revenue
streams from wholesaling or licensing to other retatlers and third parties.

Payless has been a licensee of the Airwalk brand since 2003 and features the brand on a wide range of footwear and
accessories. Payless has helped drive Airwalk to be the number two skate footwear brand in America.




As of February 3, 2007, in the United States, we have approximately 200 pending registrations and applications for our
trademarks and service marks, as well as several common law marks, under which we market private label merchandise in our
Payless ShoeSource stores. We also have approximately 1,300 pending registrations and applications for our trademarks in
foreign countries. In addition, we have registrations or pending applications for the Payless ShoeSource mark in over 70
foreign registries.

Currently, we have agreements in place regarding the following brands: Champion®, which expires on June 30, 2015;
Airwalk®, which expires on January 31, 2015; Spalding®, which expires on June 1, 2008; and American Ballet Theatre ™,
which expires on January 31, 2010. In 2006, we entered into agreements with Disney Enterprises, Inc. for use of various
Disney properties and characters which expires on December 31, 2010, and Exeter Brands Group, LLC, a subsidiary of Nike
USA, Inc., for use of the Tailwind® brand on footwear and accessories, which expires on November 19, 2011. We have
agreements with Laura Poretzky, Lela Rose and Patricia Field for development, licensing, marketing and distribution of Laura
Poretzky’s Abaeté for Payless line, which expires on May 31, 2009; Lela Rose for Payless line, which expires on January 31,
2008, and the Patricia Field for Payless and/or Red Carpet Collection by Patricia Field lines, which expires on January 31,
2008. We also currently have the exclusive right to use the Dunkman® brand. We, through agents, also utilize various
character marks from time-to-time.

Environment

Compliance with federal, state and local statutes, rules, ordinances, laws and other provisions which have been enacted or
adopted regulating the discharge of materials into the environment, or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment,
have not had, and are not expected to have, a materiai effect on capital expenditures, eamings or our competitive position.

Payless Direct

In the fall of 1999, we launched payless.com to make Payless ShoeSource more accessible to our existing and new customers.
In addition to eCommerce sales and on-line marketing, payless.com provides a muiti-channel service to our stores by allowing
stores to order product from payless.com in the event that shoe is not available in a given store. Our eCommerce strategy is
evolving with the overall Payless strategy and brand positioning.

Available Information

We file or furnish our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports pursuant to Section 13¢a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with the SEC
electronically. Copies of any of these documents will be provided in print to any shareholder who submits a request in wriling
to Payless ShoeSource, Inc., ATTN Investor Relations, 3231 Southeast Sixth Avenue, Topeka KS 66607 or calls our Investor
Relations Department at (785) 559-6966. The public may read or copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Office
of Investor Education and Assistance at 100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0313. The public may obtain information
on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains a website that
contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the
SEC. The address of that site is http://www.sec.gov.

We maintain an investor relations website at www.paylessinfo.com. On our investor relations website, you can access free of
charge our reports that are filed with the SEC, the Guidelines for our Board of Directors, and the charters for the Board of
Directors, the Audit and Finance Committee and the Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee. In addition, we
maintain a website at www.payless.com where our customers can shop at their convenience. This website also provides a link
to our investor relations website. No portion of our Web site or the information contained in or connected to the Web site isa
part of, or incorporated into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Directors of the Company

Listed below are the names and present principal occupations or, if retired, most recent occupations of the Company’s
Directors:

Name Principal Occupation

Management Director

Matthew E. Rubel!'” Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company

Independent Directots

Howard R. Fricke!"""®

Daniel Boggan Jr.®
Judith K. Hofer
Mylle H. Mangum‘"*"
John F. McGovern'" ¢

Retired Chairman of the Board of the Security Benefit Group of
Companies

Retired Senior Vice President of the National Collegiate
Athletic Association

Retail Consultant

Chief Executive Officer of IBT Enterprises, LLC

Founder and Partner of Aurora Capital LLC and former

Executive Vice President/Chief Financial Officer of Georgia-
Pacific Corporation

President and Chief Operating Officer of PetSmart, Inc.

Retired Vice Chairman and Chief Administrative Officer of
Sara Lee Corporation

Chief Executive Officer and Director of Qakley, Inc,

Retired President and Chief Executive Officer of Express, a
subsidiary of Limited Brands, Inc. and non-executive
Chairman of Chicos FAS, Inc.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Hill’s Pet Nutrition,
Inc.

Robert F. Moran®
Michael E. Murphy?

David Scott Olivet®”
Michael A. Weiss™

Robert C. Wheeler™®

(1) Executive Committee member

(2) Non-Executive Chairman of the Board

(3) Audit and Finance Committee member

(4) Compensaticn, Nominating and Governance Committee member
* Chairman

Executive Officers of the Company

Listed below are the names and ages of the executive officers of the Company as of April 3, 2007 and offices held by them
with the Company.

Name Age Position and title

Matthew E. Rubel 49 Chief Executive Officer and President

Jay A. Lentz 63 Senior Vice President

Michael J. Massey 42 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Darrel J. Pavelka 51 Senior Vice President

Ullrich E. Porzig 61 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Matthew E. Rubel is 49 years old and has served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Payless since July 18, 2005.
Prior to joining Payless, Mr. Rubel was Chairman and Chief Executive QOfficer for Cole Haan from 1999 to July 2005. He
served as Executive Vice President, J. Crew Group and Chief Executive Officer of Popular Club Plan from 1994 to 1999, and
in November 1998, led the sale of Popular from J. Crew to Fingerhut. While at J. Crew Group, Mr. Rubel was responsible for
all licensing and international activities, as well as brand marketing and served on its Group Executive Committee. Mr. Rubel
has also served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Pepe Jeans USA, and President of the Specialty Division of
Revlon. Mr. Rubel has served as a Director of Payless since July 2005.




Jay A. Lentz is 63 years old and has served as Senior Vice President - Human Resources since May 2001. Prior to that he
was Vice President of Organization Development from 1992 to 2001; and 1985 to 1990. From 1990 to 1992 he served as
Senior Vice President of Human Resources for Payless Cashways Inc. He previously worked for Pizza Hut Inc., a division of
PepsiCo, Inc., as Senior Director of Management Development, Arthur Young Co. as Manager, Organization Development
Consulting, and The University of Missouri as a consulting psychologist.

Michael J. Massey is 42 years old and has served as Senior Vice President - General Counsel and Secretary since March
2004. Prior to that he served as Vice President of International Development during 2001, Vice President of Contract
Manufacturing during 2000, Vice President, Group Counsel Intellectual Property from 1998 to 2000, and Senior Counsel from
1996 to 1998. Prior to joining Payless, Mr. Massey was an attorney for The May Department Stores Company from 1990 to
1996.

Darrel J. Pavelka is 51 years old and has served as Senior Vice President - Merchandise Distribution, Planning and Supply
Chain since September 2004. Prior to that he was Senior Vice President - International Operations from March 2003 10
September 2004, He also served as Senior Vice President - Merchandise Distribution from 1999 to 2003, Vice President of
Retail Operations for Division R from 1997 to 1999, Vice President of Stores Merchandising from 1995 to 1997, Director of
Stores Merchandising from 1990 to 1995, Director of Distribution for Women's from 1987 to 1990, Manager of Stores
Merchandising for Division R from 1983 to 1987, and Manager of the Northeast store expansion from 1980 to 1983.

Ullrich E. Porzig is 61 years old and has served as Senior Vice President - Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since
February, 1996 and from 1986 to 1988, Between 1993 and 1996, Mr. Porzig was Senior Vice President-Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer of Petro Stopping Centers L.P. From 1982 to 1993 he was employed by The May Department Stores
Company in various capacities including Senior Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Foley's from 1988 to
1993,

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
We May be Unable to Compete Effectively in the Competitive Worldwide Footwear Retailing Industry

We face a variety of competitive challenges from other domestic and international footwear retailers, including a number of
competitors that have substantially greater financial and marketing resources than we do. These competitors include mass-
market discount retailers such as Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., and Target Corp.; department stores such as Sears, Kohl's Corp. and
1.C. Penney Company, Inc.; specialty retailers such as Nine West and Foot Locker; and branded discount stores such as DSW
and Shoe Pavilion. We compete with these footwear retailers on the basis of’

e developing fashionable, high-quality merchandise in an assortment of sizes, colors and styles that appeals
to our target consutners;

anticipating and responding to changing consumer demands in a timely manner;

ensuring product availability and optimizing supply chain effectiveness;

the pricing of merchandise; _

creating an acceptable value proposition for consumers;

providing an inviting, customer friendly shopping environment;

using a customer focused sales staff to provide attentive, product knowledgeable customer service; and

s providing strong and effective marketing support.

Competition in the retail footwear industry has increased. Mass-market discount retailers such as Wal-Mart aggressively
compete with us on the basis of price and have added significant numbers of locations, gaining market share as a result.
Accordingly, there is substantial pressure on us to maintain the value proposition of our footwear. In addition, it is possible
that mass-market discount retailers will increase their investment in their retail footwear operations, thereby achieving greater
market penetration and placing additional competitive pressures on our business. If we are unable to respond effectively to
these competitive pressures, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.



A Majority of our Operating Expenses are Fixed Costs that are not Dependent Upon our Sales Performance. Asa
result, Declines in our Operating Performance are Magnified because We are Largely Unable to Reduce Expenses in
Response to a Potential Sales Shortfall

A majority of our operating expenses are fixed costs that are not dependent on our sales performance, as opposed to variable
costs, which increase as sales performance increases. These fixed costs include the leasing costs of our stores, our interest
expenses and the majority of our labor expenses. If our sales were to decline, we would be unable to reduce these fixed
operating expenses in the short term. Accordingly, the effect of any sales decline is magnified because a larger percentage of
our earnings are committed to paying these fixed costs. As a result, our net earnings and cash flow would be disproportionately
negatively affected as a result of decline in sales.

We May be Unable to Maintain or Increase our Sales Volume and Margins

We have a substantial market presence in all 50 states and the District of Columbia and we currently derive approximately
86% of our revenue from our U.S. stores. Because of our substantial market presence, and because the U.S. footwear retailing
industry is mature, for us to increase our sales volume on a unit basis and margins in the United States, we must capture market
share from our competitors. We have attempted to capture additional market share through a variety of strategies; however, if
we are not successful we may be unable to increase or maintain our sales volumes and margins in the United States, adversely
affecting our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We Must Provide Consumers with Seasonally Appropriate Merchandise, Making Some of our Sales Dependent on
Seasonal Weather Conditions

The domestic retail footwear industry is characterized by four high volume seasons: Easter, early summer, back-to-school and
winter. During each of these seasons, we increase our inventory levels to support the increased demand for our products, as
well as offer styles particularly suited for the relevant season, such as sandals in the early summer scason and boots during the
winter season. If the weather conditions for a particular season vary significantly from those typical for such season, such as an
unusually cold early summer or an unusually warm winter, consumer demand for the seasonally appropriate merchandise that
we have available in our stores could be adversely affected and negatively impact net sales and margins, Lower demand for
seasonally appropriate merchandise may leave us with an excess inventory of our seasonally appropriate products and/or basic
products, forcing us to sell both types of products at significantly discounted prices and adversely affect our net sales margins
and operating cash flow. Consequently, our results of operations are highly dependent on relatively predictable weather
conditions.

We May be Unable to Adjust to Constantly Changing Fashion Trends

Our success depends, in large part, upon our ability to gauge the evolving fashion tastes of our consumers and to provide
merchandise that satisfies such fashion tastes in a timely manner. The worldwide retailing footwear industry fluctuates
according to changing fashion tastes and seasons, and merchandise usually must be ordered well in advance of the season,
frequently before consumer fashion tastes are evidenced by consumer purchases. In addition, the cyclical nature of the
worldwide footwear retailing industry also requires us to maintain substantial levels of inventory, especially prior to peak
selling seasons when we build up our inventory levels. As a result, if we fail to property gauge the fashion tastes of
consumers, or to respond in a timely manner, this failure could adversely affect retail and consumer acceptance of our
merchandise and leave us with substantial unsold inventory. If that occurs, we may be forced to rely on markdowns or
promotionat sales to dispose of excess, slow-moving inventory, which would negatively impact financial results.

The Worldwide Footwear Retailing Industry is Heavily Influenced by General Economic Cycles
Footwear retailing is a cyclical industry that is heavily dependent upon the overall level of consumer spending. Purchases of
footwear and related goods tend to be highly correlated with the cycles of the levels of disposable income of our consumers.

As a result, any substantial deterioration in general economic conditions could adversely affect our net sales and results of
operations.
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We May be Unsuccessful in Opening New Stores or Relocating Existing Stores to New Locations, Adversely Affecting
our Ability to Grow

Our growth is largely dependent upon our ability to expand our retail operations by opening and operating new stores, as well
as relocating existing stores to new locations, on a profitable basis. In 2006, we opened 169 new Payless ShoeSource stores, of
which 106 were relocations.

Our ability to open new stores and relocate existing stores to new locations on a timely and profitable basis is subject to
various contingencies, some of which are beyond our control. These contingencies include our ability to:

locate suitable store sites;

negotiate acceptable lease terms;

build-out or refurbish sites on a timely and cost effective basis;
hire, train and retain qualified managers and personnel;

obtain adequate capital resources; and

successfully integrate new stores into our existing operations.

In addition, the opening of stores outside of the United States is subject to a number of additional contingencies, including
compliance with local laws and regulations and cultural issues and, because we operate a number of our international stores
under joint ventures, issues may arise in our dealings with our joint venture partners or their compliance with the joint venture
agreements.

We may be unsuccessful in opening new stores or relocating existing stores for any of these reasons. In addition, we cannot
assure you that, even if we are successful in opening new stores or relocating existing stores, those stores will achieve levels of
sales and profitability comparable to our existing stores.

We Rely on Third Parties to Manufacture and Distribute Our Products

We depend on contract manufacturers to manufacture the merchandise that we sell in our stores. If these contract
manufacturers are unable to secure sufficient supplies of raw materials, or maintain adequate manufacturing and shipping
capacity, they may be unable to provide us with timely delivery of products of acceptable quality. In addition, if the prices
charged by these contractors increase for reasons such as increases in the price of raw materials, increases in labor costs or
currency fluctuations, our cost of manufacturing would increase, adversely affecting our results of operations. We also depend
on third parties to transport and deliver our products. Due to the fact that we do not have any independent transportation or
delivery capabilities of our own, if these third parties are unable to transport or deliver our products for any reason, or if they
increase the price of their services, including as a result of increases in the cost of fuel, our operations and financial
performance may be adversely affected.

We require our contract manufacturers to meet our standards in terms of working conditions and other matters before we are
willing to contract with them to manufacture our merchandise. As a result, we may not be able to obtain the lowest possible
manufacturing costs. In addition, any failure by our contract manufacturers to meet these standards, to adhere to labor or other
laws or to diverge from our mandated labor practices, and the potential negative publicity relating to any of these events, could
harm our business and reputation.

We do not have long-term agreements with any of our contract manufacturers, and any of these manufacturers may unilaterally
terminate their relationship with us at any time. There is also substantial competition among footwear retailers for quality
manufacturers. To the extent we are unable to secure or maintain relationships with quality manufacturers, our business could
be harmed.
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There are Risks Associated with Our Importation of Products

We import finished merchandise into the United States and the other countries in which we operate from the People's Republic
of China and seven other countries. Substantially all of this imported merchandise is subject to:

- customs duties and tariffs imposed by the governments of countries into which this merchandise is imported;
and

- penalties imposed for, or adverse publicity relating to, violations of labor and wage standards by foreign
contractors.

The United States and countries in which our merchandise is manufactured or imported may from time to time impose
additional new quotas, tariffs, duties or other restrictions on our merchandise or adversely change existing restrictions or
interpretation regarding the application timing. Any such changes could adversely affect our ability to import, and/or the cost
of, our products and the results of operations of our business or interpretations of these items.

Manufacturers in China are our major suppliers. China was a direct source of approximately 96% of our merchandise based on
cost during 2006. In addition to the products we import directly, a significant amount of the products we purchase from other
suppliers has been imported from China. Any deterioration in the trade relationship between the United States and China or
any other disruption in our ability to import footwear, accessories, or other products from China could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

In addition to the risks of foreign sourcing stemming from international trade laws, there are also operational risks of relying
on such imported merchandise. Our ability to successfully import merchandise derived from foreign sources into the United
States is dependent on stable labor conditions in the major ports of the United States. Any instability or deterioration of the
domestic labor environment in these ports, such as the work stoppage at West Coast ports in 2002, could result in increased
costs, delays or disruption in product deliveries that could cause loss of revenue, damage to customer relationships or
materially affect our business.

If we are unable to maintain our current Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism (“C-TPAT”) status, it would increase
the time it takes to get products into our stores. Such delays could materially impact our ability to move the current product in
our stores to meet customer demand.

Our International Operations are Subject to Political and Economic Risks .

In 2006, approximately 14% of our sales were generated outside the United States and almost all of our merchandise was
manufactured outside the United States. We are accordingly subject to a number of risks relating to doing business
internationally, any of which could significantly harm our business, including:

political and economic instability;

exchange controls and currency exchange rates;

foreign tax treaties and policies; and

restrictions on the transfer of funds to and from foreign countries.

Our financial performance on a U.S, dollar denominated basis is also subject to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. These
fluctuations could cause our results of operations to vary materially.

From time to time, we may enter into agreements secking to reduce the effects of our exposure to currency fluctuations, but
these agreements may not be effective in reducing our exposure to currency fluctuations or may not be available at a cost
effective price.

We May be Unable to Effectively Protect Our Trademarks and Other Intellectoal Property Rights

Our trademarks and other intellectual property rights are important to our success and competitive position. If we were to lose
or were unable to effectively protect such intellectual property rights, our business could be adversely affected.
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We are Subject to Liability if We Infringe the Trademarks or Other Intellectual Property Rights of Third Parties

We are subject to liability if we infringe the trademarks or other intellectual property rights of third parties. If we were to be
found liable for any such infringement, we could be required to pay substantial damages and could be subject to injunctions
preventing further infringement. If this were to happen, it could have a substantial adverse effect on our business. See also
“Legal Proceedings,” included in this Form 10-K.

We Rely on Brands We Do Not Own

We are increasing our reliance on brands, some of which we do not own. During the last fiscal year, approximately 23% of
our revenues were derived from brands that we did not own. Currently, we have agreements in place regardmg the following
brands: Champion®, which expires on June 30, 2015; Airwalk®, which expires on January 31 2015; Spalding®, which expires
on June 1, 2008; American Ballet Theatre ™, which expires on January 31, 2010; Tailwind ®, which expires on November 19,
2011; and various Disney properties and characters, which expires on December 31, 2010. We through our agents, also
utilize various character marks from time-to-time. If we are unable to renew or replace any brand or character that accounts for
a significant portion of its revenue, our results could be adversely affected.

Adverse Occurrences at Our Topeka Distribution Center Could Negatively Impact Our Business

We operate a distribution center in Topeka, Kansas, which serves as the main source of replenishment of inventory for our
stores. In comparison to our total distribution network, the distribution needs of our stores are heavily dependent on products
delivered through our Topeka distribution center. If complications arise with our Topeka distribution center or our Topeka
distribution center is severely damaged or destroyed, our other distribution centers may not be able to support the resulting
additional distribution demands and we may be unable to locate alternative persons or entities capable of doing so. This may
adversely affect our ability to deliver inventory to our stores on a timely basis, which could adversely affect our results of
operations,

Integration Risks of New Distribution Facilities Could Negatively Impact Our Business

If we are unable to smoothly transition product flow from one distribution facility in the United States to two facilities in the
United States, there could be delays in shipping products to stores. If product arrives late in the selling cycle, we could be
forced to mark down or use other promotions to liquidate such inventory which could adversely affect the net sales, margins
and operating cash flow.

We May Be Unable to Attract and Retain Talented Personnel

Our success is dependent upon our ability to attract and retain qualified and talented individuals. If we are unable o attract or
retain key executives, including senior management, marketing and merchandising personnel, it could adversely affect our
business.

Prolonged Work Steppages Could Adversely Affect our Results of Operations

At the end of 2006, approximately 600 of our employees, including substantially all of our non-management employees at our
Topeka distribution center, are covered by four separate collective bargaining agreements that expire between 2007 and 2009.
We cannot assure you that these agreements will be renewed on similar terms or renegotiated on acceptable terms. Any
prolonged work stoppages in one or more of our facilities could materially adversely affect our results of operations. Although
there have been no work stoppages or disruptions since the inception of these collective bargaining agreements, we cannot
assure you that there will be no disruptions in the future.

If more of our employees unionize, it could result in demands that may increase our operating expenses and adversely affect
our profitability. If any group of our employees were to unionize and we were unable to reach agreement on the terms of their
collective bargaining agreement or we were to experience widespread employee dissatisfaction, we could be subject to work
slowdowns or stoppages. In addition, we may be subject to disruptions by organized labor groups protesting the non-union
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status of the majority of our employees. Any of these events would be disruptive to our operations and could harm our
business.

An Outbreak of Asian Flu or Other Similar Infectious Diseases May Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Ability to
Purchase Merchandise from Manufacturers and Qur Qperations Generally

An outbreak and spread of infectious diseases such as Asian flu in Southern China and other countries in which our
manufacturers are located could impact the availability or timely delivery of merchandise. Although our ability to purchase and
import our merchandise has not been negatively impacted to date, an outbreak of infectious diseases could prevent the
manufacturers we use from manufacturing our merchandise or hinder our ability to import those goods to the countries in
which our stores are located, either of which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease substantially all of our stores. Our leases typically have an initial term of five or ten years, and either one or two
renewal options. During 2007, approximately 987 of our leases are due to expire. This includes 263 leases that, as of
February 3, 2007, were month-to-month tenancies and 321 lease modifications that are pending execution (of the 321 pending
meodifications, 157 are currently month-to-month). Leases usually require payment of base rent, applicable real estate taxes,
common area expenses and, in some cases, percentage rent based on the store's sales volume,

Payless ShoeSource stores average 3,200, 2,500 and 2,900 square feet in the United States and Canada, the Central American
Region, and the South American Region, respectively. We operate a 305,000 square foot world headquarters building and
850,000 square foot distribution facility including office space and an adjacent 12,000 square foot dyeing facility, all of which
are located in Topeka, Kansas. We also lease office space in Toronto, Ontario, Canada; Topeka, Kansas, New York, New
York; and at various international locations to support our sourcing, accounting and store operations.

On October 5, 2006, we, through a subsidiary, entered into a lease for a portion of a building to be used by us as a warehouse /
distribution facility. The facility is approximately 415,000 square feet and is located in Redlands, California. The initial lease
term is for 15 years, with two five-year options to extend the lease term. The lease also provides us the right to purchase the
entire building prior to the landlord selling the building to an unrelated third party, and the right of us to terminate the lease
after 10 years with proper notice and a penalty payment to the landlord. In addition, we will open and operate a new
distribution center east of the Mississippi river (in a location to be determined} which is expected to begin operation in the
summer of 2008. In 2008, when both new facilities are open and running to our satisfaction, we plan to close the Topeka
distribution center.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Other than as described below, there are no material pending legal proceedings other than ordinary, routine litigation incidental
to the business to which we are a party or of which any of our property is subject.

On or about February 5, 2004, a complaint was filed against us in the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California,
captioned K-Swiss, Inc. v. Payless ShoeSource, Inc. The Complaint seeks injunctive relief and unspecified monetary damages
for trademark and trade dress infringement, trademark dilution and unfair competition. On May 14, 2003, a First Amended
Complaint was filed, to include a breach of contract claim. We believe we have meritorious defenses to the claims asserted in
the lawsuit and have filed an answer. A pre-trial conference was held on November 13, 2006, during which the trial judge
indicated that he was transferring the case to a new judge for all further proceedings. The case subsequently was assigned to
Judge George P. Schiavelli and a status conference was held on January 29, 2007. During that status conference, Judge
Schiavelli set a February 5, 2008 trial date, with the pretrial conference to be held on January 7, 2008. On October 12, 2006,
we filed a suit against St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company (“St. Paul”), in Kansas state court seeking damages and a
declaratory judgment that St. Paul is obligated to provide coverage in connection with the underlying lawsuit brought by K-
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Swiss. On Qctober 18, 2006, St. Paul filed a separate declaratory judgment action in the U.S. District Court for the Central
District of California seeking a declaration that there is no coverage for the underlying lawsuit. We have moved to dismiss the
California action filed by St. Paul, which was granted on February 12, 2007. On November 2, 2006, St. Paul removed the
action from state court to the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas. Also, on November 2, 2006, St. Paul moved to
transfer the Kansas action to the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California, which was denied on January 10,
2007. On January 23, 2007, St. Paul filed a motion to stay the Kansas Action until the underlying lawsuit is resolved, which
was granted on March 2, 2007. An estimate of the possible loss, if any, or the range of the loss cannot be made. However, the
ultimate resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

On or about December 20, 2001, a First Amended Complaint was filed against us in the U.S. District Court for the District of
Oregon, captioned adidas America, Inc. and adidas-Salomon AG v. Payless ShoeSource, Inc. The First Amended Complaint
secks injunctive relief and unspecified monetary damages for trademark and trade dress infringement, unfair competition,
deceptive trade practices and breach of contract. We believe we have meritorious defenses to claims asserted in the lawsuit and
have filed an answer and a motion for summary judgment which the court granted in part. On June 18, 2004, the plaintiff
appealed the District Court’s ruling on the motion for summary judgment. On January 5, 2006, the 9" Circuit Court of Appeals
entered an order reversing the District Court’s partial summary judgment order. We requested a rehearing en banc, which was
denied by the 9" Circuit Court of Appeals. On June 29, 2006, we filed a petition for writ of certiorari to the United States
Supreme Court, which was denied on October 2, 2006. On August 22, 2006, the District Court entered an amended
scheduling order setting an August 14, 2007 trial date. An estimate of the possible loss, if any, or the range of loss cannot be
made. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

On or about April 3, 2006, Crocs Inc. filed two companion actions against several manufacturers of foam clog footwear
asserting claims for patent infringement, trade dress infringement, and unfair competition, One complaint was filed before the
United States International Trade Commission (“ITC”) in Washington D.C. The other complaint was filed in federal district
court in Colorado. Collective Licensing International LLC (“Collective™), who licenses Airwalk® brand to us, was named as a
Respondent in the [TC Investigation, and as a Defendant in the Colorado federal court action. We have not been named in
either matter, however, we owe certain indemnity obligations to Collective under our licensing agreement. The ITC published
notice in the Federal Register on May 8, 2006, announcing that it is commencing an investigation into the allegations
contained in Crocs’ complaint. In accordance with federal faw, the Colorado federal court action will be stayed pending the
outcome of the ITC investigation. A motion to stay the Colorado federal court action was filed on May 12, 2006, Before the
ITC, Crocs seeks an order and injunction prohibiting any of the respondents from importing or selling any imported shoes that
infringe on Crocs’ patent and trade dress rights. In the federal court action, which, as noted above, will be stayed, Crocs seeks
damages and injunctive relief prohibiting the defendants from infringing on Crocs’ intellectual property rights. On November
7, 2006, the Administrative Law Judge in the ITC action entered an order granting summary judgment of non-infringement of
design patent No. 0517,589 in favor of Collective and the other remaining respondents. Further, because Crocs' expert and
fact witnesses admitted that the recent versions of the shoes of all respondents did not infringe the separate utility patent at
issue, Crocs proposed that the trial, which was to commence on November 13, 2006, be continued pending review. All
respondents agreed not to oppose Crocs' request 1o continue the trial and on November 8, 2006, the Administrative Law Judge
entered an order on Crocs' motion postponing the trial indefinitely pending review of the summary judgment motion by the
ITC. On December 21, 2006, the ITC decided to review, in part, the initial determination granting summary determination of
non-infringement of design patent No. D517,589. On February 15, 2007, the ITC vacated the initial determination and
remanded for further proceedings. On February 22, 2007, the Administrative Law Judge entered an order extending the date
for completion of the investigation to August 11, 2008; affirming his previous narrow claim construction of design patent No.
D517,789; and rejecting the claim construction proposed by Crocs. Also, under this order, hearing has been set for January 14
— 18, 2008, and the deadline for an initial determination by the Administrative Law Judge is April 11, 2008. We believe we
have meritorious defenses to the claims asserted in the lawsuits and have filed an answer. An estimate of the possible loss, if
any, or the range of loss cannot be made. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect
on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the 14 weeks ended February 3, 2007,
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

There were approximately 12,100 registered holders of the Company’s Common Stock as of February 3, 2007, compared to
approximately 12,700 registered holders as of January 28, 2006.

Common Stock and Market Prices

The Company’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol PSS. The quarterly
intraday price ranges of the common stock in 2006 and 2005 were:

2006 2005
Fiscal Quarter High Low High Low
First 5 2439 § 2064 3 16.09 § 11.49
Second 27.80 20.36 21,71 13.37
Third 28.80 22.07 20,18 15.02
Fourth 35.14 25.76 25.74 17.50

Year $ 3514 § 20,36 $ 2574 3 11.49

We have not paid a cash dividend on outstanding shares of common stock since our spin-off from The May Department Stores
Company. We are subject to certain restrictions contained in our senior secured revolving credit facility and the Indenture
governing our 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes which restrict our ability to pay dividends. We do not currently plan to pay
any cash dividends.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On May 27, 2004, May 26, 2005, and May 25, 2006, 2,215 shares, 4,150 shares, and 5,865 shares, respectively, were credited
to Directors” accounts under the Company’s Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Management Directors as the annual restricted
stock grant portion of their director’s fees. In addition, the following directors received a prorated director’s fee based on their
date of election as a director during the year: Ms. Hofer received 3,347 shares on July 23, 2004; Mr. Weiss received 2,013
shares on January 27, 2005; Mr. Olivet received 1,340 shares on September 21, 2006; and Mr. Moran received 412 shares on
March 1, 2007. Each director is permitted to defer receipt of a portion of their compensation including their annual restricted
stock grant pursuant to the Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Management Directors. In the past three years,
non-management directors have deferred an aggregate of 67,082 shares under the Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-
Management Directors. These grants were made as partial compensation for the recipients’ services as directors. The offer and
issuance of these securities are exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, as transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering or alternatively, registration
of such shares was not required because their issuance did not involve a “sale” under Section 2(3) of the Securities Act of
1933,
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information about purchases by the Company {and its affiliated purchasers) during the quarter
ended February 3, 2007, of equity securities that are registered by the Company pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act;

Total Number Approximate Dollar
of Shares Purchased Value of Shares
Tatal Number as Part of Publicly that May Yet Be
of Shares Announced Plans Purchased Under the
Purchased ! Average Price or Programs Plans or Programs
Period (in thousands)  Paid per Share (in thousands) {in millions)
10/28/06 - 11/25/06 2 % 27.24 - S 76.9
11/26/06 - 12/30/06 530 32.14 529 59.9
12/31406 - 02/03/07 613 33.63 612 39.3
Total 1,145 § 32.93 1,141 $ 393 @

——

(1) Includes an aggregate of approximately four thousand shares of our common stock that was repurchased in connection with our
employee stock purchase and stock incentive plans.

{2) In 2001, our Board of Directors approved the repurchase of our common stock having a value of up to $250 million in the aggregate
pursuant to the Program. Cn March 6, 2007, we announced that on March 2, 2007, our Board of Directors authorized an aggregate of
$250 million of share repurchases. The timing and amount of share repurchases, if any, are limited by the terms of our Credit Agreement
and Senior Subordinated Notes.

New York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Matters

As a listed Company with the NYSE, the Company is subject to certain Corporate Governance standards as required by the
NYSE and/or the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required by
Section 303A.12(a} of The New York Stock Exchange Listing Standards relating to the Company’s compliance with The New
York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Listing Standards was submitted to the NYSE on June 21, 2006. Also, included
as Exhibits to this Form 10-K are the required certifications by the Company’s CEO and CFO pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Sections 302 and 906.
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The graph below compares the cumulative total stockholder return on Payless Common Stock against the cumulative returns of
the Standard and Poor’s Corporation Composite Index (the “S&P 500 Index”), and the Peer Group, some of which are
competitors and many of which were used in determining bonuses under the Company’s performance based incentive plans.

Comparison of Five Fiscal Year Cumulative Returns of the Company,
the S&P 500 Index and Peer Group

»

Doliars
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%, e, o P, o “,,

[ —e—PAYLESS SHOES, NC. —d— S&P 500 @ Pear Group

Investment Value at End of Fiscal Year:

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Payless ......cocvvriemesisssie s 100.00 81.63 68.78 58.85 121.60 178.92
S&P 500 ....... . 100.00 76.98 103.59 110.02 121.43 139.04
Peer Group........coovvcominiicinnnninens 100.00 89.07 123.03 147.37 140.00 158.82

The graph assumes $100 was invested on February 2, 2002, (the end of fiscal 2001) in Payless Common Stock, in the S&P 500
Index, and the Peer Group and assumes the reinvestment of dividends.

Companies comprising the Peer Group are: The Gap, Inc., Limited Brands, Inc., Ross Stores, Inc., The TJIX Companies, Inc.,

Brown Shoe Company, Inc., Footstar, Inc., Genesco Inc., Shoe Carnival, Inc., The Finish Line, Inc., Foot Locker, Inc., and
The Stride Rite Corporation.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Our summary consolidated financial information set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included

elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

{dollars in millions, except per share; shares in thousands)

Fiscal Year'”
2006™ 2005 2004 2003 2002

Statements of Earnings (Loss) Data:

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Restructuring charges (benefits)®

Operating profit from continuing operations

Interest expense

Interest income

Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes
and minority interest

Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Eamings from continuing aperations before
mingtity interest

Minority interest, net of income taxes

Net earnings from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
and minority interest™®

Net earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of

income taxes and minority interest™

Net eamings (loss)

Diluted eamings (loss) per share:
Eamings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

Diluted earnings (loss) per share before cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Average shares outstanding - diluted
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital
Property and equipment, net
Total assets
Total long-term debi™
Total equity®

" Other Financial Data:
Capital expenditures
Present value of operating leases
Net retail sales growth, continuing operations
Same-store sales growth, continuing operations
Return on equity, including discontinued operations
Retumn on net assets, including discontinued operations
Retumn on invested capital, continuing operations
Stores open (at year-end)

(7)

$ 2,796.7 $  2,6657 § 26562 $ 26624 £ 2,7361

1,821.0 17771 1,836.5 1,920.9 1,883.5
975.7 888.6 819.7 741.5 852.6
808.5 767.1 730.0 715.7 663.0

0.8 3.8 24.9 0.2) 2.1
166.4 117.7 64.8 26.0 187.5
19.2 19.7 22.1 207 23.5
(22.7) (12.3) (5.3) (3.9) (4.3)
169.9 1103 48.0 9.2 168.3
39.9 30.8 132 (4.0) 60.8
130.0 79.5 34.8 132 107.5
4.6) (3.0) 2.3 37 3.0
125.4 76.5 37.1 16.9 110.5
(3.4) (6.0) (39.1) (17.0) (4.6)
122.0 70.5 (2.0) 0.1) 105.9
- {4.1) - - -
$ 1220 $ 66.4 8 20) $ 01 $ 1059

s 1.87 b 1.13 $ 0.55 $ 0.25 $ .62

(0.05) (0.09) (0.58) (0.25) (0.07)
1.82 1.04 (0.03) . 1.55
- {0.06) - - -
s 182 $ 0.98 $ (003 8 - $ 155
66,974 67,854 68,020 68,031 68,383

$ 5263 8 516.0 5 3916 5 3679 5 2910

421.2 385.1 421.2 423.3 408.1
1,427.4 1,314.5 1,239.8 1,204.3 1,169.0
202.1 204.6 204.6 203.7 2239
700.1 652.0 595.0 604.4 595.1

§ 1186 $ 64.3 5 192.0 3 107.7 $ 97.0

1,011.8 945.7 1,0182 979.8 918.4
49 % 04 % 0.2) % 2.7} % 0.3)
35 % 24 % (0.8) % (3.3) % (2.6)
18.7 % 112 % (0.3) % - % 2.8
123 % 99 % 44 % 44 % 148
145 % 103 % 58 % 46 % 15.0

4,572 4,605 4,640 5,042 4,992
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(1)  All years include 52 weeks, except 2006, which includes 53 weeks. During 2003, we changed the reporting for our operations in the Central and South
American Regions to use a December 31 year-end.

(2) In 2006, 2005 and 2004, the restructuring activity relates to our decision to exit all Parade, Peru and Chile stores, as well as 264 Payless ShoeSource
stores. We also eliminated approximately 200 management and administrative positions. In 2003 and 2002, the restructuring activity relates to changes in
estimated net costs associated with the restructuring charge recorded in 2001 in connection with our decision to close certain domestic division offices, as
well as approximately 100 under-performing stores.

(3) During 2006, we exited retail operations in Japan and closed its one store location. The financial results for retail operations in Japan have been reflected
as discontinued operations for all periods presented. In addition, as a result of the 2004 restructuring, the results of operations for Parade, Peru, Chile and
26 Payless closed stores are classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

(4) As discussed in Note 20 “Change in Accounting Principle™ under the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in ltem 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data" of this Form 10-K, we adopted FASB Interpretation No, 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations - An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143," during the fourth quarter of 2005.

{5) Excluded from total long-term debt for all periods are demand notes payable entered inte to finance our subsidiaries in the Central American Region,
which totaled $2.0 million at February 3, 2007. We maintain certificates of deposit, which totaled $2.0 million at February 3, 2007, in amounts equal to
those demand notes, as compensating balances to collateralize those notes payable. The certificates of deposit are reflected as restricted cash in our
consolidated balance sheets found elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

(6) During 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006, we repurchased $2.1 million (108 thousand shares}, $1.7 million (117 thousand shares), $11.4 miltion (938
thousand shares), $71.2 million (3.3 million shares), and $129.3 million (5.0 million shares), respectively, of common stock under our stock repurchase
programs and in connection with cur employee stock purchase, deferred compensation and stock incentive plans.

{7) Same-store sales are presented on a 52 week comparing basis for alt years. Same-store sales are calculated on a weekly basis and exclude liquidation
sales. [fa store is open the entire week in each of the two years being corpared, its sales are included in the same-store sales calculation for that week.
Relocated and remodeled stores are also included in the same-store sales calculation if they were open during the entire week in each of the two years
being compared. The same-store sales calculation excludes the South American and Central American Regions.

(8) During 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No 123(R}, “Share-Based Payment.” See Note 2 “Share-Based Compensation”
under the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in ltem 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Overview

We are the largest specialty family footwear retailer by number of locations in the Western Hemisphere with retail stores in the
United $tates, Canada, the Caribbean, and the Central and South American Regions. The Central American Region is
composed of operations in Costa Rica, the Dominican Repubtlic, E! Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Nicaragua, Panama and
Trinidad & Tobago. The South American Region is composed of operations in Ecuador. Our stores offer fashionable, quality,
private label and branded footwear and accessories for women, men and chitdren at affordable prices in a self-selection
shopping format.

During 2006, we exited retail operations in Japan, closing our one store location. The financial information for our Japan retail
operations has been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. During 2004, we substantially completed a
series of strategic initiatives as part of a restructuring plan designed to sharpen our focus on our core business strategy, reduce
expenses, accelerate decision-making, increase profitability, improve our operating margin and build value for stockholders
over the long-term. The strategic initiatives included: 1) closing all Parade stores and related operations, 2) the sale of Chile
and Peru entities, 3) closing of approximately 260 Payless ShoeSource stores, 4) ceasing wholesaling businesses with no
significant growth opportunity, and 5) eliminating approximately 200 management and administrative positions. As a result of -
the restructuring, we have reflected the financial information of the Parade, Peru and Chile stores and 26 of the Payless closed
stores as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Unless otherwise noted, the amounts and
discussions included in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations relate to
continuing operations.

Fiscal year 2006 contains 53 weeks. For the fiscal year 2006, total sales increased 4.9% or $131.0 million, to $2.8 billion, over
the prior year. Sales in the 53rd week of 2006 were $36.4 million. On a 52 week comparing basis, same-store sales increased
3.5%. We achieved positive same-store sales growth in all four quarters of the fiscal year 2006. During 2006, we sold
approximately 2.4% less foatwear units than the prior year, but our footwear average selling price per unit was approximately
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8.8% higher. Gross margin was 34,9% of sales in 2006, versus 33.3% in the prior year primarily due to more favorable initial
mark-on. The combination of sales growth with solid margin improvement contributed to an improvement of $48.7 million in
operating profit from continuing operations between years.

Our cash and cash equivalents balance at the end of 2006 was $371.4 million, a decrease of $6.8 million from 2003. Short-
term investments at the end of 2006 were $90.0 million, an increase of $31.0 million from 2005. Total inventories at the end of
2006 were $361.9 million, an increase of $29.3 million from the prior year. The increase was primarily driven by the timing of
receipts for the Easter holiday selling season and an increase in raw materials due to a higher percentage of products sourced
directly by the Company. On a per store basis, store inventory was virtually flat comparing 2005 to 2006.

Our strategy is focused on four key elements; on-trend, targeted product; effective brand marketing; a great shopping
experience; and efficient operations. QOur mission is to become the first choice for style and value in footwear and accessories
for our target consumers, Creating an emotional connection with our target consumers is central to our overall strategy.

By offering on-trend targeted product, we successfully build a connection with our customers, We interpret fashion trends
timely and translate this into on-trend product in our stores through an extensive due diligence process. Beginning about a
year in advance, we review key fashion markets in Europe and the U.S. We employ trend services and examine the industry’s
ready-to-wear forecasts. Then, we test product. By doing so, we gain valuable intelligence well in advance of the seasons’
arrival, We refine our ideas, commit to a product assortment, and display that assortment in our stores at about the same time
as other fashion-conscious higher-priced competitors. Customers demand on-trend products, but have different definitions of
what that means. So we inspire possibilities for the classic woman, the fashion woman, for juniors, and for children.
Importantly, we believe customers can be on-trend at a great value. Customers will always find segmented pricing at Payless
with good-better-best price points. Through elements of promotion and pricing tiers, we plan to maintain market share with
budget-oriented shoppers while driving the opportunity to increase market share with expressive customers. Customers
believe Payless delivered greater value in 2006 versus 2005 in spite of higher 2006 average retails because, in large part, we
offered more on-trend products.

The next component of our strategy is brand marketing effectiveness, and the development of a “House of Brands”
architecture in our overall Payless brand positioning. We intend to build, license or buy appropriate aspirational brands to
cover all of our major customer segments. As we continue to increase the proportion of branded footwear in our assortment,
we will have more pricing flexibility to increase the average selling price per unit. On March 6, 2007, we entered into an
agreement to acquire 100% of the partnership interest of Collective International, LP (*Collective™) for $91 million in cash,
excluding transaction costs and subject to customary purchase price adjustments to reflect current assets and tota) liabilities at
closing. Collective is a brand development, management and licensing company that currently licenses the Airwalk® brand to
us. This transaction closed on March 30, 2007. This transaction, combined with the acquisition of the American EagleTM
brand, our designer partnerships with Laura Poretsky and Lela Rose, our direct-to-retail licensing agreement with Disney
Enterprises, Inc., and our alliance with Exeter Brands Group LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nike, Inc., to launch a new
brand of performance athletic shoes called Tailwind®, are examples of this strategy that will continue to be implemented over a
period of years. In June 2006, we officially launched the new Payless logo, which incorporates key design elements that
leverage our heritage and communicate a “new and improved™ Payless, a brand that is contemporary, fun, friendly and above
all, stylish. The logo amplifies the new Payless brand essence . . . inspiring fun, fashion possibilities for the family. We use
the new logo in all facets of tarketing and communications, including television and print advertising, in stores, and online.
All new stores feature the new logo on store fronts; current stores will receive new exterior signage concurrent with any
remodel in a phased approach over time.

During 2006, we introduced two new store designs to improve our ability to showcase our merchandise, improve the in-store
experience for our customers, and further support the Payless brand identity. The first design, known as “hot zone,” was the
design for virtually all of our 2006 store openings. As of the end of fiscal 2006, we had 249 stores in this format. We
anticipate about another 100 hot zones by year-end 2007. Fiscal 2006 also marked the launch of the new Payless “fashion lab”
concept. This store format allows customers to shop by style first rather than size. It also incorporates several improvements
to the store environment such as lighting, gondolas and sight lines. In 2007 we intend to open approximately 15 new fashion
lab stores in highly productive fashion malls and central business districts. Overall, we intend to remodel approximately 500
stores to some degree in 2007, This is a key part of our strategy, but we plan to approach investing in new store formats
thoughtfully, before committing meaningful capital resources.
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We are also creating a great shopping experience through improved store operations execution. Our passionate and skilled
store teams offer friendly helpful service. Third party consumer research in 2006 showed that we are #2 in customer service
among all footwear retailers, even though we are a self-service format. Our retail operations management coaches store teams
to engage customers and execute the important operating details that are a necessary part of retail. By striking this balance of
engagement and operational excellence, we delight customers with the kind of shopping experience they value.

The last major component of our strategy is improving the efficiency of our operations. We are reviewing all of the significant
operational elements of our business model; whether that entails achieving more cost effective sourcing, improving the
efficiency of our supply chain and physical distribution network, or identifying productivity improvements within the four
walls of our stores. Where we can realize appropriate returns on capital, we will move quickly but prudently to enhance our
overall return on invested capital. An example of this strategy is our recently announced plan to shift to a dual-distribution
center model. The new model will allow us to more quickly deliver on-trend, targeted product to our stores and customers,
We plan to open our West Coast distribution center in the summer of 2007, as well as another distribution center east of the
Mississippi River in the summer of 2008. Once both new distribution centers are operating satisfactorily, we plan to close our
current distribution center in Topeka, Kansas. Total exit costs related to the closing of the Topeka distribution center are
currently estimated to be approximately $14 million, consisting of approximately $4 million of non-cash accelerated
depreciation expenses, approximately $8 million for employee severance expenses, and approximately $2 million related to
other exit costs. A portion of the employee severance expenses will be recognized in the first quarter of 2007. The majority of
the remaining exit costs will be recognized over the period until the Topeka distribution center is closed. Actual results could
vary from these estimates.

Investing in our business will remain a top priority. These investments will take place on a variety of levels. We are increasing

the total amount of capital investments driven mostly by supply chain. We will continue to invest in all elements of our
business that impact the customer experience, while ensuring that an efficient supporting infrastructure is in place.
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Review of Operations

The following discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting operating results for the fiscal years ended February 3,
2007 (2006), January 28, 2006 (2005), and January 29, 2005 (2004). Fiscal year 2006 contains 53 weeks of operating results
compared to fiscal years 2005 and 2004 which contain 52 weeks. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction
with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. References to years relate to
fiscal years rather than calendar years unless otherwise designated. Results for the past three years were as follows:

£3 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
(dollars in millions, except per share) 2006 2005 2004
% of % of % of
Sales Sales Sales

Net sales $ 2,796.7 1000 % $ 12,6657 1000 % § 2,656.2 100.0 %
Cost of sales 1,821.0 65.1 1.777.1 66.7 1,836.5 69,1
Gross margin 975.7 34.9 888.6 333 819.7 309
Selling, general and administrative expenses B08.5 28.9 767.1 28.8 730.0 275
Restructuring charges 0.8 - 18 0.1 249 0.9
Operating profit from continuing operations 166.4 6.0 7.7 4.4 64.8 2.5
Interest expense 1%.2 0.7 19.7 0.7 22.1 0.8
Interest income 22.7 (0.8) (12.3) {0.4) (5.3 {0.2)
Earnings from continuing operations before

income taxes and minority interest 169.9 6.1 110.3 4.1 48.0 1.9
Provision for income taxes'’ 39.9 23.5 30.8 279 13.2 217.5
Eamings from continying operations before '

minority interest 130.0 4.6 79.5 3.0 348 1.3
Minority interest, net of income taxes (4.6} (0.1) (3.0 (0.1} 23 0.1
Net eamnings from continuing operations 125.4 4.5 76.5 29 371 14
Loss from discontineed operations, net of

income taxes and minority interest G4 0.1 6.0) 0.3) @2.h (1.5
Net earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle 122.0 4.4 70.5 2.6 (2.0 (0.1)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,

net of income taxes and minority interest - - 4.1 ©.2) - -
Net earnings (loss) § 1220 44 % 3 66.4 24 % 3% (2.0) (0.1) %
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Eamings from continuing operations s 1.90 $ 113 b3 Q.55

Loss from discontinued operations (0.05) {0.09) (0.58)

Basic eamings (loss) per share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle 1.85 1.04 (0.03)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - _ (0.06) -
Basic earnings (loss) per share s 1.85 $ 0.93 $ 0.03
Diluted earnings (ioss) per share:

Eamings from continuing operations 5 1.87 $ 1.13 b 0.55

Loss from discontinued operations (0.05) (0.09) (0.58)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principte 1.82 1.04 {0.03)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - (0.06) -
Diluted earnings {loss) per share 5 1.82 3 0.98 5 0.03
Return on sales from continuing operations 45 % 29 % 14 %
Return on equity, inciuding discontinued operations™ 187 % 11.2 % 0.3y %
Retum on net assets, including discontinued operations®™ 123 % 29 % 44 %
Return on invested capital, continuing operations'” 145 % 103 % 58 %
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{1) Percent of sales columns for the provision for income taxes represents effective income tax rates.

(2) Retumn on equity is computed as net earnings (loss), including discontinued operations, divided by beginning shareowners” equity and measures our
ability to invest shareowners® funds profitably. The increase in return on equity from 2005 to 2006 and 2004 to 2005 is primarily due to an increase
in net earnings.

(3) Return on net assets is computed as pre-tax net earnings, including discontinued operations, plus net interest expense and the interest component of
operating leases, divided by beginning of year net assets, including present value of operating leases (“PVOL"), and represents performance
independent of capital structure. The increase in return on net assets from 2005 to 2006 and 2004 to 2005 is primarily due to an increase in net
earnings.

{4) Retumn on invested capital is computed as operating profit from continuing operations, adjusted for income taxes at the applicable effective rate,
divided by the average amount of long-term debt and shareowners’ equity. The increase in return on invested capital from 2005 to 2006 and 2004
to 20035 is primarily due to an increase in operating profit from continuing operations.

Net Sales

Net sales are recognized at the time the sale is made to the customer, are net of estimated retumns and current promotional
discounts and exclude sales tax. Third-party liquidation sales related to restructuring are recognized at the time the sale is
made to the customer, are calculated based upon contractually guaranteed amounts pursuant to our agreements with liquidators
and are net of associated fees. Same-store sales are calculated on a weekly basis and exclude liquidation sales. If a store is
open the entire week in each of the two years being compared, its sales are included in the same-store sales calculation for that
week. Relocated and remodeled stores are also included in the same-store sales calculation if they were open during the entire
week in each of the two years being compared.

Sales percent increases {decreases) are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Net sales 49 % 04 % 02) %
Same-store sales* 35 24 (0.8)
Average selling price per unit 94 7.6 9.0
Unit volume .1) (6.3) 9.1)
Footwear average selling price per unit 8.8 4.6 6.6
Footwear unit volume (2.4) (2.9) (1.0
Non-footwear average selling price per unit 2.9 12.2 16.4
Non-footwear unit volume (10.3) (17.2) (150

*Calculated on a 52 week comparing basis

Net sales for fiscal 2006 totaled $2.80 billion. The impact of the additional week of sales in 2006 due to the 53" week was
$36.4 million. On a 52 week comparing basis, net sales and same-store sales increased in 2006 from 2005 primarily due to
positive sales performance across all segments of the women’s category and girl’s shoes, partially offset by weaker
performance in accessories, boy’s shoes, men’s boots and men’s athletics.

Net sales for fiscal 2005 totaled $2.67 billion. During 2005, net sales and same-store sales increased over 2004 primarily due
to positive sales performance in the women’s category (particularly in the casual and dress departments), and in the women’s
athletics and children’s categories. Weaker categories during 2005 were men’s and accessories.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes cost of merchandise sold and our buying and occupancy costs. Cost of sales was $1.82 billion in 2006
up 2.5% from $1.78 billion in 2005. As a percent of net sales, cost of sales was 65.1% in 2006, compared with 66.7% in 2005.
The decrease in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was due primarily to more favorable initial mark-ons relative to last
year,

Cost of sales was $1.78 billion in 2005 compared with $1.84 billion in 2004, a 3.2% decrease. As a percent of net sales, cost of

sales was 66.7% in 2005, compared with 69.1% in 2004. Cost of sales, as a percentage of sales, decreased primarily due to
more favorable initial mark-ons relative to 2004.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

In 2006, selling, general and administrative expenses were $808.5 million, an increase of 5.4% from $767.1 million in the
2005 period. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales were 28.9% in 2006 compared with
28.8% in 2005. The increase, as a percentage of net sales, primarily reflects the result of 0.5 percentage points of additional
costs for employee incentive programs (including a 0.3 percentage point increase related to the incremental impact of SFAS
No. 123(R)), partially offset by a 0.5 percentage point reduction in payroll and related costs driven primarily by 2005
management transition costs that did not repeat in 2006.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $767.1 million in 2005 compared with $730.0 million in 2004, a 5.1%
increase. As a percent of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses were 28.8% for 2005 compared with 27.5% in
2004. This increase, as a percentage of net sales, primarily reflected a 0.8 percentage point increase related to the cost of
employee incentive programs, a 0.3 percentage point increase in advertising, and a 0.2 percentage point increase in
professional services primarily related to our brand architecture and customer engagement training initiatives.

Restructuring Charges

Restructuring charges relate to strategic initiatives that were substantially completed in 2004. In 2006, we incurred pre-tax
restructuring charges of $1.6 million relating to contract termination costs in excess of previous estimates. The $1.6 million
pre-tax charge was comprised of $0.8 miilion relating to continuing operations and $0.8 relating to discontinued operations. In
2005, we incurred pre-tax restructuring charges of $9.7 million primarily relating to contract termination costs in excess of
previous estimates and other exit costs associated with our strategic initiatives. The $9.7 million pre-tax charge was comprised
of $3.8 million relating to continuing operations and $5.9 million relating to discontinued operations. The 2004 pre-tax
restructuring charge of $67.9 million ($24.9 million related to continuing operations and $43.0 million related to discontinued
operations) included $34.7 million for asset impairments and net disposal losses, $21.3 million for contract termination costs,
$9.3 million for employee severance costs and $2.6 million for other exit costs. Employee severance costs included estimates
regarding the amount of severance payments made to certain terminated associates, and contract termination costs included
estimates regarding the length of time required to sublease vacant space and expected recovery rates. Actual resuits could vary
from these estimates.

The significant compaonents of the restructuring charge incurred as of February 3, 2007, are summarized as follows:

Total Charges  Accrual Balance as of Accrual Cash Accrual Balance as of
(dollars in millions) : to Date January 28, 2006 Adjustments  Payments February 3, 2007
Employee severance costs $ 950 §$ 1.0 § - $ 0.8 § 0.2
Contract termination costs 30.1 5.5 1.6 {4.3) 28
Other exit costs 5.1 - - - -
442 8 65 § 16 § 5.1) § 3.0
Asset impairments and net disposal [osses 5.0
Total Charges s 79.2

Interest (Income) Expense

Interest income and expense components were:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Interest expense $ 192§ 197 §% 221
Interest income (22.7) (12.3) (5.3
Interest (income) expense, net s (3.5) § 74 % 16.8

Interest expense decrease in 2006 is due primarily to a reduction of debt. Interest income increased in 2006 due primarily to an
increase in invested balances and increased yield.
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The decrease in 2005 interest expense was a result of an average lower notes payable balance throughout 2005 versus 2004.
The increase in 2005 interest income was a result of increased cash and short-term investment balances over 2004 and an
increase in the rate of return earned on available funds. This was offset by a decrease in interest earned on certificates of
deposit maintained to collateralize notes payable.

Income Taxes
The effective tax rate from continuing operations was 23.5% in 2006 versus 27.9% in 2005 and 27.5% in 2004.

Our effective tax rates have differed from the U.S. statutory rate principally due to the impact of our operations conducted in
jurisdictions with rates different than the U.S. statutory rate, the benefit of jurisdictional tax credits, favorable adjustments to
our income tax reserves due primarily to favorable settlements of examinations by taxing authorities, the impact of repatriating
earnings from offshore and the on-going implementation of tax efficient business initiatives. See Note 8 of our Consolidated
Financial Statements for more information detailing the relative impact of these items on our tax rate on a comparative basis.

The amount of income taxes we pay is subject to ongoing audits by federal, state and foreign tax authorities, which often result
in proposed assessments. Our estimate for the potential outcome for any uncertain tax issue is often highly judgmental. Our
future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments to our estimated tax liabilities in the periods in which
assessments are made or resolved or when statutes of limitation on potential assessments expire. During 2006, 2005, and
2004, adjustments to our prior year estimates have favorably impacted our effective tax rates. The favorable impact of the
adjustment is more significant in 2006 relative to 2005 and 2004,

At February 3, 2007, deferred tax assets for state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards are $8.5 million, less a valuation
allowance of $1.9 million. The net operating losses related to recorded assets will expire as follows: $0.4 million in 2007
through 2009, $0.2 million in 2008 through 2009, $2.2 million in 2010 through 2011, and $3.8 million by 2024. In addition,
state income tax credit carryforwards are $8.1 million, less a valuation allowance of $4.7 million. The remaining valuation
allowance relates to other deferred tax assets in a Latin American country that does not have a history of earnings. The state
tax credit carryforwards related to the recorded assets expire as follows: $1.0 million by 2013, and $2.4 million may be carried
forward indefiniteiy.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, enacted on October 22, 2004 (the “Jobs Act”™), provided for a temporary 85%
dividends received deduction on certain foreign eamnings repatriated duting a one-year period. To qualify for the deduction, the
earnings must be reinvested in the U.S. pursuant to a domestic reinvestment plan established by a company’s Chief Executive
Officer and approved by its Board of Directors. Certain other criteria in the Jobs Act must be satisfied as well. During 2005,
our Chief Executive Officer established domestic reinvestment plans which were approved by the Board of Directors. Pursuant
to the plans, we repatriated $85.0 million from foreign subsidiaries during 2005. The repatriation resulted in recognition of
income tax expense of $3.7 million, for which we provided $2.3 million in 2004 and $1.4 million in 2005. At the close of
2006, we have not provided tax on our cumulative undistributed eamings of foreign subsidiaries of approximately $50 million,
because it is our intention to reinvest these earnings indefinitely. The calculation of the unrecognized deferred tax liability
related to these earnings is complex and is not practicable. If carnings were distributed, we would be subject to U.S. taxes and
withholding taxes payable to various foreign governments. Based on the facts and circumstances at that time, we would
determine whether a credit for foreign taxes already paid would be available to reduce or offset the U.S. tax liability. We
anticipate that eamnings would not be repatriated unless it was tax efficient to do so.

Impact of Inflation

Inflation did not have a material impact on our net sales growth or net earnings (loss) for the three years in the period ended
February 3, 2007.

Minority Interest, Net of Income Taxes
Minority interest represents our joint venture partners’ share of net earnings or losses on applicable international operations.

The increase in minority interest expense from 2005 to 2006 and 2004 to 2005 is due to increased eamings from our joint
ventures.
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Discontinued Operations

During 2006, we committed to a plan to exit retail operations in Japan and close our one store location. As of February 3,
2007, we are substantially complete with the exit process, and total exit costs were $1.8 million, before income taxes and
minority interest. Discontinued operations include all Parade, Chile, and Peru stores, as well as 26 Payless stores in North
America and Japan retail operations. The decrease in loss from discontinued operations from 2004 to 2005 is primarily due to
the fact that our decision to exit Parade, Peru, Chile and 26 Payless stores in North America occurred in 2004 which is also
when a majority of the exit costs where incurred.

International Segment Operating Results

Our international segment includes retail operations in Canada, the Central and South American Regions, Puerto Rico and the
U.S. Virgin Islands. The following table summarizes the operating results of the international segment:

{dollars in mitlions) 2006 2005 2004
Revenues from external customers 8 4015 § 3597 § 3297
Operating profit from continuing opcrations 50.5 343 113

In general, gross margin percentages in our international segment exceed those in the domestic segment due to greater initial
mark-on. Also, as a percent of revenue, our selling, general and administrative expenses in the international segment are lower
than in the domestic segment primarily due to lower payroll-related expenses. Therefore, as a percentage of revenue, operating
profits in our international segment exceed those in our domestic segment.

The increase in operating profit from continuing operations from 2005 to 2006 is primarily due to increased sales and
improved gross margin percentages in Canada and Latin America, partially offset by reduced net sales and increased selling,
general and administrative expenses in Puerto Rico. The increase in operating profit from continuing operations from 2004 1o
2005 is primarily due to increased net sales and improved gross margin percentages in Latin America.

Store Activity

During 2006, we had a net decrease of 33 stores (63 openings and 96 closings). We also relocated 106 stores. As of February
3, 2007, store count was 4,572 stores, including 3,986 stores in the domestic United States, 315 stores in Canada, 88 stores in
Puerto Rico and U.S. Virgin Islands, 152 stores in the Central American region and 31 stores in the South American region.

Our store activity plan for fiscal year 2007 includes a net decrease of approximately 10 stores. This includes approximately 60
new stores and 70 store closings. We also intend to relocate approximately 60 stores. The current plan for 2007 through 2009
will not materially increase or decrease the net number of Payless ShoeSource stores. We review our store activity plan at
least on an annual basis.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We ended 2006 with a cash and cash equivalents balance of $371.4 million, a decrease of $6.8 million from 2005, and short-
term investments of $90.0 million, an increase of $31.0 million over 2005. Internally generated cash flow from operations is
expected to continue to be the most important component of our capital resources. Sources and (uses) of cash are summarized
below:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004

Net earnings (loss) $ 1220 $ 664 § (2.0
Non-cash component of restructuring charges - - 10.8
Working capital {increases) decreases (17.5) 30.0 103.2
Other operating activities 36.7 40.1 489
Depreciation and amortization 88.5 90.4 94.6
Cash flow provided by operating activities 229.7 2269 255.5
Payments for capital expenditures (118.6) (64.3) {102.0)
Net purchases of investments (27.4) (36.4) (L3
Other investing activities (10.9) 2.1 30.0
Cash flow used in investing activities (156.9) (98.6) (83.3)
Net purchases of common stock (82.2) (21.6) 9.8)
Net payments of debt and deferred financing costs (3.0 (1.3) (29.8)
Distributions to minority owners (1.5 - -
Contributions from minority owners - - 21
Other financing activities 9.2 09 1.6
Cash flow used in financing activities (77.5) (22.0) (35.9)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2. 0.9 (2.0)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents by (6.8) § 1072 § 134.3

Cash Flow Provided by Operating Activities

Cash flow from operations was $229.7 million in 2006 compared with $226.9 million in 2005 and $255.5 million in 2004. The
significant changes in cash flow from operations from 2006 compared with 2005 are due to increases in net earnings, offset by
a change in inventory. The significant changes in cash flow from operations in 2005 as compared to 2004 were due to changes
in accrued expenses, accounts payable and inventory, offset by an increase in net carnings.

Cash Flow Used in Investing Activities

1n 2006, our capital expenditures totaled $118.6 million including $45.6 million for new and relocated stores, $35.6 million to
remodel existing stores, $19.3 million for information technology hardware and systems development, $4.2 million for costs
associated with the West Coast distribution center and $13.9 million for other necessary improvements. We also spent $15.5
million on the acquisition of intangible assets in 2006. We expect that cash paid for capital expenditures during 2007 will be
approximately $160.0 million. We intend to use internal cash flow and available financing from our $200 million revolving
credit agreement to finance all of these expenditures.

Cash Flow Used in Financing Activities

The Company has made the following common stock repurchases:

(dollars in millions, shares in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Dollars _ Shares Dollars Shares Dollars Shares
Stock repurchase program $ 1284 4,960 $ 704 3234 § 101 839
Employee stock purchase, deferred compensation
and stock incentive plans 0.9 34 0.8 45 1.3 99
§ 1293 4994 § 712 3279 5 114 938
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Under the indenture governing our 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes, we may repurchase approximately an additional $12.4
million of common stock. This limit may increase or decrease based upon our net earnings. As of February 3, 2007, we had
approximately $39.3 million of remaining common stock repurchase authorization from our Board of Directors, On March 2,
2007, our Board of Directors authorized an aggregate of $250 million of share repurchases.

We maintain a $200 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Facility™). Funds borrowed under the Facility are
secured by domestic merchandise inventory and receivables. In April 2006, we entered into our first Amendment to the
Facility. Among other things, the amendment extends the term of the Facility until January 15, 2011, allows us to increase the
maximum borrowing amount up to $250 million from $200 million prior to the expiration of the Facility, and decreases the
quarterly commitment fee payable on the unborrowed balance from 0.30% to 0.25%. The Facility bears interest at the London
Inter-bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™}, plus a variable margin of 1.0% to 1.5%, or the base rate as defined in the agreement
governing the Facility, based upon certain borrowing levels. The variable interest rate including the applicable variable margin
at February 3, 2007, was 6.37%. A quarterly commitment fee of 0.25% per annum is payable on the unborrowed balance. No
amounts were drawn on the Facility as of February 3, 2007. Based on our current borrowing base, we may borrow up to
$187.1 million under our Facility, less $30.4 million in outstanding letters of credit as of February 3, 2007,

In July 2003, we sold $200.0 million of 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes (the “Notes™) for $196.7 million, due 2013. The
discount of $3.3 million is being amortized to interest expense over the life of the Notes. The Notes are guaranteed by all of
our domestic subsidiaries. Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annuaily. The Notes contain various covenants including
those that may limit our ability to pay dividends, repurchase stock, accelerate the retirement of other subordinated debt or
make certain investments. As of February 3, 2007, we are in compliance with all covenants. As of February 3, 2007, the fair
value of the Notes is $207.0 million based on recent trading activity of the Notes. On or after August 1, 2008, we may, on any
one or more occasions, redeem all or a part of the Notes at the redemption prices set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, on the Notes redeemed, to the applicable redemption date:

Year Percentage
2008 104.125%
2009 102.750%
2010 101.375%
2011 and thereafter 100.000%

We have entered into $2.0 million of demand notes payable to efficiently finance our subsidiaries in the Central American
Region. We maintain cash balances of $2.0 million in certificates of deposit as compensating balances to collateralize these
notes payable. The notes payable accrue interest at a weighted average of 6.75%. The certificates of deposit earn interest at a
weighted average of 6.00% and are reflected as restricted cash in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. During 2005,
we repaid $1.0 million of the $3.0 million balance outstanding as of the end of 2004.

Financial Commitments
As of February 3, 2007, no amounts were drawn against the $187.1 million borrowing base available under the $200.0 million

Facility. However, the $187.1 million borrowing base available under the Facility is reduced by $30.4 million in outstanding
letters of credit.
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Qur financial commitments as of February 3, 2007, arc described below:

Payments due by Period .

Less than More than
(dollars in millions) Total One Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Five Years
Senior subordinated notes (including unamortized discount) $ 2000 % - 8 - 8 - % 200.0
Capital lease obligations (including interest) 0.5 0.4 0.1 . - -
Operating lease obligations 1,233.5 2544 417.5 286.6 275.0
Interest on notes payable and long-term debt 107.7 16.6 25.0 41.3 248
Royalty obligations 46.7 9.7 18.2 6.4 124
Equipment purchases 183 18.3 - - -
Intangible asset obligations 10.0 3.0 7.0 - -
Service agreement obligations 10.1 5.7 36 0.8 -
Employment agreement obligations 3. 2.7 0.4 - -
Employee severance 2.5 1.7 0.8 - -
Other [ong-tenm debt 4.0 - 4.0 ) - -

3  1,6364 3 3125 % 4766 S 3351 8 512.2

We lease substantially all of our stores and are committed to making lease payments over varying lease terms. The operating
lease obligations presented above represent the total lease obligations due to landlords, including obligations related to closed
stores as well as our obligations related to leases that we have sublet. In instances where failure to exercise renewal options
would result in an economic penalty, the calculation of lease obligations includes renewal option periods. Our royalty
obligations consist of minimum royalty payments for the purchase of branded merchandise. Our equipment purchases consist
of equipment purchased for our new distribution facility in Redlands, California. Our intangible asset obligations include '
payments for trademarks we have purchased. Our service agreement obligations consist of minimum payments for services
that we cannot avoid without penalty. Qur employment agreement obligations consist of minimum payments to certain of our
executives. Employee severance obligations consist of contractually-specified payments associated with our restructuring
initiatives and management transition.

Amounts not reflected in the table above:
.
e We issue cancelable purchase orders to various vendors for the purchase of our merchandise. As of February 3, 2007, we
had merchandise purchase obligations in the amount of approximately $193.0 million for which we will likely take
delivery.

e As previously discussed, we have demand notes payable of $2.0 million to efficiently finance our subsidiaries in the
Central American Region.

We believe that our liquid assets, cash generated from operations and the Facility will provide us with sufficient funds for
capital expenditures, repurchases of our common stock and other operating activities for the next twelve months and thereafter
for the foreseeable future.

Financial Condition Ratios

The debt-to-capitalization ratio was 22.6%, 24.0%, and 25.9% for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The 2006 debt-to-
capitalization ratio decreased primarily due to the increase in net earnings, partially offset by a reduction in equity due to
repurchase of common stock. For purposes of the debt-to-capitalization ratio, total debt is long-term debt including current
maturities, notes payable and borrowings under the revolving line of credit. Capitalization is defined as total debt and
shareowners’ equity. The debt-to-capitalization ratio, including the present value of future minimum rental payments under
operating leases (including certain option periods where failure to exercise such options would result in an economic penalty)
as debt and as capitalization, would be 63.5%, 63.8% and 67.3% in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations are based upon our Consolidated
Financial Statements, which were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These principles require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto. Actual results may differ from these estimates, and such differences may be material to
the Consolidated Financial Statements. We believe that the following critical accounting policies involve a higher degree of
judgment or complexity. See the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a complete discussion of our significant
accounting policies,

Inventories

Merchandise inventories in our stores are valued by the retail method and are stated at the lower of cost, determined using the
first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) basis, or market. Prior to shipment to a specific store, inventories are valued at the lower of cost
using the FIFO basis, or market. The retail method is widely used in the retail industry due to its practicality. Under the retail
method, cost is determined by applying a calculated cost-to-retail ratio across groupings of similar items, known as
departments. As a result, the retail method results in an averaging of inventory costs across similar items within a department.
The cost-to-retail ratio is applied to ending inventory at its current owned retail valuation to determine the cost of ending
inventory on a department basis. Current owned retail represents the retail price for which merchandise is offered for sale on a
regular basis reduced for any permanent or clearance markdowns. As a result, the retail method normally results in an
inventory valuation that is lower than a traditional FIFQ cost basis,

Inherent in the retail method calculation are certain significant management judgments and estimates including markdowns and
shrinkage, which can significantly impact the owned retail and, therefore, the ending inventory valuation at cost. Specifically,
the failure to take permanent or clearance markdowns on a timely basis can result in an overstatement of cost under the retail
method. We believe that our application of the retail method reasonably states inventory at the lower of cost or market,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The costs
of repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred, while expenditures for store remodels, refurbishments and
improvements that significantly add to the product capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Projects in
progress are stated at cost, which includes the cost of construction and other direct costs attributable to the project. No
provision for depreciation is made on projects in progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into
service.

Property and equipment are reviewed on a store-by-store basis if an indicator of impairment exists to determine whether the
carrying amount of the asset is recoverable, Estimated future cash flows are used to determine if impairment exists. We use
current operating results and historical performance to estimate future cash flows on a store-by-store basis.

Rent Expense

Certain of the Company’s lease agreements provide for scheduled rent increases during the lease term, as well as provisions
for renewal options. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease from the time at which the
Company takes possession of the property. In instances where failure to exercise renewal options would result in an economic
penalty, the calculation of straight-line rent expense includes renewal option periods. Also, landlord-provided tenant
improvement allowances are recorded in other liabilities and amortized as a credit to rent expense over the term of the lease
and favorable lease rights are amortized to rent expense over the term of the lease.

Insurance Programs
We retain our normal expected losses related primarily to workers’ compensation, physical loss to property and business
interruption resulting from such loss and comprehensive general, product, and vehicle liability, We purchase third party

coverage for losses in excess of the normal expected levels. Provisions for losses expected under these programs are recorded
based upon estimates of aggregate liability for claims incurred utilizing independent actuarial calculations. These actuarial
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calculations utilize assumptions to estimate the frequency and severity of losses as well as the patterns surrounding the
emergence, development and settlement of claims based on historical results.

Accounting for Taxes

We are routinely under audit by the United States federal, state, local and foreign tax authorities in the areas of income taxes
and sales and use taxes. In evaluating the potential exposures associated with our various tax filings, we accrue charges for
exposures. Based upon our quarterly evaluations of tax positions, we believe we have appropriately filed our tax returns and
accrued for potential exposures. To the extent we prevail in income tax matters for which accruals have been established or we
are required to pay amounts in excess of reserves, our effective income tax rate in a given financial period might be impacted.
We have various domestic and foreign tax examinations currently in process.

We record valuation allowances against our defesred tax assets, when necessary, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Realization of deferred tax assets (such as net
operating loss carryforwards) is dependent on future taxable earnings and is therefore uncertain. We assess the likelihood that
our deferred tax assets in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate will be recovered from future taxable income. Deferred
tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to recognize the extent to which, more likely than not, the future tax benefits
will not be realized.

Asset Retirement Obligations

We foliow FASB Interpretation No. 47 (“FIN 47", “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143, which requires entities to record a liability equal to the fair value of the estimated
future cost to retire an asset, if the liability’s fair value can be reasonably estimated. Our asset retirement obligation (“ARO”)
liabilities are primarily associated with our personal property and trade fixtures which, at the end of a lease, we are
contractually obligated to remove in order to restore the facility back to a condition specified in the lease agreement. We
estimate the fair value of these liabilities based on current store closing costs and discount the removal costs back as if they
were to be performed at the inception of the lease. At the inception of such a lease, we record the ARO as a liability and also
record a related asset in an amount equal to the estimated fair value of the liability. The capitalized asset is then depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. Upon retirement of the asset, any difference between the actual retirement
costs incurred and the previously recorded estimated ARO liability is recognized as a gain or loss in the consolidated statement
of earnings (loss).

In future periods, we may make adjustments to the ARO liability as a result of the availability of new information, changes in
labor costs and other factors. The estimate of the ARO liability is based on a number of assumptions requiring professional
judgment, and we cannot predict what revisions to these assumptions will be required in future periods.

We adopted FIN 47 during the fourth quarter of 2005. The initial adoption resulted in a charge of $4.1 million (net of income
taxes and minority interest), which was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The adoption
increased net property and equipment by $1.7 million, increased asset retirement obligations by $8.5 million, and increased
deferred tax assets by $2.7 million,

Share-based Compensation

We account for share-based awards in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)”). As
required by SFAS No. 123(R), share-based compensation is estimated for equity awards at fair value at the grant date. We
determine the fair value of equity awards using a binomial model. The binomial model requires various highly judgmental
assumptions including the expected life, stock price volatility and the forfeiture rate. 1f any of the assumptions used in the
model change significantly, share-based compensation expense may differ materially in the future from that recorded in the
current period.
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New Accounting Standards

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain
Hybrid Financial Instruments — an amendment of SFAS No. 133 and 140.” This Statement simplifies accounting for certain
hybrid financial instruments, eliminates the interim guidance in Statement 133 Implementation Issue No, D1, “Application of
Statement 133 to Beneficial Interest in Securitized Financial Assets,” and eliminates a restriction of the passive derivative
instruments that a qualifying special-purpose entity may hold. The Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2006. The adoption of this Statement is not anticipated to have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In March 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF Issue 06-3, “How Taxes Collected From Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement.” A consensus was reached that entities
may adopt a policy of presenting sales taxes in the income statement on either a gross or net basis. If taxes are significant, an
entity should disclose its policy of presenting taxes and the amounts of taxes. The guidance is effective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2006. In the consolidated statement of earnings, we present sales net of such taxes within the scope of
EITF Issue 06-3. Other than the additional required disclosure, this EITF will not have an impact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements,

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, an interpretation of FAS 109, Accounting for Income Taxes” (“FIN 487}, to create a single model to address accounting
for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes, by prescribing a minimum recognition
threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance
on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.
FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We will adopt FIN 48 in the first fiscal quarter of
2007, as required, and the cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 will be recorded in retained earnings. We are in the process of
evaluating FIN 48’s impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No, 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. The statement applies whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair
value. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are evaluating the impact the
adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on our Consolidated Financial Statements,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” This statement requires companies
to recognize a net liability or asset and an offsetting adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income to report the
funded status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans. The statement requires prospective
application, and the recognition and disclosure requirements are effective for companies with fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2006. Additionally, SFAS No. 158 requires companies to measure plan assets and obligations at their year-end
balance sheet date. This requirement is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008, We adopted SFAS No. 158
effective February 3, 2007, Please refer to Note 7 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion related to
the adoption of this Statement.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” which provides interpretive guidance
regarding the consideration given to prior year misstatements when determining materiality in current year financial
statements. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 135, 2006. The impact of this adoption was not
material to our Consaolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities.” This
statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. If the fair
value option is elected, unrealized gains and losses will be recognized in earnings at cach subsequent reporting date. SFAS
No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of this
adoption on our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

Interest on our senior secured revolving credit facility, which is entirely comprised of a revolving line of credit, is based on the
London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”™) plus a variable margin of 1.0% to 1.5%, or the base rate, as defined in the credit
agreement, There are no outstanding borrowings on the revolving line of credit at February 3, 2007; however, if we were to
borrow against our revolving line of credit, borrowing costs may fluctuate depending upon the volatility of LIBOR.

Foreign Currency Risk

We have retail operations in foreign countries; therefore, our cash flows in U.S. dollars are impacted by fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates. We adjust our retail prices, when possible; to reflect changes in exchange rates to mitigate this risk.
To further mitigate this risk, we may, from time to time, enter into forward contracts to purchase or sell foreign currencies. For
the fiscal years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates did not have a material impact on our operations or cash flows and we did not enter into any forward contracts to
purchase or sell foreign currencies.

In 2006, approximately 96% of our footwear, based on cost, was sourced from the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC™).
The national currency of the PRC, the Yuan, is currently not a freely convertible currency. The value of the Yuan depends to a
large extent on the PRC government’s policies and upon the PRC’s domestic and international economic and political
developments. Since 1994, the official exchange rate for the conversion of the PRC’s currency was pegged to the U.S. dollar
at a virtually fixed rate of approximately 8.28 Yuan per U.S. dollar. However, on July 21, 2005, the PRC’s government
revalued the Yuan by 2.1%, setting the exchange rate at 8,11 Yuan per U.S. dollar, and adopted a more flexible system based
on a trade-weighted basket of foreign currencies of the PRC’s main trading partners. Under the new “managed float” policy,
the exchange rate of the Yuan may shift each day up to 0.3% in either direction from the previous day’s close, and as a result,
the valuation of the Yuan may increase incrementally over time should the PRC central bank allow it to do so, which could
significantly increase the cost of the products we source from the PRC. As of February 2, 2007, the last day of trading in our
fiscal year, the exchange rate was 7.75 Yuan per U.S. dollar.
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Report of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity of the financial information included in this annual
report. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States applied on a consistent basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. Although the financial statements
reflect all available information and management’s judgment and estimates of current conditions and circumstances, and are
prepared with the assistance of specialists within and outside the Company, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Management has established and maintains an internal control structure to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition that the accounting records provide a reliable basis for the
preparation of financial statements, and that such financial statements are not misstated due to material fraud or error. Internal
controls include the careful selection of associates, the proper segregation of duties and the communication and application of
formal policies and procedures that are consistent with high standards of accounting and administrative practices. An important
element of this system is a comprehensive internal audit and loss prevention program.

Management continually reviews, modifies and improves its systems of accounting and controls in response to changes in
business conditions and operations and in response to recommendations in the reports prepared by the independent registered
public accounting firm and internal auditors.

Management believes that it is essential for the Company to conduct its business affairs in accordance with the highest ethical
standards and in conformity with the law. This standard is described in the Company’s policies on business conduct, which are
publicized throughout the Company.

Audit and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors, through the activities of its Audit and Finance Committee (the “Committee™), participates in the
reporting of financial information by the Company. The Committee meets regularly with management, the internal auditors
and the independent registered public accounting firm. The Committee reviewed the scope, timing and fees for the annual
audit and the results of the audit examinations completed by the internal auditors and independent registered public accounting
firm, including the recommendations to improve certain internal controls and the follow-up reports prepared by management.
The independent registered public accounting firm and internal auditors have free access to the Committee and the Board of
Directors and attend each regularly scheduled Committee meeting.

The Committee consists of six outside directors all of whom have accounting or financial management expertise. The members
of the Committee are Daniel Boggan Jr., Howard R. Fricke, Robert F. Moran, Michael E. Murphy, John F. McGovern and
David Scott Olivet. The Audit and Finance Committee regularly reports the results of its activities to the full Board of
Directors.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Payless ShoeSource, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting for the Company. With the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer,
our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework and criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our management has concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of February 3, 2007.

Payless ShoeSource, Inc.’s independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an audit report
dated March 30, 2007 on our management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Matthew E. Rubel /s/ Ullrich E. Porzig
Chief Executive Officer and President Senior Vice President - Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

37




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of
Payless ShoeSource, Inc.
Topeka, Kansas

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Controt Over Financial
Reporting, that Payless ShoeSource, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company") maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of February 3, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Comtrol—Integrated Framework issued by the Commiltee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairty reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have 2 material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3,
2007, is fairly stated, in al! material respects, based on the criteria established in fnternal Controi—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007 of the Company and our
report dated March 30, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedule and included an
explanatory paragraph regarding the change in accounting for stock-based compensation upon adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” and change in accounting for pension and other postretirement benefits upon
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).”

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
March 30, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Sharcowners of
Payless ShoeSource, Inc.
Topeka, Kansas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Payless ShoeSource, Inc, and subsidiaries (the “Company”)
as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareowners' equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 3, 2007. Our audits also
included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15, These financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Payless
ShoeSource, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 3, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for stock-
based compensation upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” and
as discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for pension
and other postretirement benefits upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of Financial Accounting Standards
Board Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).”

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on the criteria
established in fnternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated March 30, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
March 30, 2007
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PAYLESS SHOESOURCE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS (LOSS)
(dollars in millions, except per share)

53 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006 January 29, 2005

Net sales $ 2,796.7 $ 2,665.7 $ 2,656.2
Cost of sales 1,821.0 1,777. 1,836.5
Gross margin 978.7 888.6 819.7
Selling, general and administrative expenses 808.5 767.1 730.0
Restructuring charges 0.8 38 24.9
Operating profit from continuing operations 166.4 117.7 64.8
Interest expense 19,2 19.7 221
Interest income (22.7) (12.3) (5.3)
Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes and
minority interest 169.9 110.3 48.0
Provision for income taxes 39.9 30.8 13.2
Earnings from continuing eperations before minority interest 130.0 79.5 148
Minority interest, net of income taxes (4.6) (3.0) 2.3
Net camings from continuing operations 125.4 76.5 371
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes and minority
interest (3.4) (6.0) (39.1)
Net earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle 122.0 70.5 (2.0}
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income
taxes and minority interest Z (CAY) Z
Net eamings (loss) 8 122.0 3 66.4 3 (2.0)
Basic earnings {loss) per share:

Eamings from continuing operations $ 1.90 $ 1.13 $ 0.55

Loss from discontinued operations (0.05) {0.09) (0.58)

Basic eamings (loss) per share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle 1.85 1.04 (©.03)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - {0.06) -
Basic earnings (loss) per share s 1.85 s 0.98 $ (0.03)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Eamings from continuing operations § 1.87 $ 1.13 5 0.55

Loss from discontinued operations {0.05) (0.09) {0.58)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle 1.82 1.04 (0.03)

Cumulative ¢ffect of change in accounting principle - (0.06) -

Diluted eamings (loss) per share b} 1.82 5 (.98 3 (0.03)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PAYLESS SHOESOURCE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(dollars in mitlions)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Restricted cash
Inventories
Current deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses
Other current asscts
Current assets of discontinued operations

Total current assets

Property and Equipment:
Land
Property, buildings and equipment
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

Favorable leases, net

Deferred income taxes

Goodwill

Other assets

Noncurrent assets of discontinued operations

Total Assets

LIARILITIES AND SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities;
Curment maturities of long-term debt
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
. Current liabilities of discontinued operations

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Minority interest
Commitments and contingencics (Note 16)
Shareowners' Equity:
Preferred stock. $.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; none issued
Common stock, $.01 par value; 240,000,000 shares authorized; 88,130,874 issued; 64,996,287 and
67,305,608 shares outstanding in 2006 and 2005 respectively
Treasury stock, $.01 par value; 23,134,587 and 20,825,266 shares in 2006 and 2003, respectively
Additional paid-in-capital
Unearned nonvested shares
Retained eamings
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of income taxes

Total shareowners' equity

Total Liabilities and Shareowners' Equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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February 3, January 28,
2007 2006
$ 3N4 378.2
90.0 590
2.0 2.0
361.9 3326
15.6 20.2
46.5 39.4
18.1 202
1.1 29
906.6 854.5
6.6 1.7
1,245.1 1,185.2
(830.5) (807.8)
421.2 385.1
12.8 182
377 2715
5.9 59
43.2 219
- 1.4
b 1,427.4 1,314.5
3 0.4 0.4
2.0 2.0
185.6 163.6
190.2 163.5
2.1 4.0
380.3 3385
201.7 204.2
132.6 109.3
12.7 10.5
0.9 09
(0.2) (0.2)
0.7 15.3
- (4.3)
698.1 - 6284
0.6 11.9
700.1 652.0
5 1,427.4 1,314,5




Balance at January 31, 2004

Net loss

Translation adjustments

Issuances of common stock
under stock plans

Purchases of common stock

Amortization of uneamed
restricted stock

Restricted stock cancellation

Comprehensive income

Balance at January 29, 2005

Net earnings

Translation adjustments

Change in unrecognized
pension liability

Issuances of common stock
under stock plans

Purchases of common stock

Amortization of uneamed
restricted stock

Income tax benefit of siock
option exercise

Restricted stock cancellation

Comprehensive income

Balance at January 28, 2006

Net carnings

Translation adjustments

Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of taxes of $2.0

Adoption of SFAS No. 158
(Note 7), net of taxes of $3.3

Reclassification of uneamed
nonvested shares related to
the adoption of SFAS
No.123(R} (Note 2)

Issuances of common stock
under stock plans

Purchases of common stock

Amortization of uncarned
nonvested shares

Income tax benefit of stock
option exercise

Stock Option Expense

Restricted stock cancellation

Comprehensive income

Balance at February 3, 2007

PAYLESS SHOESOURCE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREOWNERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{(doliars in millions, shares in thousands)

Outstanding Accumulated
Common Stock Additional Uneamed Other Total
Paid-in Nonvested  Retained Comprehensive Shareowner's Comprehensive
Shares Dollars Capital Shares Eamings Income Equity Income
67,992 §$ 07 § 357 % 07 § 5640 § 47 % 604.4
- - - - (2.0} - 20 s 2.0}
- - - - - 28 2.8 28
228 - 2.8 (1.2} - - 1.6
(938) - (11.4) - - - (11.4)
- - 0.7 - - 0.7
o0 (1.5) 0.4 - - (1
0.8
67,192 0.7 25.6 0.8) 562.0 1.5 595.0
R - - - 66.4 - 66.4 66.4
- - - - - 4.9 49 49
- - - - - (0.5) (0.5) (0.5}
3,408 - 54.7 (5.1) - - 49.6
(3,279} - (71.2) . - - (71.2)
- - - 1.3 - - 1.3
- - 6.5 - - - 6.5
(15 - 0.3) 0.3 - - -
70.8
67,306 0.7 15.3 (4.3} 628.4 11.9 652.0
- - - - 1220 - 122.0 122.0
. . - . - (3.0) (3.0) (3.0)
) ] A ) . 3.6) (3.6) (3.6)
- - - - - 4.7 4.7 4.7y
- - (4.3) 4.3 - - -
2,698 - 47.1 - - - 47.1
(4,994) - (71.0) - (52.3) - (129.3)
- - 22 - - - 22
- - 8.6 - - - 8.6
- 8.8 - - - 8.8
(14) - - - - -
3 110.7
64996 § 07 § 0.7 % 3 6981 § 0.6

—

— —— s — s ——
————— e —————————
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Qutstanding common stock is net of shares held in treasury and is presented net of $0.2 million of treasury stock in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Treasury stock is accounted for using the par value method. Treasury share activity for the last three years is summarized below:

{(shares in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Balance, beginning of year 20,825 20939 20,139
Issuances of common stock:
Stock options and employee stock purchase plan (2,617 (3,145) (147)
Deferred compensation plan M (6) [63)]
Net restricted stock {grants) cancellations (60) (242) 14
(2,684) (3,393) (133
Purchases of common stock 4,994 3,279 938
Balance, end of year 23,135 20,825 20,939

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PAYLESS SHOESOURCE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in millions)
53 Weeks Ended 52 Wecks Ended

52 Weeks Ended

February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006  January 29, 2005

Operating Activities:

Net caritings {loss) 5 1220 §$ 664 $ (2.0)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes and minority interest 34 6.0 39.1
Adjustments for non-cash items included in net eamnings:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income
taxes and minority interest - 4.1 -
Restructuring charges - - 10.8
Loss on impairment of and disposal of assets 10.3 9.8 7.0
Depreciation and amortization 88.5 90.4 94.6
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1.1 1.2 0.9
Share-based compensation expensc 12,2 1.3 0.7
Deferred income taxcs 9.1 13,7 (6.4)
Minority interest, net of income taxes 4.6 3.0 2.3
| [ncome tax benefit from share-based compensation 0.6 6.5 -
Accretion of investments (3.6) {1.3) -
Changes in working capital:
Inventories {29.8) 13.5 313
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (9.0) (2.0) 9.4
Accounts payable 15.6 9.0 28.6
Accrued expenses 5.7 9.5 339
Other assets and liabilities, net 30 6.4 .7
Net cash used in discontinued operations 4.0) (10.6) 2.2
Cash ftow provided by operating activities 229.7 226.9 2558
Investing Activitics:
Capital expenditures (118.6) (64.3) (102.0)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 4.6 1.2 3.0
Restricted cash - 1.0 30.5
Intangible asset additions (15.5) - -
Purchases of investments (215.6) (146.4) (34.3)
Sales and maturities of investments 188.2 110.0 23.0
Net cash used in discontinued operations - (0.1} 3.5)
Cash flow used in investing activitics {156.9) {93.6) (83.3)
Financing Activities:
Repayment of notes payable - (1.0) {30.5)
Issuance of debt - 1.2 24
Repayment of debt (2.8) (1.3) (1.5)
Payment of deferred financing costs (0.2) - (0.2}
Issuances of common stock 47.1 49.6 1.6
Purchases of common stock (129.3) (711.2) (11.4)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 8.0 - -
Distributions to minotity owners (1.5) - -
Contribations from minerity owners - - 2.1
Net cash provided by discontinued operations 1.2 0.9 1.6
Cash flow used in financing activities (77.5) (22.0) (35.9)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (2.1) 0.9 {2.00
{Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (6.8) 107.2 1343
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 378.2 271.0 136.7
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ] 3714 3 3782 % 2710
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 285 § 208 % 233
Income taxes paid $ 294 § 149 § {11.0)
Nen-cash investing and operating activities:
Accrued capital additions $ 230 §$ 94 % 16.4
Accrued intangible asset additions S 10,0 $ - % -

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PAYLESS SHOESOURCE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Payless ShoeSource, Inc., a Delaware corporation, together with its subsidiaries (the “Company™), is the largest family
footwear specialty retailer by number of locations in the Western Hemisphere.

As of February 3, 2007, the Company operated 4,572 retail shoe stores offering quality footwear and accessories in all 50 of
the United States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, Saipan, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Canada, and the Central and
South American Regions. The Central American Region is composed of operations in Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, El
Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Nicaragua, Panama and Trinidad and Tobago. The South American Region is composed of
operations in Ecuador. The Company’s operations in the Central and South American Regions are operated as consolidated
joint ventures in which the Company maintains a 60% ownership.

The Company utilizes a network of agents with factories in eight foreign countries and the United States to source its footwear
products, which are manufactured to meet the Company’s specifications and standards. During 2006, factories in the People’s
Republic of China were a direct source of approximately 96% of the Company’s footwear, based on merchandise cost.

The Consolidated Financia! Statements include the accounts of the Company, all wholly-owned subsidiaries and all
subsidiaries and joint ventures in which the Company owns a controlling interest. The Company’s Central American and South
American Regions use a December 31 year-end, primarily to match the local countries’ statutory reporting requirements. The
effect of this one-month lag on the Company’s financial position and results of operations is not significant.

As a resuit of the restructuring, as discussed in Note 3 below, the financial information of the Parade, Peru and Chile stores
and 26 of the Payless closed stores has been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. In addition, during
2006 the Company exited retail operations in Japan, closing its one store location. The financial information for Japan retail
operations has been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. These Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, except where otherwise indicated, relate to continuing operations only.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to January 31. Fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 ended on February 3,
2007, January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, respectively. Fiscal year 2006 contains 53 weeks of results compared to fiscal
years 2005 and 2004 which contain 52 weeks. References to years in these financial statements and notes relate to fiscal years
rather than calendar years. The Company’s operations in the Central American and South American Regions are consolidated
using a December 31 year-end.

Use of Estimates

Management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported within the Consolidated Balance Sheets and
the Statements of Earnings (Loss), Shareowners’ Equity and Comprehensive Income and Cash Flows, and the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Net Sales

Net sales (“sales™) are recognized at the time the sale is made to the customer, are net of estimated returns and current
promotional discounts and exclude sales tax. Third-party liquidation sales related to restructuring are recognized at the time
the sale is made to the customer, are calculated based upon contractually guaranteed amounts pursuant to the Company’s
apreements with liquidators and are net of associated fees. During fiscal year 2006, approximately 23% of the Company’s net
sales were obtained from externally licensed branded product.
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Gift Cards

The Company records a liability in the period in which a gift card is issued and proceeds are received. As gift cards are
redeemed, this liability is reduced and revenue is recognized as a sale. The estimated value of gift cards expected to go unused
is recognized ratably in proportion to actual redemptions as gift cards are redeemed.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes the cost of merchandise sold and the Company’s buying, occupancy, warehousing and product
movement costs.

Rent Expense

Certain of the Company’s lease agreements provide for scheduled rent increases during the lease term, as well as provisions
for renewal options. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease from the time at which the
Company takes possession of the property. In instances where failure to exercise renewal options would result in an economic
penalty, the calculation of straight-line rent expense includes renewal option periods. Also, landlord-provided tenant
improvement allowances are recorded in other liabilities and amortized as a credit to rent expense over the term of the lease.
Pre-Opening Expenses

Costs associated with the opening of new stores are expensed as incurred.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs and sales promotion costs are expensed at the time the advertising takes place. Selling, general and
administrative expenses include advertising and sales promotion costs of $112.7 million, $106.7 million and $107.3 million in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using a balance sheet approach known as the liability method. The liabitity method accounts
for deferred income taxes by applying enacted statutory tax rates to differences between the book basis and the tax basis of
assets and liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Amounts due from banks and
credit card companies of $15.3 million and $14.4 million for the settlement of credit card transactions are included in cash and
cash equivalents as of February 3, 2007, and January 28, 2006, respectively, as they are generally collected within three
business days. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Short-Term Investments

As of February 3, 2007, and January 28, 2006, short-term investments consisted of the following:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Held-to-maturity securities:
Commercial paper ) 92040 § 58.5
Certificates of deposit - 0.5
Total held-to-maturity securities b 900 $ 59.0

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortized cost. As of February 3, 2007, the maturities for all heid-to-maturity
securities were less than one year. As of February 3, 2007, and January 28, 2006, the estimated fair value of each investment
approximated its amortized cost and, therefore, there were no significant unrecognized holding gains or losses.
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Inventories

Merchandise inventories in the Company’s stores are valued by the retail method and are stated at the lower of cost,
determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) basis, or market. Prior to shipment to a specific store, inventories are valued at
the lower of cost using the FIFO basis, or market. The retail method is widely used in the retail industry due to its practicality.
Under the retail method, cost is determined by applying a calculated cost-to-retail ratio across groupings of similar items,
known as departments. As a result, the retail method results in an averaging of inventory costs across similar items within a
department. The cost-to-retail ratio is applied to ending inventory at its current owned retail valuation to determine the cost of
ending inventory on a department basis. Current owned retail represents the retail price for which merchandise is offered for
sale on a regular basis reduced for any permanent or clearance markdowns. As a result, the retail method normally results in an
inventory valuation that is lower than a traditional FIFO cost basis.

Inherent in the retail method calculation are certain significant management judgments and estimates including markdowns and
shrinkage, which can significantly impact the owned retail and, therefore, the ending inventory valuation at cost. Specifically,
the failure to take permanent or clearance markdowns on a timely basis can result in an overstaiement of carrying cost under
the retail method. Management believes that its application of the retail method reasonably states inventory at the lower of cost
or market.

The Company takes ownership of certain raw materials as the materials enter the production process. These raw materials are
included in inventories and accounted for under the FIFO basis. Raw materials of $29.5 million and $20.1 million are held by
third parties and included in inventories in the consolidated balance sheet at February 3, 2007, and January 28, 2006,
respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred, while expenditures for store remodels, refurbishments and
improvements that significantly add to the productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Projects in
progress are stated at cost, which includes the cost of construction and other direct costs attributable to the project. No
provision for depreciation is made on projects in progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put to use.
The estimated useful life for each major class of property and equipment is as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years

Leasehold improvements the lesser of 10 years or the remaining expected lease term that is reasonably assured {which
may exceed the current nen-cancelable term)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years

Property under capital lease 10 to 30 years

The following is a summary of the components of property, buildings and equipment:

{dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Buildings and leaschold improvements s 6330 $ 631.1
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5325 524.0
Property under capital leases 0.9 0.9
Projects in progress 78.7 29.2
$ 1,245.1 § 1,185.2

Depreciation expense for 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $85.3 million, $87.0 million, and $90.5 million, respectively.
Property and equipment are reviewed for recoverability on a store-by-store basis if an indicator of impairment exists to

determine whether the carrying amount of the assets is recoverable. Estimated future cash flows are used to determine if
impairment exists. The Company uses current operating resuits and historical performance to estimate future cash flows on a

47




store-by-store basis. Excluding restructuring charges as discussed in Note 3, total impairment charges related to assets held
and used for 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $1.7 million, $2.4 million, and $1.5 million, respectively. These charges are included
in cost of sales.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
circumstances indicate potential impairment, through a comparison of fair value to its carrying amount. Favorable leases and
other intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful lives using the straight-line method. During 2006, the
Company performed the required annual impairment testing and no impairment [osses were necessary.

Insurance Programs

The Company retains its normal expected losses related primarily to workers’ compensation, physical loss to property and
business intcrruption resulting from such loss and comprehensive general, product, and vehicle liability. The Company
purchases third-party coverage for losses in excess of the normal expected levels, Provisions for losses expected under these
programs are recorded based upon estimates of the aggregate liability for claims incurred utilizing independent actuarial -
calculations based on historical results.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies are the functional currencies for most foreign subsidiaries. Accordingly, assets and liabilities of these
subsidiaries are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Adjustments from the translation process are
accumulated as part of other comprehensive income and are included as a separate component of shareowners” equity, The
changes in foreign currency translation adjustments were not adjusted for income taxes since they relate to indefinite term
investments in non-United States subsidiaries. Income and expense items of these subsidiaries are translated at average rates of
exchange. As of fiscal year-end 2006, 2005 and 2004, cumulative translation adjustments included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) were $9.4 million, $12.4 million and $7.5 million, respectively.

For those foreign subsidiaries operating in a highly inflationary economy or having the U.S. Dollar as their functional
currency, net non-monetary assets are translated at histonical rates and net monetary assets are translated at current rates.
Translation adjustments are included in the determination of net earnings. ~

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company follows FASB Interpretation No. 47 (“FIN 477), “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations -
An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143, which requires entities to record a liability equal to the fair value of the
estimated future cost to retire an asset, if the liability’s fair value can be reasonably estimated, The Company’s asset retirement
obligation (“*ARQ”) liabilities are primarily associated with the disposal of personal property and trade fixtures which, at the
end of a lease, the Company is contractually obligated to remove in order to restore the facility back to a condition specified in
the lease agreement, The Company estimates the fair value of these liabilities based on current store closing costs and
discounts the costs back as if they were to be performed at the inception of the lease. At the inception of such a lease, the
Company records the ARO as a liability and also records a related assct in an amount equal to the estimated fair value of the
liability. The capitalized asset is then depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. Upon retirement of
the asset, any difference between the actual retirement costs incurred and the previously recorded estimated ARO liability is
recognized as a gain or Joss in the consolidated statement of earnings (loss).

The Company adopted FIN 47 in the fourth quarter of 2005, Please refer to Note 20 for further discussion regarding this
change in accounting principle. In future periods, the Company may make adjustments to the ARO liability as a result of the
availability of new information, changes in labor costs and other factors. The estimate of the AROQ liability is based on a
number of assumptions requiring professional judgment, including average store closing costs, inflation rates and asset re-
use rates.
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The foliowing table summarizes the Company’s ARQ liability included on its consolidated balance sheets,

(in millions) 2006
Beginning asset retirement obligation 5 8.5
Liabilities incurred in current year 0.1
Liabilities settled in current year (0.4)
Accretion expense 0.3
Ending asset retirement obligation $ 8.5

Note 2 — Share-Based Compensation

Effective January 29, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, using the modified prospective transition method and therefore has
not retroactively adjusted results from prior periods. Under this transition method, compensation cost associated with share-
based awards recognized in fiscal year 2006 includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but
not yet vested, as of January 29, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted
subsequent to January 29, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No,
123(R).

The Company elected to adopt the alternative transition method to account for the tax effects of share-based payment awards
as provided in FASB Staff Position FAS 123(R)}-3; “Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax effects of Share-
Based Payment Awards” (“FSP 123(R)-3") during the second quarter of 2006.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company followed the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” The Statement
required prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements regarding the method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. Prior to fiscal year 2006, the Company
accounted for stock compensation awards under the intrinsic value method of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”™) Opinion
No. 25. APB Opinion No. 25 required compensation cost to be recognized based on the excess, if any, between the quoted
market price of the stock at the date of grant and the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. All options awarded
under the Company’s plans were granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of the grant,

SFAS No. 123 established a fair value based method of accounting for emplayee stock options or similar equity instruments.
In order to calculate fair value under SFAS No. 123, the Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the
grant date fair value of options granted in fiscal years 1996 through 2005. The fair value was recognized over the option
vesting period using tranche specific expense attribution as discussed in FASB Interpretation No. 28, “Accounting for Stock
Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans - An Interpretation of APB Opinions No. 15 and 25.”
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The following table presents the effect on net earnings and earnings per share had share-based compensation expense been
recorded for the 52 weeks ended January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively, based on the fair-value method under
SFAS No. 123.

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts) January 28, 2006  January 29, 2005
Net earnings (loss):
As reported $ 664 § 2.0)
Add: Total stock-based employee compensation expense included in net earnings (loss)
as reported, net of related income taxes 3.2 1.2
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair valee
based method for ali awards, net of related income taxes 6.8 30
Pro forma s 628 § (3.8)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
As reported $ 098 § (0.03)
Pro forma $ 093 § {0.06)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
As reported 3 098 $ (0.03}
Pro forma 3 093 % (0.06)

Equity Incentive Plans

Under its equity incentive plans, the Company currently grants share appreciation vehicles consisting of stock options, stock-
settled stock appreciation rights (“'stock-settled SAR’s™) and cash-settled stock appreciation rights (“cash-settled SAR’s”), as
well as full value vehicles consisting of nonvested shares and phantom stock units. Appreciation vehicles granted under the
1996 and 2006 Stock Incentive Plans are granted at the average of the high and low trading price on the date of grant and may
be exercised only after stated vesting dates or other vesting criteria, as applicable, has been achieved. Generally, vesting of
appreciation vehicles is conditioned upon continued employment with the Company, although appreciation vehicles may be
exercised during certain periods following retirement, disability or death. Historically, the Company has used treasury shares
for settlement of share-based compensation.

Under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, which expired in April 2006, the Company was authorized to grant a maximum of
15,600,000 shares, of which no more than 1,200,000 could be issued pursuant to nonvested share grants. Appreciation vehicles
granted under the plan had a maximum term of 10 years and could vest on a graded schedule or a cliff basis. The exercise
prices of appreciation vehicles equaled the average of the high and low trading prices of the Company's stock on the grant
date. Nonvested shares granted under the plan could be granted with or without performance restrictions. Restrictions,
including performance restrictions, lapse over periods of up to ten years, as determined at the date of grant. Associates who
received nonvested shares paid no monetary consideration.

On May 25, 20006, the Company’s sharcowners approved the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. Under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan,
the Company is authorized to grant a maximum of 2,500,000 shares. Appreciation vehicles to be granted under the plan have a
maximum term of seven years and can vest on a graded schedule, a cliff basis or based on performance. The exercise price of
an appreciation vehicle may not be less than the average of the high and low trading prices of the Company's stock on the grant
date. Associates who receive full value vehicles pay no monetary consideration, Awards under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan
can be granted with or without performance restrictions. Restrictions, including performance restrictions, lapse over periods of
up to seven years, as determined at the date of grant.

On May 25, 2006, the Company’s shareowners approved amendments to and restatement of the Stock Plan for Non-
Management Directors (the “Director Plan”). Under the Company's amended and restated Director Plan, each Director who is
not an officer of the Company is eligible to receive share-based compensation in the form of non-qualified stock options
and/or stock awards, including, but not limited to, restricted and unrestricted stock awards. All shares of common stock issued
under the Director Plan are subject to restrictions on transferability and to forfeiture during a specified restricted period. The
Director Plan provides for the issuance of not more than 350,000 shares of common stock, subject to adjustment for changes in
the Company's capital structure. The Company may not, without stockholder approval, amend the Director Plan in a manner
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that would increase the number of shares of common stock available for awards, decrease the exercise price of any award, or
otherwise materially increase benefits or modify eligibility requirements. The material differences between the amended and
prior Director Plans are: (1) participants may, if certain conditions are met, transfer or otherwise dispose of shares of stock
received pursuant to the amended plan prior to their termination from the board, and (2) the maximum number of shares of
common stock available for issuance under the Director Plan was reduced from 900,000,

Under the Company’s Amended Stock Ownership Plan, a maximum of 6,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock may

be purchased by employees at a 5% discount. The terms of the Stock Ownership plan are such that the plan is non-
compensatory. As a result, the purchase of shares by employees does not give rise to compensation cost,

Stock Options

During 2006, the Company granted 200,060 stock options under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan that will vest in installments
over three years. Additionally, 269,500 stock options were granted that cliff vest after three years. Neither of these stock
option grants contain performance vesting conditions.

On July 18, 2003, the Company granted its Chief Executive Officer and President an optien on 720,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $20.65 (the closing price on the date of grant). The option vests as follows: 120,000 shares on
the first and fourth anniversary of the grant, 240,000 shares on the second and third anniversary of the grant.

Transactions for stock options for the fiscal year 2006 were as follows:

53 Weeks Ended February 3, 2007

Weighted Average
(units in thousands) Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of period 5738 % 18
Granted 470 22
Exercised (2,597} 18
Forfeited or expired (216) 18
Outstanding at end of period 3,395 19
Vested and expected to vest at end of period 3,332 9
Exercisable or convertible at end of period 1,547 17
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding, options vested or expected to vest, and
exercisable at February 3, 2007:

Options Quistanding

Weighted
Avernge
Number of Remzining Agpregate Weighted
Range of Qutstanding Contractual Life  Intrinsic Value Average
Exercise Prices {in thousands) (in years) (in thousands)  Exercise Price
$13-15 187 3 s 3,789 § 15
16-18 1,755 5 32,268 17
19:24 1,453 5 19,436 22
Options Vested and Expected to Vest
Weighted
Number Vested Average
and Expected Remaining Aggregate Weighted
to Vest Contractual Life  Intrinsic Value Average
{in thousands} {in years) {in thousandsy  Exercise Price
$13-15 186 3 $ 3761 § 15
i6-18 1,750 5 32,171 17
19-24 1,396 5 18,733 22
Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Number Remaining Aggregate Weighted
Exercisable Contractual Life  Intrinsic Value Average
{in thousands) (in years) (in thousands)  Exercise Price
$13-15 187 3 h 3,786 § 15
16-18 1,017 4 18,862 16
19-24 343 4 4,468 22

The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated using the difference between the current market price and the grant price for only
those awards that have a grant price that is less than the current market price.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $24.0 million, $17.9 mitlion and $0.1 million
respectively. Cash received from option exercises for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $46.6 million, $48.9 million and $1.0 million
respectively, excluding cash received from the Company’s employee stock purchase and deferred compensation plans. The
tax benefit realized for the deductions from options exercised during 2006 and 2005 was $8.6 million and $6.5 million,
respectively. There were no tax benefits realized in 2004. The weighted average fair value of units granted per unit for 2006,
2005 and 2004 was 510, §7 and $7, respectively.

Stock-seftled SAR’s

During 2006, the Company granted 802,630 stock-settled SAR’s under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, of which 202,680 are
subject to a performance condition for vesting purposes (the “performance grant”). The performance grant vests only if the
performance condition is met. The performance condition has been met for 2006 and the performance grant will vest in thirds
on May 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. The remaining 599,950 stock-settled SAR’s are subject to a three-year graded
vesting schedule, which is not based on any performance vesting conditions.

During 2006, the Company granted 172,339 stock-setiled SAR’s, of which 21,934 are a performance grant under the 2006

Stock Incentive Plan. The performance grant will vest only if the performance condition is met. The performance condition
has been met for 2006 and the performance grant will vest in thirds on May 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. The
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remaining 150,405 stock-settled SAR’s are subject to a three-year graded vesting schedule, which is not based on any
performance vesting conditions.

Upon exercise of a stock-settled SAR, employees will receive a number of shares of common stock equal to the appreciation in
the fair market value of the underlying common stock from the grant date to the exercise date of the SAR. All of the stock-
settled SAR’s issued by the Company to-date contain an appreciation cap, which limits the appreciation for which shares of
common stock will be granted to 200% of the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the grant date of the SAR.
As a result of the appreciation cap, a maximum of 2/3 of a share of common stock may be issued for each stock-settled SAR
granted.

Transactions for stock—settled SAR’s for the fiscal year 2006 were as follows:

53 Weeks Ended February 3, 2007

Stock-Settled Weighted Average

(units in thousands) SAR's Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of period - 8 -
Granted 975 23
Exercised - -
Forfeited or expired (86} 22
Ouistanding at end of period 889 24
Vested and expected to vest at end of period 833 23

Exercisable or convertible at end of period - -

Weighted average fair value of units granted (per unit) $ 9
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The following table summarizes information about stock-settled SAR’s outstanding and exercisable at February 3, 2007:

Stock-settled SAR's Cutstanding

Weighted
Average
Number of Remaining Aggregate Weighted
Range of Ouistanding Contracnal Life  Intrinsic Value Average
Exercise Prices  (in thousands) (in years) (in thousands)  Exercise Price
$21-23 757 6 b 9415 § 23
24-27 62 6 117 27
28-31 70 7 240 32
Stock-settled SAR's Vested and Expected to Vest
Weighted
Number Vested Average
and Expected Remaining Aggregate Weighted
to Vest Contracwial Life  Intrinsic Value Averape
(in thousands} (in years) (in thousands)  Exercise Price
$21-23 720 6 3 8,960 § 23
24-27 53 6 100 27
28-31 60 7 206 32
Stock-settled SAR's Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Number Remaining Aggregate Weighted
Exercisable Contractual Life  Intrinsic Value Average
(in thousands) (in years) (in thousands)  Exercise Price
$21-23 - - $ - 3 -
24-27 - - - -
28-31 - - - -

Nonvested Shares

During 2006, the Company granted 61,100 nonvested shares for certain associates under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan. The
nonvested shares are subject to a three-year graded vesting schedule and are not subject to any performance vesting conditions.

During 2006, the Company granted 4,800 nonvested shares to certain associates under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. The
nonvested shares are subject to a three-year graded vesting schedule and are not subject to any performance vesting conditions.

During 2006, the Company granted 7,205 nonvested shares under the Director Plan. These shares will vest on May 1, 2007.
In addition, pursuant to the provisions of the Director Plan, Directors elected to defer compensation into 16,422 stock units
that will be issued as common stock subsequent to the Directors’ resignation from the Board. Of these stock units, 9,775 will
vest on May 1, 2007, The remaining 6,647 stock units will vest ratably over a one-year period. Deferral does not affect
vesting. Deferred stock units are excluded from the summary table of nonvested shares.

On July 18, 2005, the Company granted its Chief Executive Officer and President 214,250 nonvested shares. The nonvested
shares will ¢liff vest on the third anniversary of the grant.
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Transactions for nonvested shares for the fiscal year 2006 were as follows:

53 Weeks Ended February 3, 2007

Weighted Average

Grant Date Fair
(shares in thousands) Nonvested Shares Value
Nonvested at beginning of period 301§ 19
Granted 73 23
Vested (46) 16
Forfeited or expired (10 19
Nonvested at end of period 318 21

The weighted average grant date fair value of units granted in 2005 and 2004 was $20 and $186, respectively.

Cash-settled SAR’s

During 2006, the Company issued 105,530 cash-settled SAR’s on 105,530 shares. Transactions for cash-settled SAR’s for the
fiscal year 2006 were as follows:

53 Weeks Ended February 3, 2007
Cash-Settled Weighted Average

(shares in thousands) SAR's Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of period 108 § 17
Granted 106 22
Exercised (38) 18
Forfeited or expired (37) 19
Outstanding at end of period 119 20
Exercisable or convertible at end of period 43 17
Weighted average fair value of units granted (per unit) $ 9
Fair Value

Effective January 29, 2006, grants under the Company's equity incentive plans are accounted for as provided by SFAS No.
123(R). Compensation expense for appreciation vehicles is based on the fair market value as of the grant date. For nonvested
share grants, compensation expense is based upon the grant date fair value (i.e., the average of the high and low trading prices
of the Company’s stock on the grant date.)

Beginning in fiscal year 2006, the Company changed its method of determining the fair value of share-based awards from the
Black-Scholes model to a binomial model. The binomial model considers a range of assumptions relative to volatility, risk-
free interest rates and employee exercise behavior, which more accurately models actual employee behaviors. The Company
believes the binomial model provides a fair value that is more representative of actual and future experience.

55




The fair value of options and stock-settled SAR’s granted were calculated using the following assumptions:

53 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006 January 29, 2005

Risk-free interest rate 4.9% 3.9% 4.3%
Expected dividend yield -% -% -%
Expected appreciation vehicle life (in years) 6 5 7

Weighted-average expected volatility 35% 34% 33%

Risk-free interest rate — The rate is based on zero-coupon U.S. Treasury yields in effect at the date of grant, utilizing separate
rates for each whole year up to the contractual term of the appreciation vehicle and interpolating for time periods between those
not listed.

Expected dividend yield — the Company has not historically paid dividends and has no immediate plans to do so; as a result, the
dividend yield is assumed to be zero.

Expected appreciation vehicle life — The expected life is derived from the output of the binomial lattice model and represents
the period of time that the appreciation vehicles are expected to be outstanding. This model incorporates time-based early
exercise assumptions based on an analysis of historical exercise patterns.

Expected Volatility —The rate used in the binomial model is based on an analysis of historical prices of the Company's stock.
The Company currently believes that historical volatility is & geod indicator of future volatility.

The total fair value of shares vested during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $5.5 million, $8.9 million and 39.6 million, respectively.

Compensation Expense

SFAS No. 123(R) requires compensation expense associated with share-based awards to be recognized over the requisite
service period, which for the Company is the period between the grant date and the award's stated vesting term.

The Company used the tranche specific attribution method for stock option and nonvested share awards with graded vesting
issued prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123{R}. Share-based awards issued after the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) will be
expensed under the straight-line attribution method, with the exception of performance-based stock-settled SAR’s that are
expensed under the tranche specific attribution method.

The amount of share-based compensation recognized during a period is based on the vatue of the portion of the awards that are
expected to vest. SFAS No. 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. This analysis is evaluated quarterly and the forfeiture rate
is adjusted as necessary. For performance-based stock-settled SAR’s, compensation expense is recorded over the vesting
period based on estimates of achieving the performance goal. Ultimately, the actual expense recognized over the vesting
period will be based on only those shares that vest.

Total share-based compensation expense of $12.2 million before tax has been included in the Company's consolidated
statement of earnings (loss) for the 33 weeks ended February 3, 2007. Included in this amount is $8.8 million of stock option
and stock-settled SAR expense that was recognized as a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R). No amount of share-based
compensation has been capitalized. Total share-based compensation expense is summmarized as follows:

53 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts) February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006 January 29, 2005
Cost of sales 5 41 § - $ -
Sefling, general and administrative expenses 8.1 5.0 1.7
Share-based compensation expense before income taxes 12.2 5.0 1.7
Tax benefit 4.4) (1.8) (0.5
Share-based compensation expense after income laxes 3 78 $ 32 § 1.2
Effect on:

Basic camings per share $ 012 § 005 § 0.02

Diluted earnings per share $ : 0.12 5 005 § 0.02
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As of February 3, 2007, the Company had uniecognized compensation expense related to nonvested awards of approximately
$15.4 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.

Note 3 — Restructuring Charges

During 2004, the Company initiated a restructuring plan to build long-term shareowner value. The Company has substantially
completed the restructuring, which included: 1} ctosing all Parade stores, 2) sale of Chile and Peru entities, 3) closing of 264
Payless ShoeSource stores, 4) ceasing all wholesale businesses with no significant growth opportunity and 5} eliminating
approximately 200 management and administrative positions.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144™), the
results of operations of Parade, Peru, Chile and 26 Payless ShoeSource stores have been classified as discontinued operations
in the Company’s consolidated statements of earnings (loss).

In accordance with SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” employee severance,
contract termination and other exit costs are recorded at their estimated fair value when they are incurred. Employee severance
costs include estimates regarding the amount of severance payments made to certain terminated associates, and contract
termination costs include estimates regarding the length of time required to sublease vacant space and expected recovery rates.
Actual results could vary from these estimates.

The significant components of the restructuring charge incurred as of February 3, 2007, are summarized as follows:

Total Charges  Accrual Balance as of Accrual Cash Accrual Balance as of
{doMars in millions) 1o Date January 28, 2006 Adjustments  Paymenis February 3, 2007
Employee severance costs b3 90 8 1.0 § - 8 08 % 0.2
Contract ternination costs LA 5.5 1.6 4.3) 28
Other exit costs 5.1 - - - -

442 § 65 § 1.6 § (5.1) $ 3.0

Asset impairments and net disposal losses 35.0
Total Charges $ 79.2

The Company expects that the payments of employee severance costs will be substantially completed by June 2007. The
remaining contract termination abligations primarily relate to lease obligations for vacant space (certain lease terms extend
through June 2014) resulting from the store closings.
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Note 4 — Discontinued Operations

Payless Domestic

In accordance SFAS No. 144, the results of operations for the 53 weeks ended February 3, 2007, and the 52 weeks ended
January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, for Parade and 26 Payless closed stores are classified as discontinued operations
within the Payless Domestic segment. Payless stores are considered for discontinued operations disclosure if the nearest store
is greater than 10 miles from the closed store. If the nearest store is greater than 10 miles from the store to be closed, the store
is generally not expected to realize a migration of significant direct cash inflows as a result of the closure and, consequently,
these stores are considered to be discontinued operations. If the nearest store is less than 10 miles from the closed store, the
Company generally expects to realize a migration of significant direct cash inflows as a result of the closure and those stores
are not reported as discontinued operations. The following is a summary of Payless Domestic results:

53 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
February 3, January 28, January 29,

(dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Net Sales $ - b - 3 100.8
Loss from discentinued operations before income taxes (0.8) (5.9) (11.5)
Benefit for income taxes {0.3) (2.2) {4.5)
Loss before disposal (0.5) 3.7 (7.0
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations, net of

income taxes of $12.9 for the 52 weeks ended

January 29, 2005 - - 204)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes s 0.5 $ (3.7 3 (27.4)

Additionally, the consolidated balance sheets include the assets of Parade and the 26 Payless closed stores presented as
discontinued operations. As of February 3, 2007, and January 28, 2006, the current assets and liabilities of discontinued

operations within the Payless Domestic segment were as follows:

February 3, January 28,

(dollars in millions} 2007 2006
Assets
Current assets:

Current deferred income taxes . s 0.8 $ 1.3

Other current assets 0.2 (.3
Tatal current assets of discontinued operations 3 1.0 $ 1.6
Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accrued expenses $ 2.1 3.4
Total current tiabilities of discontinued operations s 2.1 3.4
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Payless International

During 2006, the Company exited its retail operations in Japan and closed its one store location. As of February 3, 2007, the
Company is substantially complete with the exit process. In 2004, the Company closed all stores in Peru and Chile. The
following is a summary of Japan, Peru and Chile results and balance sheets of which all activity and balances are components

of the Payless International segment:

53 Weeks Ended 52 Wecks Ended 52 Weeks Ended
February 3, January 28, January 29,
(dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Net Sales s 0.8 $ 1.6 3 2.3
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes
and minority interest (3.0) (3.9) 94
Provision for income taxes - - 0.4
Minority interest 1.2 1.6 3.9
Loss before disposal (1.8) 2.3) (5.9)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations, net of minority interest
of $0.7 and $3.9 for the 53 weeks ended February 3, 2007 and
52 weeks ended January 29, 2005, respectively, and income
taxes of zero for all periods (1.1) - (5.8)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes and
minority interest 5 (2.9) 3 (2.3) $ (11.7)
February 3, January 28,
(dollars in millions) 2007 2006
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 0.1 ) 0.7
Inventories - 04
Other current assets - 0.2
Total current assets of discontinued operations 0.1 1.3
Noncument Assets:
Property and equipment, net - 1.0
Other assets - 0.4
Total noncurrent assets of discontinued operations - 1.4
Total assets of discontinued operations 0.1 $ 2.7
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable - $ 0.3
Accried expenses - 0.3
Total current liabilities of discontinued operations - 5 0.6
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Note 5 — Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

The tables below summarize quarterly results for the last two years. Quarterly results are determined in accordance with
annual accounting policies and all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, except as noted below)
necessary for a fair statement of the results for the interim periods have been included; however, certain items are based upon
estimates for the entire year.

{dollars in millions, except per share) 2006

Quarter First"’ Second”’ Third Fourth Year
Net sales $ 6945 § 706.1 § 7034 3 6927 §  2,796.7
Gross margin 255.8 244.0 241.3 234.6 975.7
Net earnings from continuing operations 36.8 33.0 30.6 25.0 1254
Lass from discontinued operations, net of income taxes and minority
interest (0.8) (0.5) (1.7 {0.4) 3.4
Net earnings 3 36.0 $ 325 % 289 % 246 $ 122.0
Basic carnings per share:""! ]
Eamings from continuing operations $ 055 § 0.50 % 047 % 038 § 1.90
Loss from discontinued operations {0.01) (0.01) {6.03) - (0.05)
Basic eamings per share S 0.54 § 049 § 044 § 038 3 1.85
Dituted eamings per share:™"
Eamings from continuing opcrations $ 054 S 049 § 046 § 038 § 1.87
Loss from discontinued operations (0.01) (0.01) (0.03) (0.01) (0.05)
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.53 3 048 $ 043 § 0.37 § 1.82
2005
Quarter First"”’ Second™’ Third Fourth Year
Net sales 3 6948 § 6934 §$ 666.5 § 611.0 § 26657
Giross margin 244.4 235.1 218.6 190.5 888.6
Net eamnings {loss) from continuing operations 323 22.4 224 (0.6) 76.5
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes and minotity
interest 2.1 (2.5) (0.5) (0.9) 6.0)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net™ - - - 4.1) 4.1)
Net eamings (loss) 5 30.2 S8 199 § 219 § (5.6) § 66.4
Basic (loss) earnings per share:")
Eamings (ioss) from continting operations $ 048 5 033 § 033 3§ 0.0 § 1.13
Loss from discontinued operations (0.03) {0.04) {0.01) (0.01} (0.09)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principlc® - - - {008 _ (006)
Basic camnings (loss) per share 3 045 § 029 % 032 § (0.08) § .98
Diluted eamines (toss) per share:'"”
Eamings (loss} from continuing operations $ 048 5 033 § 033 3 0.01) § 113
Loss from discontinued operations (0.03) (0.04) 00N {0.01) (0.09)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle'” - - - (0.06) (0.06)
Diluted eamings (loss) per share 3 045 § 029 $ 032 § (0.08) $ 0.98

(1) Earnings (toss) per share were computed independently for each of the quarters presented. The sum of the quarters may not equal the
total year amount due to the impact of changes in average quarterly shares outstanding.

(2)  As discussed in Note 20, during the fourth quarter of 2005 the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.”

(3) Quarterly results for first and second quarter reflect the effect of Japan being reported as discontinued operations and are different
than what was reported in the Company’s Form 10-Q’s as filed on June 6, 2006 and September 6, 2006, respectively. See Note 4.

{4} During 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” Scc Note 2.
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Note 6 — Profit Sharing Plan

The Company has two qualified profit sharing plans (“Payless Profit Sharing Plans™) that cover full-time associates who have
worked for the Company for 60 days and have attained age 21 or part-time associates whe work 1,000 hours or more in a year
and have attained age 21. The Payless Profit Sharing Plans are defined contribution plans that provide for Company
contributions related to the Company’s annual performance and are at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company
funds a minimum guaranteed Company matching contribution of $0.25 per $1.00 contributed by associates. Associate
contributions up to 5% of their pay are eligible for the match. The Company has historically contributed 2.5% of net profits as
defined by the plans. At the discretion of the Board of Directors, the 2006 contribution was determined to be 2.5% of pre-tax
earnings from continuing operations. Associates may voluntarily contribute to the Company’s profit sharing plans on both a
pre-tax and after-tax basis. For 2006, the Company’s contribution is allocated to all associates participating in the Payless
Profit Sharing Plans who have worked for the Company for at least six months, if full-time, or one year, if part-time, as of
December 31. Total profit sharing contributions for 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $4.2 million, $2.7 million and $1.3 million,
respectively.

Note 7 — Pension Plan

The Company has a nonqualified, supplementary defined benefit plan for a select group of management employees. The plan
is an unfunded, noncontributory plan and provides for benefits based upon years of service and cash compensation during
employment.

Pension expense is based on information provided to an outside actuarial firm that uses assumptions to estimate the total
benefits ultimately payable to each management employee and allocates this cost to service periods. The actuarial assumptions
used to calculate pension expense are reviewed annually for reasonableness. The measurement date used for the 2006 actuarial
valuation was January 31, 2007.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans ~ An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” This statement requires companies
to recognize a net liability or asset and an offsetting adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income (“AQCI”} to
report the funded status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans. The adjustment to AQCI at adoption
represents the net unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior service costs, These amounts will be subsequently
recognized as net periodic pension cost subject to the Company’'s historical accounting policy for amortizing such amounts.
Additional minimum pension liabilities {“AML"} and related intangible assets are also derecognized upon adoption of the new
standard. The statement requires prospective application, and the recognition and disclosure requirements are effective for
companies with fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006. The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 as of February 3, 2007.
The following table summarizes the incremental effect of adopting the provisions of SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had no impact on the Company’s consolidated statement of
earnings for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007, or for any prior period presented, and it will not affect the Company’s
operating results in future periods.

Prior to AML
Adjustment and Effect of

Adoption of SFAS AML Adopting  As Reported at
(dollars in millions) 158 Adjustment  SFAS 158 February 3, 2007
Other assets 3 446 § 1.8 3 {32) § 43.2
Accrued expenses 188.7 - 1.5 % 190.2
Other liabilities 121.0 6.9 47 3 132.6
Accumulated other comprehensive income,
net of income taxes $ 84 3§ an s 4.7 % 0.6
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Included in accumulated other comprehensive income are the following amounts that have not yet been recognized in net
periodic pension cost:

(dollars in millions) 2006

Net loss, net of income taxes of $4.1 s 6.3
Prior service cost, net of income taxes of $1.2 240
Total 3 8.3

The net loss and prior service cost included in accumulated other comprehensive income and expected to be recognized in net
periodic pension cost during fiscal year 2007 is $0.6 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

The following information provides a summary of the funded status of the plan, amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets, and major assumptions used to determine these amounts:

{dollars in miliions) 2006 2005
Change in projected benefit obligation:

Obligation at beginning of year § 215 $ 208
Service cost 0.8 0.7
Interest cost 1.3 1.1
Plan amendments 23 0.4
Actuarial loss (gain) 6.4 0.7y
Benefits paid 1.2 (0.8}
Obligation at end of year $ 3.1 $ 21.5
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $ 26.4 h 18.0

Reconciliation of funded status:

Funded status 3 (311 § (21.%
Unrecognized net actuarial loss * 4.0
Unrecognized prior service cost * 1.4
Net amount recognized 5 (31.1) § {16.1)

* Not applicable due to SFAS No. 1358

Assumptions:
Discount rate 5.75% 5.50%
Salary increases 3.0% 3.0%

Of the $31.1 million liability recognized as of February 3, 2007, $1.5 million is recorded in accrued expenses and $29.6
million is recorded in other liabilities.

The components of net periodic benefit costs and actuarial assumptions for the plan were:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Components of pension expense:

Service cost k) 0.8 $ 07 % 08
Interest cost 1.3 1.1 1.1
Amortization of prior service cost 0.4 0.2 0.2
Amortization of actuarial loss 0.2 0.1 0.2
Total ) 27 3 21 3§ 2.3
Assumptions:

Discount rate 5.75% 5.50% 5.50%
Salary increases 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
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Estimated future benefit payments for the next five years and the aggregate amount for the following five years are:

(dollars in millions)

2007 $
2008

2009

2010

2011

2012-2016

Note 8 — Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations consisted of the following:

1.5
1.7
1.7
177
1.2
7.7

(doltars in millions) 2005 2004
Federal 67 8 15.9
State and local 0.7 0.7
Foreign 9.7 3.0

Current tax provision 17.1 19.6
Federal 10.2 (C))]
State and local 0.8 0.6
Foreign 2.7 (1.0

Deferred tax provision (benefit) 13.7 (6.4)

Total provision 308 3 13.2

The reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective income tax rate as applied to continuing

operations was as follows:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Statutory federal income tax rate 350 % $ 594 350 % $ 386 350 % 5 168
State and local income taxes, net of federal

tax benefit 1.8 30 1.4 1.5 04 02
Rate differential on foreign camings, net of

valuation allowance (5.8) (9.8) (2.5) (2.8) (8.5) 4.1)
Canada statutory rate change 0.2 0.4 - - 0.4 0.2
Repatriation of foreign eamnings - - 1.3 1.4 4.8 2.3
Decrease in excess tax reserves 8.7 (14.7) (5.3) 3.9 (3.8) (1.8)
Federal employment tax credits (0.8) (1.3) {1.0) (LD n (0.8)
Other, net 18 29 (1.0) {0.9) 0.9 0.4
Effective incotne tax rate 235 % § 399 219 % § 308 275 % § 132

The amount of income taxes the Company pays is subject to ongoing audits by federal, state and foreign tax authorities, which
often result in proposed assessments. The Company’s estimate for the potential outcome for any uncertain tax issue is highly
judgmental. The Company believes it has adequately provided for any reasonable foreseeable outcome related to these
matters. However, future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments to estimated tax liabilities in the period the
assessments are made or resolved or when statutes of limitation on potential assessments expire. Additionally, the jurisdictions
in which the Company’s earnings or deductions are realized may differ from the Company's current estimates. As a result, the

Company’s effective tax rate may fluctuate significantly on a quarterly basis due to discrete events.
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Major components of deferred income tax assets and (liabilities) were as follows:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005

Deferred Tax Assels:
Accrued expenscs and reserves $ 494 § 429
Tax net operating losses and tax credits 16.6 20.8
Other deferred income taxes, net 1.1 i.2
Gross deferred income tax assets 67.1 54.9
Depreciationfamortization and basis differences (7.1 (9.4)
Valuation allowance (6.7) {1.8)
Net deferred income tax asscts 53.3 4.7
Less: Net current deferred income tax assets (15.6) {20.2)
Net noncurrent deferred income tax assets 5 377 § 27.5

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Depreciation/amertization and basis differences $ 02) $ (0.8}
Short term assets basis differences (9.6) -
Total deferred tax liabilities (9.8) {0.8)
Less: Net current deferred income tax habilities (included in

accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets) 9.6 -

Net noncurrent deferred tax liabilities (included in other
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets) $ 02) $ (0.8)

During 2006, the Company tecorded an increase to its deferred tax assets, related to items of other comprehensive income, of
$5.3 million, net of translation adjustments of $0.4 million.

The Company provides a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets if, based on management’s assessment of
historical and projected future operating results and other available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the-
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company carries valuation allowances related primarily to realization of foreign
net operating loss carryforwards and state income tax credits. During 2006, the Company increased its valuation allowance
relating to state income tax credits originating in prior years by $1.4 million, and decreased its valuation allowance relating to
foreign net operating losses originating in prior years by $1.2 million, due to a change in circumstances causing a change in
judgment about the Company’s ability to realize the value of the assets.

At February 3, 2007, deferred tax assets for state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards are $8.5 million, less a valuation
allowance of $1.9 million. The net operating losses related to recorded assets will expire as follows: $0.4 million in 2007
through 2009, $0.2 million in 2008 through 2009, $2.2 million in 2010 through 2011, and $3.8 million by 2024. In addition,
state income tax credit carryforwards are $8.1 million, less a valuation allowance of $4.7 million. The remaining valuation
allowance relates to other deferred tax assets in a Latin American country that does not have a history of earnings. The tax
credit carryforwards related to the recorded assets expire as follows: $1.0 miltion by 2013 and $2.4 million may be carried
forward indefinitely.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, enacted on Qctober 22, 2004 (the “Jobs Act”), provided for a temporary 85%
dividends received deduction on certain foreign eamings repatriated during a one-year period. To qualify for the deduction, the
earnings must be reinvested in the U.S, pursuant to a domestic reinvestment plan established by a company’s Chief Executive
Officer and approved by its Board of Directors. Certain other criteria in the Jobs Act must be satisfied as well. During 2005,
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer established domestic reinvestment plans which were approved by the Board of
Directors. Pursuant to the plans, the Company repatriated $85.0 million from foreign subsidiaries during 2005. The
repatriation resulted in recognition of income tax expense of $3.7 million, for which the Company provided $2.3 miilion in
2004 and $1.4 million in 2005. At the close of 2006, the Company has not provided tax on its cumulative undistributed
eamings of foreign subsidiaries of approximately $50 million, because it is the Company’s intention to reinvest these earnings
indefinitely. The calculation of the unrecognized deferred tax liability related to these earnings is complex and is not
practicable. If earnings were distributed, the Company would be subject to U.S. taxes and withholding taxes payable to
various foreign governments. Based on the facts and circumstances at that time, the Company would determine whether a
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credit for foreign taxes already paid would be available to reduce or offset the U.S. tax liability. The Company anticipates that
earnings would not be repatriated unless it was tax efficient to do so.

Note 9 — Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share include the effect of conversions of stock options, stock-settled
stock appreciation rights (“SSAR’s”) and nonvested shares. Diluted carnings per share have been computed as follows:

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts; shares in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Net earnings from continuing operations $ 1254 § 76.5 3§ 37.1
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 65,894 67,520 67,947
Net effect of dilutive stock opttons based on the treasury stock method 952 306 23
Net effect of dilutive SSAR's based on the treasury stock method 6 - -
Dilutive shares due to nonvested shares 122 28 50
Qutstanding shares for diluted earnings per share 66,974 67,854 68,020
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $ 1.87 § 113§ 0.55

The Company uses the treasury stock method for calculating the dilutive effect of employee stock options, stock-settled stock
appreciation rights (“stock-settled SAR’s”) and nonvested shares. These instruments will have a dilutive effect under the
treasury stock method only when the respective period’s average market value of the underlying Company common stock
exceeds the actual proceeds. In applying the treasury stock method, assumed proceeds include the amount, if any, the
employee must pay upon exercise, the amount of compensation cost for future services that the Company has not yet
recognized, and the amount of tax benefits, if any, that would be credited to additional paid-in capital assuming exercise of the
options and stock-settled SAR’s and the vesting of nonvested shares. There were no stock options or stock-settled stock
appreciation rights excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the 53 weeks ended February 3, 2007. The
Company excluded approximately 1.4 million and 7.3 million stock options from the calculation of diluted earnings per share
for the 52 weeks ended January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, respectively.

Note 10 — Favorable Leases

Favorable lease rights subject to amortization pursuant to SFAS 142 are as follows:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005
Gross carrying amount $ 672 § 75.6
Less: accumulated amortization (54.4) (57.4)
Carrying amount, end of vear s 128 $ 18.2

Amortization expense on favorable lease rights was as follows:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Amortization expense on favorable lease rights $ 32 3§ 34 % 4.1

The Company expects annual amortization expense for favorable lease rights for the next five years to be as follows (in
millions):

Year Amount

2007 $ 2.6
2008 22
2009 1.8
2010 1.5
2011 1.3
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Note 11 — Notes Payable

The Company has entered into $2.0 million of demand notes payable to efficiently finance its subsidiaries in the Central
American Region. The Company maintains balances of $2.0 million in certificates of deposit as compensating balances to
collateralize these notes payable. The notes payable accrue interest at a weighted average rate of 6.75%. The certificates of
deposit earn interest at a weighted average rate of 6.00% and are reflected as restricted cash in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet.

Note 12 — Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Major components of accrued expenses included:

{dollars in millions) 2006 2005

Profit sharing, bonus and salaries s 683 % 56.1
Sales, use and other taxes 343 30.2
Income taxes 26.6 23.9
Accrued restructuring costs 0.9 32
Other accrued expenses 60.1 50.1
Total ' $ 190.2 § 163.5

Major components of other liabilities included:

(dolars in millions) 2006 2005
Pension plan s 296 § 18.0
Deferred tenant improvement allowances, net 26.1 5.0
Accrued step rent 24.6 21.7
Workers' compensation and generat

liability insurance reserves 16.3 18.9
Other 36.0 25.7
Total 5 1326 3§ 109.3

Note 13 — Long-term Debt

Long-term debt and capital-lease obligations were:

(doltars in millions) 2006 2005

Senior subordinated notes* $ 1976 § 197.3
Capital-lease obligations 0.5 0.9
Other 4.0 6.4
Total debt 202.1 2046
Less: current maturities of long-term debt 0.4 0.4
Long-term debt $ 201.7 § 204.2
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Future debt maturities as of February 3, 2007, are as follows:

(dollars in millions}

Senior Capital
Subordinated Lease
Year Notes Obligations Other Total
2007 5 - 3 04 § - 5 0.4
2008 - 0.1 - 0.1
2009 - - 4.0 4.0
2010 - - - -
2011 - - - -
Thereafter 200.0* - - 200.0
Total $ 2000 $ 05 § 40 § 204.5

* At February 3, 2007, the $200 million of 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes are recorded at $197.6 million (net of $2.4
million discount). At January 28, 2006, the notes were recorded at $197.3 million (net of $2.7 million discount).

The Company maintains a $200 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Facility”). Funds borrowed under the
Facility are secured by domestic merchandise inventory and receivables. In April 2006, the Company entered into its first
Amendment to the Facility. Among other things, the amendment extends the term of the Facility until January 15, 2011,
allows the Company to increase the maximum borrowing amount up to $250 miltion from $200 million prior to the expiration
of the Facility, and decreases the quarterly commitment fee payable on the unborrowed balance from 0.30% to 0.25%. The
Facility bears interest at the London Inter-bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™), plus a variable margin of 1.0% to 1.5%, or the base
rate as defined in the agreement governing the Facility, based upon certain borrowing levels. The variable interest rate
including the applicable variable margin at February 3, 2007 was 6.37%. A quarterly commitment fee of 0.25% per annum is
payable on the unborrowed balance. No amounts were drawn on the Facility as of February 3, 2007. Based on the Company’s
current borrowing base, the Company may borrow up to $187.1 million under the Facility, less $30.4 million in outstanding
letters of credit as of February 3, 2007.

In July 2003, the Company sold $200.0 million of 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes (the “Notes™) for $196.7 million, due
2013. The discount of $3.3 million is being amortized to interest expense over the life of the Notes. The Notes are guaranteed
by all of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries. Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually. The Notes contain various
covenants including those that may limit the Company’s ability to pay dividends, repurchase stock, accelerate the retirement of
other subordinated debt or make certain investments. As of February 3, 2007, the Company is in compliance with all
covenants. As of February 3, 2007, the fair value of the Notes is $207.0 million based on recent trading activity of the Notes.
On or after August 1, 2008, the Company may, on any one or more occasions, redeemn all or a part of the Notes at the
redemption prices set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the Notes redeemed, to the applicable
redemption date:

Year Percentage

2008 104,125%
2009 102.750%
2010 101.375%
2011 and thereafter 100.000%

Note 14 — Lease Obligations

The Company leases substantially all of its stores. Rental expense for the Company’s operating leases consisted of:

(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004

Minimum rentals $ 2706 § 2642 % 266.5
Contingent rentals based on sales 7.1 7.0 7.0
Real property rentals 2777 271.2 2735
Equipment rentals 0.3 0.3 0.7
Total $ 2780 § 2715 % 274.2
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Most lease agreements contain renewal options and include escalating rents over the lease terms. Certain leases provide for
contingent rentals based upon gross sales. Cumulative expense recognized on the straight-line basis in excess of cumulative
payments is included in accrued expenses and other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Certain of
the Company’s lease agreements provide for scheduled rent increases during the lease term, as well as provisions for renewal
options. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease from the time at which the Company
takes possession of the property. In instances where failure to exercise renewal options would result in an economic penalty,
the calculation of straight-line rent expense includes renewal option periods. Also, landlord-provided tenant improvement
allowances are recorded as a liability and amentized as a credit to rent expense.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable lease obligations as of February 3, 2007, were as follows:

Capital Operating

{dollars in millions) Leases Leases Total
2007 5 04 S 2544 5 254.8
2008 0.1 2259 226.0
2009 - 191.6 191.6
2010 - 159.0 159.0
2011 - 127.6 127.6
2012 and thereafter - 275.0 275.0
Minimum lease payments 3 05 & 1,2335 §  1,2340
Less: imputed interest component 0.1

Present valee of net minimum lease payments,
included in current liabilities § 04

At February 3, 2007, the total amount of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancelable subleases was
$11.1 mitlion.

Note 15 — Commeon Stock Repurchases

The Company has repurchased the following:

{dollars in millions, shares in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Dollars _ Shares Dollars Shares Dollars Shares
Stock repurchase program $ 1284 4960 § 704 3234 3 101 839
Employee stock purchase, deferred compensation
and stock incentive plans 0.9 14 0.8 45 1.3 99
§$ 1293 4994 § 712 3279 § 114 938

Under the indenture governing the Company’s 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes, the Company may repurchase approximately
$12.4 million of common stock. This limit may increase or decrease based upon the Company’s eamings. As of February 3,
2007, the Company has approximately $39.3 million of remaining commeon stock repurchase authorization from its Board of
Directors. On March 2, 2007, the Company’s board of directors authorized an aggregate of $250 million of share repurchases.

Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies

As of February 3, 2007, the Company has $46.7 miilton of royalty obligations consisting of minimum royalty payments for the
purchase of branded merchandise, $18.3 million of equipment purchase obligations related to a new distribution facility, $10.0
million of intangible asset obligations related to trademark purchases, $10.1 million of service agreement obligations relating
to minimum payments for services that the Company cannot avoid without penalty and $3.1 million of employment agreement
obligations related to minimum payments to certain of the Company’s executives.
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Other than as described below, there are no material pending legal proceedings other than ordinary, routine litigation incidental
to the business to which the Company is a party or of which any of its property is subject. Legal fees associated with pending
legal proceedings are expensed when incurred.

On or about February 5, 2004, a complaint was filed against the Company in the U.S. District Court for the Central District of
California, captioned K-Swiss, Inc. v. Payless ShoeSource, Inc. The Complaint seeks injunctive relief and unspecified
monetary damages for trademark and trade dress infringement, trademark dilution and unfair competition. On May 14, 2005, a
First Amended Complaint was filed, to include a breach of contract claim. The Company believes it has meritorious defenses
to the claims asserted in the lawsuit and has filed an answer. A pre-trial conference was held on November 13, 2006, during
which the trial judge indicated that he was transferring the case to a new judge for all further proceedings. The case
subsequently was assigned to Judge George P. Schiavelli and a status conference was held on January 29, 2007. During that
status conference, Judge Schiavelli set a February 5, 2008 trial date, with the pretrial conference to be held on January 7, 2008.
On October 12, 2006, the Company filed a suit against St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company (“St. Paul”), in Kansas
state court seeking damages and a declaratory judgment that St. Paul is obligated to provide coverage in connection with the
underlying lawsuit brought by K-Swiss. On October 18, 2006, St. Paul filed a separate declaratory judgment action in the U.S.
District Court for the Central District of California seeking a declaration that there is no coverage for the underlying lawsuit.
The Company has moved to dismiss the California action filed by St. Paul, which was granted on February 12, 2007. On
November 2, 2006, St. Paul removed the action from state court to the U.S. District Court for the District of Kansas. Also, on
November 2, 2006, St. Paul moved to transfer the Kansas action to the U.8. District Court for the Central District of
California, which was denied on January 10, 2007. On January 23, 2007, St. Paul filed a motion to stay the Kansas Action
until the underlying lawsuit is resolved, which was granted on March 2, 2007. An estimate of the possible loss, if any or the
range of the loss cannot be made. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

On or about December 20, 2001, a First Amended Complaint was filed against the Company in the U.S. District Court for the
District of Oregon, captioned adidas America, Inc. and adidas-Salomon AG v. Payless ShoeSource, Inc. The First Amended
Complaint seeks injunctive relief and unspecified monetary damages for trademark and trade dress infringement, unfair
competition, deceptive trade practices and breach of contract. The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to claims
asserted in the lawsuit and has filed an answer and a motion for summary judgment which the court granted in part. On June
18, 2004, the plaintiff appealed the District Court’s ruling on the motion for summary judgment. On January 5, 2006, the o™
Circuit Court of Appeals entered an order reversing the District Court’s partial summary judgment order. The Company
requested a rehearing en banc, which was denied by the 9" Circuit Court of Appeals. On June 29, 2006, the Company filed a
petition for writ of certiorari to the United States Supreme Court, which was denied on October 2, 2006. On August 22, 2006,
the District Court entered an amended scheduling order setting an August 14, 2007 trial date. An estimate of the possible loss,
if any or the range of loss cannot be made. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

On or about April 3, 2006, Crocs Inc. filed two companion actions against several manufacturers of foam clog footwear
asserting claims for patent infringement, trade dress infringement, and unfair competition. One complaint was filed before the
United States International Trade Commission (“ITC”) in Washington D.C. The other complaint was filed in federal district
court in Colorado. Collective Licensing International LLC (“Collective™), who licenses Airwalk® brand to the Company, was
named as a Respondent in the ITC Investigation, and as a Defendant in the Colorado federal court action. The Company has
not been named in either matter; however, the Company owes certain indemnity obligations to Collective under its licensing
agreement. The ITC published notice in the Federal Register on May 8, 2006, announcing that it is commencing an
investigation into the allegations contained in Crocs® complaint. In accordance with federal law, the Colorado federal court
action will be stayed pending the outcome of the ITC investigation. A motion to stay the Colorado federal court action was
filed on May 12, 2006. Before the ITC, Crocs seeks an order and injunction prohibiting any of the respondents from importing
or selling any imported shoes that infringe on Crocs’ patent and trade dress rights. In the federal court action, which, as noted
above, will be stayed, Crocs seeks damages and injunctive relief prohibiting the defendants from infringing on Crocs’
intellectual property rights. On November 7, 2006, the Administrative Law Judge in the ITC action entered an order granting
summmary judgment of non-infringement of design patent No. 0517,589 in favor of Collective and the other remaining
respondents. Further, because Crocs’ expert and fact witnesses admitted that the recent versions of the shoes of all respondents
did not infringe the separate utility patent at issue, Crocs proposed that the trial, which was to commence on November 13,
2006, be continued pending review. All respondents agreed not to oppose Crocs’ request to continue the trial and on
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November 8, 2006, the Administrative Law Judge entered an order on Crocs' motion postponing the trial indefinitely pending
review of the summary judgment motion by the ITC. On December 21, 2006, the ITC decided to review, in part, the initial
determination granting summary determination of non-infringement of design patent No. D517,589. On February 15, 2007,
the ITC vacated the initial determination and remanded for further proceedings. On February 22, 2007, the Administrative
Law Judge entered an order extending the date for completion of the investigation to August 11, 2008; affirming his previous
narrow claim construction of design patent No. D517,789; and rejecting the ¢laim construction proposed by Crocs. Also,
under this order, hearing has been set for January 14 — 18, 2008, and the deadline for an initial determination by the
Administrative Law Judge is April 11, 2008. The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to the claims asserted in the
lawsuits and has filed an answer. An estimate of the possible loss, if any or the range of loss cannot be made. However, the
ultimate resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note 17 — Segment Reporting

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation of retail locations offering family footwear and
accessories. The Company operates its business in two reportable business segments: Payless Domestic and Payless
International. These segments have been determined based on internal management reporting and management responsibilities.
The Payless Domestic segment includes retail operations in the United States, Guam and Saipan and sourcing operations. The
Payless International segment includes retail operations in Canada, the South American Region, the Central American Region,
Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The Company’s operations in its Central American and South -American Regions are
operated as joint ventures in which the Company maintains a 60% ownership interest. Certain management costs for services
performed by Payless Domestic and certain royalty fees and sourcing fees charged by Payless Domestic are allocated to the
Payless International segment. These total costs and fees amounted to $24.1 million, $18.1 million and $18.0 million during
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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The reporting period for operations in the Central and South American Regions use a December 31 year-end. The effect of this
one-month lag on the Company’s financial position and results of operations is not significant. Information on the segments is
as follows:

Payless Payless Payless

(dollars in millions}) Domestic International  Consolidated
Fiscal year ended February 3, 2007
Revenues from external customers $ 23952 8 4015 § 2,796.7
Operating prefit from continuing operations 115.9 50.5 166.4
Interest expense 18.2 1.0 19.2
Interest income 20.7 2.0) (22.7)
Earnings from continuing operations before income

taxes and minority interest 118.4 51.5 169.9
Depreciation and amortization 74.3 14.2 88.5
Total assets 1,232.4 195.0 1,427.4
Long-lived assets 424.5 58.6 483.1
Additions to long-lived assets 146.4 12.7 159.1
Fiscal year ended January 28, 2006
Revenues from external customers § 23060 3 3597 § 2,665.7
Operating profit from continuing operations 834 343 117.7
Interest expense 18.6 1.1 19.7
Interest income (10.9) (1.4) (12.3)
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes

and minority interest 75.7 34.6 116.3
Depreciation and amortization 76.4 14.0 90.4
Total assets 1,157.5 157.0 1,314.5
Long-lived assets 368.0 64.5 432.5
Additions to long-lived assets 54.3 5.3 59.6
Fiscal year ended January 29, 2005
Revenues from external customers s 23265 § 3297 § 2,656.2
Operating profit from continuing operations 53.5 11.3 64.8
Interest expense 18.0 4.1 221
Interest income (2.3) (3.0 (5.3)
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes

and minority interest 37.8 10.2 48.0
Depreciation and amortization 80.3 14.3 94.6
Total assets 1,076.2 163.6 1,239.8
Long-lived assets 402.2 71.3 473.5
Additions to long-lived assets 98.6 12.0 110.6

Note 18 — Sharecowner Protection Rights Agreement

The Company has adopted a Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement (the “Plan™) which provides for a dividend of one right
(“Right™) for each outstanding share of the Company’s common stock. The Rights are separated by and traded with the
Company’s common stock. There are no separate certificates or markets for the Rights, and the Rights will expire on or before
May 21, 2008. No Rights were exercised under the Plan in fiscal 2006.

The Rights do not become exercisable or trade separately from the common stock unless 15% or more of the common stock of
the Company has been acquired, or after a tender or exchange offer is made for 15% or greater ownership of the Company’s
common stock. Should the Rights become exercisable; each Right will entitle the holder thereof to buy 1/ 100" of a share of
the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $83.33.

Under certain circumstances, each Right “flips-in” and becomes a right to buy, for the exercise price, the Company’s common

stock at a 50% discount. Under certain other circumstances, each Right “flips-over” and becomes a right to buy, for the
exercise price, an acquirer’s common stock at a 50% discount.
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The Rights may be redeemed by the Company for $0.01 per Right at any time on or prior to the first public announcement by
the Company of the acquisition by any person of beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s stock (or a later date
as determined by the Board of Directors).

Note 19 — Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the end of fiscal 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to shift to a dual-distribution center
model. As part of the plan, the Company intends to open a new distribution center east of the Mississippi river (in a location to
be determined) which will begin operation around June 2008. This distribution center will be in addition to the Company’s
Redlands, California distribution center that will commence operations in the summer of 2007. Once both new distribution
centers are operating satisfactorily, the Company plans to close its current distribution center in Topeka, Kansas. Total exit
costs related to the closing of the Topeka distribution center are currently estimated to be approximately $14 million,
consisting of approximately $4 million of non-cash accelerated depreciation expenses, approximately $8 million for employee
severance expenses, and approximately $2 million related to other exit costs. A portion of the employee severance expenses
will be recognized in the first quarter of 2007. The majority of the remaining exit costs will be recognized over the period
until the Topeka distribution center is closed. Actual results could vary from these estimates.

On March 6, 2007, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the partnership interest of Collective
International, LP (“Collective™) for $91 million in cash, excluding transaction costs and subject to customary purchase price
adjustments to reflect current assets and total liabilities at closing. Collective is a brand development, management and
licensing company that currently licenses the Airwalk brand to the Company. This transaction closed on March 30, 2007,

Note 20 — Change in Accounting Principle

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143" (“FIN 47”). FIN 47 clarified the timing of liability
recognition for legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset when the timing and {(or) method
of settiement of the obligation are conditional on a future event. FIN 47 also clarified that an entity is required to recognize a
liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation when a tangible long-lived asset is obtained, if the
liability’s fair value can be reasonably estimated. Please refer to Note 1 for further discussion regarding the Company’s
accounting for asset retirement obligations. Prior to this change, the Company expensed such asset retirement costs when
incurred. The initial adoption resulted in a charge of $4.1 miilion (net of income taxes and minority interest), which was
recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principte. The adoption increased net property and equipment by
$1.7 million, increased asset retirernent obligations by $8.5 million, and increased deferred tax assets by $2.7 million.

As of the end of 2005, the ARO liability was $8.5 million, and had FIN 47 been applied during 2004, the pro forma ARQO
liabilities would have been $8.5 million.
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Pro forma results of operations for 2004 had the Company applied the provisions of FIN 47 in those periods are as follows:

(doMlars in millions, except per share amounts) 2004

Net earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle:

As reported $ 2.0
Add: Total asset retirement expenses incleded in net

earnings (loss) as reported, net of related income taxes and

minority interest 0.8

Less: Total asset retirement expenses determined under FIN

47, net of related income taxes and minority interest 0.4
Pro forma net loss $ (L6)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: .

As reported . 8 (0.03)
Pro forma $ (0.02)

Note 21 — New Accounting Standards

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain
Hybrid Financial Instruments — an amendment of SFAS No. 133 and 140.” This Statement simplifies accounting for certain
hybrid financial instruments, eliminates the interim guidance in Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. D1, “Application of
Statement 133 to Beneficial Interest in Securitized Financial Assets,” and eliminates a restriction of the passive derivative
instruments that a qualifying special-purpose entity may hold. The Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2006. The adoption of this Statement is not anticipated to have a material impact on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF lssue 06-3, “How Taxes Collected From Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement.” A consensus was reached that entities
may adopt a policy of presenting sales taxes in the income statement on either a gross or net basis. If taxes are significant, an
entity should disclose its policy of presenting taxes and the amounts of taxes. The guidance is effective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2006. In the consolidated statement of earnings, The Company presents sales net of such taxes within the
scope of EITF Issue 06-3. Other than the additional required disclosure, this EITF will not have an impact on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements,

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, an interpretation of FAS 109, Accounting for Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”), to create a single model to address accounting
for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes, by prescribing a minimum recognition
threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance
on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.
FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt FIN 48 in the first fiscal
quarter of 2007, as required, and the cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 will be recorded in retained earnings. The
Company is in the process of evaluating FIN 48’s impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. The statement applies whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair
value, SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, The Company is evaluating the impact
the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” which provides interpretive guidance
regarding the consideration given to prior year misstatements when determining materiality in current year financial
statements. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The impact of this adoption was not
material to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities.” This
statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. If the fair
value option is elected, unrealized gains and losses will be recognized in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS
No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
this adoption on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note 22 — Related Party Transactions

The Company maintains banking relationships with certain financial institutions that are affiliated with some of the Company’s
Latin America joint venture partners. Total deposits in these financial institutions at end of 2006, 2003 and 2004 were $7.9
million, $9.3 million and $5.6 million, respectively. Total borrowings from the Company’s Latin American partners were $4.0
million, $6.4 million and $6.4 million as of the end of 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In addition, the Company recorded
interest expense of $0.2 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to these
borrowings.

Mr. Matthew E. Rubel is the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and President. The Company began a relationship with
Celadon Group, Inc. (“Celadon™) in 2002. Mr. Rubel’s father-in-law, Stephen Russell, is Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of Celadon. Pursuant to a competitive bid process, during 2006 Celadon won the right to be the primary
carrier on two of the Company’s transportation lanes. These lanes account for less than two percent of the Company’s
outbound line haul budget. The Company regularly competitively bids its line haul routes and as a result, Celadon could gain
or lose routes based upen its bids.

In June 2006, the Company entered into a Marketing and License Agreement with Ballet Theatre Foundation Inc., a nonprofit
organization, to use the American Ballet Theatre and ABT marks in connection with development, manufacture, marketing
promotion, distribution, and sale of certain dance footwear. Mr. Rubel became a Trustee of Ballet Theatre Foundation, Inc., in
January 2007,

Note 23 — Subsidiary Guarantors of Senior Notes - Consolidating Financial Information

The Company has issued Notes guaranteed by certain of its subsidiaries (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries™). The Guarantor
Subsidiaries are direct or indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries of the Company. The guarantees are full and
uncenditional, to the extent allowed by law, and joint and several.

The following supplemental financial information sets forth, on a consolidating basis, the condensed statements of earnings for
the Company (the “Parent Company™), for the Guarantor Subsidiaries and for the Company’s non-guarantor subsidiaries (the
“Non-guarantor Subsidiaries™) and total consclidated Payless ShoeSource, Inc. and subsidiaries for the 53 week period ended
February 3, 2007, and 52 weck periods ended January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, condensed balanced sheets as of
February 3, 2007, and January 28, 2006, and the condensed statements of cash flows for the 53 week period ended February 3,
2007, and the 52 week periods ended January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005. With the exception of operations in the Central
and South American Regions in which the Company has a 60% ownership interest, the Non-guarantor Subsidiaries are direct
or indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Guarantor Subsidiaries. The intercompany investment for each subsidiary is
recorded by its parent in Other Assets.

The Non-guarantor Subsidiaries are made up of the Company’s retail operations in the Central American and South American
Regions, Canada, Saipan and Puerto Rico and the Company’s sourcing organization in Hong Kong, Taiwan, China, Indonesia
and Brazil. The operations in the Central and South American Regions use a December 3! year-end. Operations in the
Central and South American Regions are included in the Company’s results on a one-month lag relative to results from other
regions. The effect of this one-month lag on the Company’s financial position and results of operations is not significant.

Under the indenture governing the Notes, the Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore and Japan are designated as unrestricted.

The effect of these subsidiaries on the Company’s financial position and resuits of operations and cash flows for fiscal years
2006, 2005 and 2004 is not significant.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(dollars in millions)

53 Weeks Ended February 3, 2007

Parent Guarantor Non-guarantor
Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Net sales b - 5 2,5226 § 8728 % (598.7) $ 2,796.7
Cost of sales - 1,7324 674.5 (585.9) 1,821.0
Gross margin - 790.2 198.3 (12.8) 975.7
Selling, general and administrative expense 45 706.3 1105 (12.8) 808.5
Restructuring charges - 0.8 - - 0.8
Operating (loss) profit from continuing operations 4.5y 83.1 878 - 166.4
Interest expense 390 1.2 1.0 (22.0 19.2
Interest income - {41.6) 3.1 220 (22.7)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries (151.3) (67.4) - 2187 -
Earnings from continuing operations before income

taxes and minority interest 107.8 190.9 89.9 (218.7) 169.9
{Benefit) provision for income taxes (14.2) 39.1 15.0 - 39.9
Earnings from continuing operations before

minority interest 122.0 151.8 749 (218.7) 130.0
Minority interest, net of income taxes - - (4.6) - (4.6}
Net earnings from continuing operations 122.0 151.8 70.3 (218.7) 1254
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income

taxes and minority interest - (0.5) (2.9 - (34)
Net eamings $ 1220 § 151.3 % 674 § (218.7) § 122.0
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(dollars in millions)

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross margin
Selling, general and administrative expense
Restructuring charges

Operating (loss) profit from continuing operations

Interest expense

Interest income

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Eamings from continuing operations before income
taxes and minority interest

(Benefit) provision for income taxes

Earnings from continuing operations before
minority interest
Minority interest, net of income taxes

Net earnings from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes and minority interest

Net earnings before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net
of income taxes and minority interest

Net earnings

52 Weeks Ended January 28, 2006

Parent Guarantor Non-guarantor
Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

- $ 24240 7225 % (480.8) § 2,665.7

- 1,687.4 560.4 (470.7) 1,777.1

- 736.6 162.1 (10.1) 888.6

4.6 673.5 99.1 (10.1) 767.1

- 4.1 (0.3) - 3.8

{4.6) 59.0 63.3 - 117.7

320 1.5 11 (14.9) 19.7
- (24.7) (2.5) 14.9 {12.3)

(91.1) (44.4) - 135.5 -

54.5 126.6 64.7 (135.5) 110.3

(1.9 28.0 14.7 - 30.8

66.4 98.6 50.0 (135.5) 79.5

- - 3.0 - (3.0

66.4 98.6 47.0 (135.5) 76.5

(3.7 (2.3) - {6.0)

66.4 94.9 447 (135.5) 70.5

- (3.8) (0.3) - 4.1

664 § 91.1 444 3 {135.5) § 66.4
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS (LOSS)
(dollars in millions)

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling, general and administrative expense

Restructuring charges

Operating (loss) profit from continuing operations

Interest expense

Interest income

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes and minority interest

(Benefit) provision for income taxes

{Loss) earnings from continuing operations before
minority interest

Minority interest, net of income taxes

Net (loss) earnings from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes and minority interest

Net {loss) earnings

52 Weeks Ended Januvary 29, 2005

Parent Guarantor Non-guarantor
Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ -8 24570 § 6522 % (453.0) § 2,636.2
- 1,752.3 530.2 (446.0) 1,836.5
- 704.7 122.0 (7.0) 819.7
24 639.0 95.6 (7.0) 730.0
- 24.4 0.5 - 249
(2.4} 413 259 - 64.8
269 0.6 4.1 (9.5) 221
- (11.8) 3.0 8.5 (5.3)
17.0 (16.5) - 33.5 -
{(12.3) 69.0 248 (33.5) 48.0
(10.3) 24.6 (.1 - 13.2
20 4.4 259 (33.5) 348
- - 23 - 23
2.0 44.4 28.2 (33.5) 37.1
- (27.4) (1.9 - 39.1)
by (2.0) £ 170 § 165 § (33.5) § (2.0}
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of February 3, 2007
(dollars in millions)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Restricted cash
Inventories
Current deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Current assets of discontinued operations
Total current assets
Property and Equipment:
Land
Property, buildings and equipment
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net
Favorable leases, net
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill
Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREOQOWNERS® EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current liabilitics of discontinued operations
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Minority interest
Commitments and contingencics
Total shareowners’ equity

Total Liabilities and Sharcowners’ Equity

Parent Guarantor Non-guarantor
Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consclidated

3 - $ 1394 § 1320 § - 3714
- 90.0 - 90.0

- - 20 - 20

- 282.8 83.5 4.9 3619

- 13.2 24 - 15.6

0.6 40.2 5.7 - 46.5

423 153 51.9 (97.4) 18.1

- 1.0 0.1 - 1.1

429 681.9 283.6 (101.8) 906.6

- 6.6 - 6.6

- 1,096.7 148.4 1,245.1
- (741.4) (89.1) - (830.5)

- 361.9 59.3 - 4212

12.83 - - 12.8

- 313 6.4 317

- 59 - - 5.9

1,315.4 487.0 1.3 (1,760.5) 43.2

$ 1,3583 § 1,5808 § 3506 § {1,862.3) 1,427.4
b3 - $ 04 3 - § - 04
- - 20 - 2.0

- 146.6 59.5 (20.5) 185.6

175.4 323 63.8 (81.3) 190.2

- 2.1 - - 21

175.4 181.4 1253 (101.8) 380.3

480.7 0.1 4.0 (283.1) 2017

21 115.2 15.3 - 1326

- - 12.7 - 12.7

700.1 1,284.1 193.3 (1,477.4) 700.1

$ 1,3583 % 1,5808 % 3506 3 (1,862.3) 1,427.4
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Restricted cash
Inventories
Current deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Current assets of discontinued operations
Total current assets
Property and Equipment:
Land
Property, buildings and equipment
Accumutated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net
Favorable leases, net
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill
Other assets
Noncurrent assets of discontinued operations

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current liabilities of discontinued operations
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Minority interest
Commitments and contingencies

Total shareowners’ equity

Total Liabilities and Shareowners’ Equity

As of January 28, 2006
(dollars in millions)

Parent Guarantor Non-guarantor
Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

- h 3105 67.7 § - h 378.2

- 58.5 0.5 59.0

- 2.0 - 2.0

2713 63.9 (2.6) 332.6

- 19.3 0.9 - 20.2

06 336 5.2 - 3194
28.1 49.1 26.3 (83.3) 20.2

- 1.6 1.3 - 2.9
28.7 743.9 167.8 (85.9) §54.5
1.7 - 7.7

- 1,044.3 140.9 - 1,185.2
- (728.8) (79.0} - (B07.8)

- 3232 61.9 - 385.1

- 18.2 - - 18.2

- 18.5 9.0 - 275

5.9 - - 5.9

1,157.1 405.5 1.3 (1,542.0) 21.9
- - 1.4 1.4
1,185.8 $ 1,515.2 2414 § (1,627.9) § [,314.5
- 5 0.4 - ) - $ 0.4

- - 2.0 - 2.0

- 159.4 66.0 (56.8) 168.6
515 127.4 13.7 (29.1} 163.5

- 3.4 0.6 - 4.0
515 290.6 82.3 (85.9) 138.5
4804 0.6 6.4 (283.2) 204.2
19 94.9 12.5 - 109.3

- 10.5 10.5

652.0 1,129.1 129.7 (1,258.8) 652.0
1,1858 § 1,515.2 § 2414 3 (1,627.9) 3 1,314.5
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the 53 Weeks Ended February 3, 2007
(dollars in millions)

Operating Activities:
Net earnings

Loss from discontinued opetations, net of income taxes and

minority interest

Adjustments for non-cash items included in net earnings:

Loss on impairment of and disposal of assets
Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of deferred financing costs
Share-based compensalion expense

Deferred income taxes

Minority interest, net of income taxes

Income tax benefit of share-based compensation

Accretion of investments
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other assets and liabilities, net
Net cash used in discontinued operations

Cash flow provided by operating activities

Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Intangible asset additions
Purchases of investments
Sales and maturities of investments
Investment in subsidiaries

Cash flow used in investing activities

Financing Activities:
Repayment of debt
Payment of deferred financing costs
Issuances of common stock
Purchases of common stock
Dividends to parent

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation

Contribution by / distributions to parent
Distributions to minority owners
Net cash provided by discontinued operations

Cash flow (used in) provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

(Decrease} increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consalidated
S 1220 % 1513 § 674 % (2187 $ 122.0
- 0.5 2.9 - 34
- 8.7 1.6 - 103
- 74.1 14.4 88.5
0.9 0.2 - 1.1
11.0 1.2 12.2
(1.4) 10.5 - 9.1
- 4.6 - 4.6
- 0.6 - - 0.6
- (3.6) - - (3.6}
- (11.5) (20.1) 1.8 (29.8)
(14.2) 24.0 (32.9) 14.1 (9.0)
- (14.5) (6.2) 363 15.6
1239 (107.2) 41.2 (52.2) 5.7
(150.4) (67.7) 24 218.7 3.0
- {1.2) (2.8) - 4.0
82.2 63.3 84.2 - 229.7
- (103.8) (14.8) - (118.6)
. 4.6 - - 4.6
- (15.5) - - (15.5)
- (2149 0.7) (215.6)
- i87.0 1.2 - 188.2
- {1.5) - 1.5 -
- {144.1) (14.3) 1.5 (156.9)
- 0.4) (2.4) - 2.8)
- 0.2) - - (0.2)
47.1 . - - 47.1
(129.3) - - - (129.3)
- 23 (2.3) - -
- 8.0 - - 8.0
- - 1.5 (1.5) -
- - (1.5 - {i.5)
. . 1.2 - 1.2
(82.2) 9.7 (3.5) (1.5) {77.5)
- - (2.1) - 2.1)
- 7LD 64.3 - (6.8)
- 310.5 67.7 - 378.2
3 2394 § 1320 § - 3 371.4
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the 52 Weeks Ended January 28, 2006
(dollars in miltions)

Parent Guarantor Noen-Guarantor
Company  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations  Consolidated
Operating Activities:
Net eamings $ 664 3§ 911 3 444 3 (135.5) § 66.4
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes and
minority interest - 37 2.3 - 6.0
Adjustments for non-cash items included in net earnings:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
net of income taxes and minority interest - 38 0.3 - 4.1
Loss on impairment of and disposal of assets - 19 19 - 9.8
Depreciation and amortization - 80.7 9.7 - %04
Amortization of deferred financing costs 0.2 1.0 - - 1.2
Share-based compensation expense 1.3 - - - 1.3
Deferred income taxes - 1.7 20 - 13.7
Minority interest, net of income taxes - - 3.0 - 3.0
Income tax benefit of share-based compensation 6.5 - - - 6.5
Accretion of investments - (1.3} - - (1.3)
Changes in working capital:
Inventaries - 5.8 79 (0.2) 13.5
Prepaid expenses other current assets Ly (32.1) 19.6 224 (2.0)
Accounts payable - 294 (2.7) (7.7 3.0
Accrued expenses 441 (23.3) (7.0} (4.5) 9.5
Other assets and liabilities, net (85.2) (42.7) (1.2) 135.5 64
Net cash used in discontinued operations - (8.3) 2.3) - (10.6)
Cash flow provided by operating activities 21.6 127.4 779 - 226.9
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures - (59.8) (4.5) - (64.3)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - L2 - - 12
Restricted cash - - 1.0 - 1.0
Purchases of investments - (145.9) (0.5) - (146.4)
Sales and maturitics of investments - 110.0 - - 110.0
Investment in subsidiaries - (.7 - 1.7 -
Dividends from subsidiaries - 85.1 - (85.1) -
Net cash used in discontinued operations - - (0.1) - (0.1)
Cash flow used in investing activities - (1.1 (4.1} (83.4) (98.6)
Financing Activities:
Repayment of notes payable - - {1.0) - (1.0)
Issuance of debt - - 1.2 - 1.2
Repayment of debt - (0.3) (1.2) - (1.5)
Issuances of common stock 49.6 - - - 496
Purchases of common stock (71.2) - - - (71.2)
Contribution by / distributions to parent - - 1.7 (1.7) -
Dividends to parent - - (85.1) 85.1
Net cash provided by discontinued operations - - 0.9 - 0.9
Cash flow {used in) provided by financing activities (21.6) (0.3) (83.5) 834 {22.0)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash - - 0.9 - 0.9
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 116.0 (8.8) - 107.2
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year - 194.5 76.5 - 2710
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period b - $ 3105 § 67.7 % - $ 378.2
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the 52 Weeks Ended January 29, 2005

Operating Activities:
Net (loss) earnings

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes and

minority interest

Adjustments for non-cash items included in net eamings:

Restructuring charges
Loss on impairment of and disposal of assets
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Share-based compensation expense
Deferred income taxes
Minority interest, net of income taxes
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other assets and liabilities, net
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations

Cash flow provided by operating activities

Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Restricted cash
Purchases of investments
Sales and maturities of investments
Investment in subsidiaries

Net cash used in discontinued operations

Cash flow (used in) provided by investing activities

Financing Activities:
Repayment of notes payable
Issuance of debt
Repayment of debt
Payment of deferred financing costs
Issuances of common stock
Purchases of common stock
Contribution by / distributions to parent
Contributions from minority owners
Net cash provided by discontinued operations

Cash flow {used in} provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

(dollars in millions)

Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Company Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ (.00 170 § 165 § (33.5) § (2.0)
- 274 1.7 39.1
10.8 - - i0.8
8 4.6 24 - 7.0
0.6 823 11.7 - 94.6
- 03 0.6 - 0.9
- 0.7 - - 0.7
- (2.3} 4.5 - (6.4)
. . 2.3) . @3)
- 314 1.3 (1.4) 313
(10.2) 213 (7.3) 5.6 94
- 310 2L.3) 129 28.6
(0.3) 474 39 (17.1) 339
217 (60.0} 1.5 445 1.7
- 9.9 (7.1) - 2.2
9.8 2278 6.9 11.0 255.5
- 93.9) 3.1) (102.0)
- 3.0 - - 3.0
- - 305 - 30.5
- {34.3) - - (34.3)
- 23.0 - - 230
- 5.5 - {5.5) -
- {2.3) {1.2) - (3.5
- (99.0 21.2 (3.5) (83.3)
(30.5) - (30.5)
- - 24 - 24
- (0.2) (1.3) - (1.5)
- (1.5) 1.3 - {0.2)
1.6 - - - 1.6
(11.4) - - - {11.4)
- - 5.5 (5.5) -
- - 21 - 2.1
- - i.6 - 1.6
(5.8) 1.7 (18.9) (5.5) (35.9)
- - 2.00 - 2.0)
- 127.1 72 - 134.3
- 67.4 69.3 - 136.7
$ - $ 1945 § 765 § $ 271.0
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ITEM 9, CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K for fiscal 2006, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and

with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and i
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal |
financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-14{c) and 15d-14(c) under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective and designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in periodic

reports filed with the SEC is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period specified. Our principal

executive officer and principal financial officer also concluded that our controls and procedures were effective in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Act is accumulated and communicated

to management including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, or persons performing similar

functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting and the report of independent registered public
accounting firm are incorporated by reference to pages 37 and 38 of Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during fiscal year 2006 that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART 111
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors has established a standing Audit and Finance Committee which currently consists of Mr. John F.
McGovern — Chairman, Mr, Daniel Boggan Jr., Mr. Howard R. Fricke, Mr. Robert F. Moran, Mr. Michael E. Murphy and Mr.
David Scott Olivet. The Board has determined that each of the members of the Audit and Finance Committee is an audit
committee financial expert (as that term is defined under Item 401(h) of Regulation S-K} and are independent.

QOur Code of Ethics, formerly known as the Policy On Business Conduct, is applicable to all associates including our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, and persons performing similar functions. Our Code
of Ethics is available on our website at www. paylessinfo.com. The charters for the Board of Directors, the Audit and Finance
Committee, and the Compensation Nominating and Governance Committee are also available on our investor relations
website. The Company intends to satisfy its disclosure requirements under Item 10 of form 8-K, regarding an amendment to
or waiver from a provision of its Code of Ethics by posting such information on our website at www, paylessinfo.com,

Directors - The information set forth in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with its Annual
Meeting to be held on May 24, 2007, under the captions “Election of Directors - Directors and Nominees for Director -
Directors Subject to Election - Continuing Directors and - Retiring and Retired Directors” and “Additional Information -
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ is incorporated herein by reference.
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Executive Officers - Information regarding the Executive Officers of the Company is as set forth in Item 1 of this report under
the caption “Executive Officers of the Company.” The information set forth in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be
filed in connection with its Annual Meeting to be held on May 24, 2007, under the caption “Additional Information - Section
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information set forth in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with its Annual Meeting to be
held on May 24, 2007, under the captions “Committees of the Board — Compensation, Nominating and Governance Committee
— Compensation Committees Interlocks and Instder Participation and — Compensation, Nominating and Governance
Committee Report,” “2006 Board Compensation,” “Compensation, Discussion and Analysis,” “2006 Surnmary Compensation
Table” “2006 Grants of Plan Based Awards,” “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2006 Year End,” “Options Exercises and
Stock Vested During Fiscal 2006,” “Pension Benefits For Fiscal 2006,” “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation,” and
“Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control” are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information set forth in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with its Annual Meeting to be
held on May 24, 2007, under the caption “Beneficial Stock Ownership of Directors, Nominees, Executive Officers and Persons
Owning More Than Five Percent of Common Stock™ is incorporated herein by reference.

The following table summarizes information with respect to the Company’s equity compensation plans at February 3, 2007:

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securitics Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
to be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
Exercise of Qutstanding COutstanding Options, (Excluding securities

Plan category Options, Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders 3775 % 19.42 2,788
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders 720 20.65 -
Total 4495 § 19.62 2,788

(1) Includes up to 2,455 thousand shares that may be issued under the Company’s 2006 Stock Incentive Plan and up to 333 thousand shares that can
be issued under the Company’s Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Management Directors. The amount does not include up to 5,495 thousand shares
that may be purchased under the Payless Stock Ownership Plan.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND IRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information set forth in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with its Annual Meeting to be
held on May 24, 2007 under the caption “Independence of Directors and Nominees for Director” is incorporated herein by
reference.

The Company began a relationship with Celadon Group, Inc. (“Celadon™) in 2002. Mr. Rubel’s father-in-law, Stephen
Russell, is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Celadon. Pursuant to a competitive bid process, during 2006
Celadon won the right to be the primary carrier on two of the Company’s transportation lanes. These lanes account for less
than two percent of the Company’s outbound line haul budget. The Company regularly competitively bids its line haul routes
and as a result, Celadon could gain or lose routes based upon its bids.

In June 2006, the Company entered into a Marketing and License Agreement with Ballet Theatre Foundation Inc., a nonprofit
organization, to use the American Ballet Theatre and ABT marks in connection with development, manufacture, marketing
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promotion, distribution, and sale of certain dance footwear. Mr. Rubel became a Trustee of Ballet Theatre Foundation, Inc., in
January 2007.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information regarding principal accounting fees and services is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the
heading “Principal Accounting Fees and Services” of the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with
its Annual Meeting to be held on May 24, 2007.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)  Financial Statements and Schedules:
The financial statements are set forth under [tem § of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Other than as set forth
below, financial statement schedules have been omitted since they are either not required, not applicable, or the

information is otherwise included.

SCHEDULE HI-VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at Charged to Balance at

{dollars in millions) beginning of period costs and expenses Deductions end of period
Year ended January 29, 2005

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 20 § 05 § {(16) § 0.9
Deferred tax valuation allowance 13.5 2.8 9.9 6.4
Sales return reserve 1.3 10.3 (10.4) 1.2
Year ended January 28, 2006

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 09 § 08 % 0.8 § 0.9
Deferred tax valuation allowance 6.4 1.9 (0.5) 7.8
Sales retumn reserve 1.2 9.5 9.3) 1.4
Year ended February 3, 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 09 § 1.0 % (14) § 0.5
Deferred tax valuation allowance 7.8 {1.1) - 6.7
Sales return reserve 1.4 10.1 (10.1) 1.4

(1) With regard to allowances for doubtful accounts, deductions relate to uncollectible receivables that have been written off, net
of recoveries. For the deferred tax valuation allowance, deductions relate to deferred tax assets that have been written off.
For sales returns, deductions related to actual returns.

(b)  Exhibits

Number Description
31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Payless ShoeSource, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company™). (1)
32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company. (2)
4.1 Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement, dated as of April 20, 1998, between the
Company and UMB Bank, N.A. (1}
4.2 Indenture, dated as of July 28, 2003, among Payless ShoeSource, Inc. and each of the

Guarantors named therein and Wells-Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association as
Trustee, related to the 8.25% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2013. (3)
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4.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

104
10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9
10.10
10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16
10.17

10.18

10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22

21.1
231
311

Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, Dated July 28, 2003, among Payless
ShoeSource, Inc. and each of Guarantors named therein and Goldman Sachs & Co. as
representative of the Several Purchasers. (3)

Amended and Restated Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of April 2, 1996, by and between
The May Department Stores Company and Payless ShoeSource, Inc. (4)

Sublease, dated as of April 2, 1996, by and between The May Department Stores Company
and Payless ShoeSource, Inc. (5)

Payless ShoeSource, Inc., Stock 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended September 18,
2003. (6)

Stock Plan for Non-Management Directors, as amended and restated March 29, 2007.*

Form of Employment Agreement between Payless ShoeSource, Inc., and certain of its
executives. (7)

Payless ShoeSource, Inc. Supplementary Retirement Plan, as amended December 12,
2006.*

Payless ShoeSource, Inc., 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan, as amended effective January 1,
2007.*

Form of Change of Control Agreement between Payless ShoeSource, Inc. and certain of its
executives. (10}

Form of Directors’ Indemnification Agreement. (7)
Form of Officers’ Indemnification Agreement. (10)

Payless ShoeSource, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Management Directors, as
amended September 18, 2003. (6)

The Stock Appreciation and Phantom Stock Unit Plan of Payless ShoeSource, Inc. and its
Subsidiaries for Payless ShoeSource International Employees, as amended September 18,
2003. {(6)

Payless ShoeSource, Inc. Stock Ownership Plan, as amended effective January 1, 2007.*

Assumption Agreement, dated as of May 22, 1998, by and between Payless ShoeSource,
Inc. (Missouri) and Payless ShoeSource Holdings, Inc. (1)

Payless ShoeSource, Inc. Deferred Compensation 401(k) Mirrer Plan, as amended
September 18, 2003. (6)

Payless ShoeSource, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan. (8)

Loan, Guaranty and Security Agreement by and among Payless ShoeSource Finance, Inc.,
as Borrower, the Guarantors signatory thereto, the Lenders signatory thereto and Wells
Fargo Retail Finance, as Arranger and Administrative Agent, dated as of January 15, 2004.

®
Employment Agreement between Payless ShoeSource, Inc. and Matthew E. Rubel
accepted and agreed to June 17, 2005. (11)

Form of Restricted Stock B Award Agreement.*

Form of Stock Settled Stock Appreciation Rights Award Agreement.*

Payless ShoeSource, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, effective May 235, 2006.

First Amendment to Loan, Guaranty and Security Agreement dated as of April 28, 2006.
(12)

Subsidiaries of the Company.*

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*

Certification Pursuant to Rules 13{a)-14(a) and 15(d)-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, of the Chief Executive Officer and President ¥
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3.2

Certification Pursuant to Rules 13(a)-14(a) and 15(d)-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, of the Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer.*

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 of the Chief Executive Officer and President.*
32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 of the Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer.*
* Filed herewith

1. Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Number 1-14770) filed
with the SEC on June 3, 1998.

2. Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File Number 1-14770) for
the fiscal year ended January 30, 1999, filed with the SEC on April 12, 1999.

3. Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File Number 1-14770)
for the quarter ended August 2, 2003, filed with the SEC on September 12, 2003.

4. Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (File Number 1-1633) for the
quarter ended May 4, 1996.

5.  Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10 (File Number |-
11633) dated February 23, 1996, as amended through April 13, 1996.

6.  Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-4 (File Number 333-
109388) filed with the SEC on October 2, 2003, as amended.

7. Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File Number 1-14770) for
the year ended February 1, 2003, filed with the SEC on April 18, 2003,

8. Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File Number 1-14770) for
the year ended February 2, 2002, filed with the SEC on April 16, 2002.

9. Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Number 1-14770) filed
with the SEC on January 22, 2004,

10. Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File Number 1-14770) for
the year ended January 31, 2004, filed with the SEC on April 9, 2004.

11.  Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Number 1-14770) filed
with the SEC on June 22, 2005.

12.  Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Number 1-14770) filed

with the SEC on May 2, 2006.

The Company will furnish to shareowners upon request, and without charge, a copy of the 2006 Annual Report and
the 2007 Proxy Statement, portions of which are incorporated by reference in the Form 10-K. The Company will
furnish any other Exhibit at cost.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules have been either omitted due to inapplicability or because required information is
shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes thereto, or Item 15(a).
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: April 3, 2007 By:__ /s Ullrich E. Porzig

PAYLESS SHOESOURCE, INC.

Ullrich E. Porzig
Senior Vice President - Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Matthew E. Rubel Date
Chief Executive Officer,

President and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Howard R, Fricke Date:

Chairman of the Board and Director

/s/ Michael E. Murphy Date:
Director
/s/ Robert C. Wheeler Date:
Director
fs/ Michael A. Weiss Date:
Director
s/ Judith K, Hofer Date:

Director

. April 3, 2007

April 3, 2007

April 3, 2007

April 3, 2007

April 3, 2007

April 3, 2007

fs/ Ulirich E. Porzig Date: April 3, 2007
Senior Vice President - Chief

Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/_Daniel Boggan Jr. Date: April 3, 2007
Director
/s/ Mylle H. Mangum Date: April 3, 2007
Director
fs/ _John F. McGovern Date: April 3, 2007
Director
{s/ Robert F. Moran Date: April 3, 2007
Director
/s/ David Scott Olivet Date: April 3, 2007
Director




MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR

Matthew E. Rubel (24
Chief Executive Officer
and President

NON-MANAGEMENT
DIRECTORS

Howard R. Fricke (11(2)(3)
Retired Chairman of the Board
The Security Benefit Group of
Companies

Daniel Boggan Jr. (3)
Retired Senior Vice President
MNational Collegiate Association

Judith K. Hofer (4)

Retait Consultant

Mylle H. Mangum (2} (4*)
Chief Executive Officer
IBT Enterprises, LLC

John F. McGovern (3%
Partner
Aurora Capital, LLC

Robert F. Moran (3)

President and Chief Operating Officer

PetSmart, inc.

Michael E. Murphy (2)(3)
Retired Vice Chairman and
Chief Administrative Officer
Sara Lee Corporation

D. Scott Olivet(3)
Chief Executive Officer
Qakley, Inc.

Michael A. Weiss (4)
Retired Chief Executive
Officer of Express

A subsidiary of Limited Brands, Inc.

Robert C. Wheeler(4)
Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

Hill's Pet Nutrition, Inc.

SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Matthew E. Rubel
Chief Executive Officer
and President

Eran Cohen
Senior Vice President

Cathleen S. Curless

Division Senior Vice President

Michael J. Fine

Senior Vice President

Stephen J. Gish

Senior Vice President

John J. Guze

Senior Vice President

Michael Jeppesen

Division Senior Vice President

Jay A. Lentz

Senior Vice President

Michael J. Massey
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and
Secretary

Theodore O. Passig

Senior Vice President

Darrel J. Pavelka
Senior Vice President

Ullrich E. Porzig
Senior Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

{1) Non-Management Chairman of the Board of Payless ShoeSource, Inc.

(2} Executive Committee of the Board
{3) Audit and Finance Committee

{4) Compensation, Nominating and Govarnance Committee

* Chairman

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Payless ShoeSource, Inc.
3231 S.E. Sixth Avenue
Topeka, KS 66607-2207
785.233.5171 i

COMMON STOCK

Shares of Payless ShoeSource, Inc. are listed and traded on
the New York Stock Exchange. The trading symbol is PSS.

INFORMATION REQUESTED

Copies of the corporation’s annual report to Stockhold-
ers, the Form 10-K annual report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), the Form 10-Q quarterly
reports to the SEC, current reports to the SEC on Form
8-K, and quarterly earnings releases are available on the
corporation’s website at www.paylessinfo.com, or by writ-
ing to Investor Relations at the corporate headquarters or
by calling Investor Relations phone line at 785.559.6966.

PAYLESS SHOESOURCE ON THE INTERNET

Recent press releases issued by the Corporation.
Visit us at www.paylessinfo.com.

STOCKHOLDER {NQUIRIES

Stockholder inquiries regarding stock transfer, lost certifi-
cates or address changes should be directed to the stock
transfer agent and registrar,

Please address Stockholder inquiries to:
Securities Transfer Division

UMB Bank

P.O. Box 419064

Kansas City, MO 64141-6064
816.860.7786 or 1.800.884.4225

The bank requests that certificates be sent by registered
mail. The fax number for the bank is 816.8460.3970. The
e-mail address for the bank is: stock.transfer@umb.com.

Securities analysts, stockholders and investment
professionals should direct inquiries regarding
Payless ShoeSource, Inc. and its business to James M.
Grant, Director - Investor Relations, 785.559.5321.
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